TORRANCE COUNTY
CoMMISSION MEETING

September 23, 2020
©9:00 AM.

For Public View
Do Not Remove



Torrance County
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS (BCC)
Kevin McCall, District 1
Ryan Schwebach, District 2
Javier Sanchez, District 3

Janice Barela, Interim County Manager

ADMINISTRATIVE MEETING
AGENDA

WEDNESDAY, September 23,2020 @ 9:00 AM

1. Call to Order

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

3. Changes to the Agenda

4. PROCLAMATIONS

5. CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS

6. BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
7. PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUNICATIONS
8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. COMMISSION: Motion to approve the September 9, 2020, Torrance County Board
of County Commission Minutes.

9. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA

A. FINANCE: Approval of Payables.

B. PLANNING & ZONING: Motion to Approve Planning & Zoning Recommendation
for Special use Request Pattern Energy Group.

10.  ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE

11.  ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A.  ROAD: Motion to approve FY2020/2021 State CO-OP Agreements/Contracts CAP
Project, Resolution No. 2020-

Torrance County Page 1



Administrative Meeting Agenda September 23, 2020

B. ROAD: Motion to approve FY2020/2021 State CO-OP Agreements/Contracts SB
Project, Resolution No. 2020- .

C.  ROAD: Motion to approve FY2020/2021 State CO-OP Agreements/Contracts SP
Project, Resolution No. 2020- .

D. GRANTS: Motion to approve the execution and delivery of a local planning grant
agreement between the NM Finance Authority and Torrance County, Resolution No.
2020- .

E. FINANCE: Motion to approve Disposition of vehicles. Resolution No. 2020-

12. APPROVALS

A.  ROAD/PROCUREMENT: Motion to authorize County Manager to execute
Professional Services Agreement for Architectural Services for the Torrance County
Road Shop.

B. FINANCE: Motion to authorize County Manager to execute Contract regarding Tyler
software,

C. COMMISSION: Motion to approve Contract for Janice Y. Barela as Torrance County
Manager.
13. DISCUSSION
A. MANAGER: EMWT update, Bobby Ortiz.
14. EXECUTIVE SESSION

A. MANAGER: Purchase of real property for Emergency Management. Closed pursuant to
NMSA § 10-15-1(H)(8).

B. MANAGER: Purchase of the County F airgrounds, closed pursuant to Section 10-15-
L(H)(8).

1S.  Announcement of the next Board of County Commissioners Meeting:
October 14, 2020 @ 9:00 AM

16. SIGNING OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS

17. ADJOURN

Torrance County Page 2



Agenda Item
No. 1



Agenda Item
No. 2



Agenda Item
No. 3



Agenda Item
No. 4



Agenda Item
No. 5



Agenda Item
No. 6



Agenda Item
No. 7



Agenda Item
No. 8-A



DRAFT COPY
Torrance County Board of Commissioners
Regular Commission Meeting
September 9, 2020
9:00 AM

Commissioners Present:
RYAN SCHWEBACH - CHAIR
JAVIER SANCHEZ - MEMBER
KEVIN MCCALL - MEMBER
Others Present:
JANICE BARELA - INTERIM COUNTY MANAGER
JOHN BUTRICK - COUNTY ATTORNEY
GENELL MORRIS - ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

1. Call Meeting to order
Chairman Schwebach: Calls September 9, 2020 Regular Commission Meeting to
order at 9:03 AM ‘

2.  Pledge lead by: Chairman Schwebach
Invocation lead by: Commissioner McCall

3. Changes to the Agenda: Defer agenda items 11-E, 11-F,11-G, 12-A and
12-B.

Chairman Schwebach: Motion to defer agenda items 11-E, 11-F,11-G, 12-A and
12-B.

Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.

Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

4,  PROCLAMATIONS- None

A.  DWI: Naming September as “Suicide Awareness and Prevention
Month in Torrance County”
Tracey Master — DWI Coordinator: Proclamation asking the Commission to
make September suicide awareness and prevention month was read. Hereto
Attached
Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED




5.  CERTIFICATES AND AWARDS

A.  DWI: Certificates of Recognition for TC Sheriff’s Office, Dispatch,
Fire Department and Animal Shelter.
Tracey Master — DWI Coordinator: Gave certificates of recognition to the TC
Sheriff’s Office, Dispatch, Fire Department and Animal Shelter for their hard work
dealing with traffic accident, DWI’s and various issues throughout the County.

6. BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMANTS - None

7.  PUBLIC COMMENT and COMMUNICATIONS

Linda Jaramillo — Torrance County Clerk: As of today, we have received
almost 800 absentee application and anticipate receiving 2500-3000 for this
election. Informational letters and absentee applications will be mailed out
September 14, 2020 from our office. Absentee by mail will begin October 6™ Early
voting will be from October 6® thru October 31% 7:30 am to 5:30 pm here in the
Torrance County Administrative Building. Alternate voting in Moriarty at the
Civic Center, October 17% thru October 31 10:00 am-6:00 pm. Ballots can be
dropped off at both early voting sites and any site on election day. All polling
locations are VCC including Duran and Encino. If someone does not get their
ballot, they can call our office and sign an affidavit they requested a ballots and
have not received it and receive a replacement ballot.

8. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. COMMISSION: Motion to approve the August 26, 2020 Torrance
County Board of County Commission Minutes
Chairman Schwebach: Motions to approve August 26, 2020 Torrance County
Board of County Commission Minutes

Commissioner MeCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

9.  APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA
FINANCE: Approval of Payables
Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve payables.

Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED




10. ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE/AMENDMENT TO COUNTY CODE

11. ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION

A. FINANCE: Motion to approve budget increase: DWI (reverted funds)

and Clerk (additional election costs), Resolution No. 2020-33.

Jeremy Oliver — Finance Director: The DWI reverted funds need to be returned
back to the state, these funds can be reapplied for in October. The Clerks additional
election cost is a reimbursement from the primary election and likely to get another
reimbursement for the General election, this is due to COVID and additional costs.
Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve budget increase.

Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

B. FINANCE: Motion to approve Disposition of Vehicles, Resolution
No. 2020-34

Jeremy Oliver — Finance Director: We have a total of 5 vehicles going up for
disposition. Our plan is to hold a sale in the parking lot, seal bid auction. Sale from
2 of the vehicles will be deposited into the general fund, 2 will be deposited in the
Jail fund and 1 will be deposited in the law enforcement protection fund. This is
based on how the vehicles were originally purchased. All vehicles are valued under
$5000, before accounting for any mechanical defects. We will announce this in the
Commission meeting, social media, our website, and flyers. We are looking at
advertising around 3 to 4 weeks and sales in about 7 weeks.
Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve Disposition of Vehicles, Resolution
No. 2020-34
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

C. ASSESSOR: Motion to approve the 2020 Imposition of Mill Rates,
Resolution No. 2020-35.
Jessie Lucero — County Assessor: The Assessor certifies all Torrance County
properties and sends values to the State, the state compiles all the county’s needs,
and they determine the mill rate for each taxing district. This will be the 1% year in
the 6 years that I have been the deputy and now Assessor that the mill rates have
dropped across every school district, municipality, and all around the county. The
more properties we value and correct these accounts the benefits shows across the
board for the entire county. The Assessor does not raise or lower taxes, we just value

property.




Commissioner McCall: Motion to approve 2020 Imposition of Mill Rates,
Resolution No. 2020-35.

Chairman Schwebach: Seconds the motion.

Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

D.  GRANTS: Motion to approve the FY2022-2026 Infrastructure
Capital Improvement Plan (ICIP), Resolution No. 2020-36.

Cheryl Allen — Grant Manager: Within the packet is the plan for Torrance
County and the 3 senior centers. There was a request to add an additional project,
for planning design and construction of a helicopter pad in Torreon. We do not
have enough information to complete the worksheet for the ABO water system
development project. We are lacking population, how many people will be served
by this water system, how deep the well will be and how big of an area we will be
serving.
Commissioner Sanchez: We can get you the needed information by Thursday of
next week.
Cheryl Allen — Grant Manager: If we want to do the helicopter pad, we need the
information by the same date.
Commissioner Sanchez: A helipad is needed in the area, but the propetty is not
determined yet. This is not something we want to request money for this year, we
want this down on the list. The dispatch commission will be the best place to start
the conversation.
Commissioner McCall; Does it count against us if we submit a project without all
the information.
Cheryl Allen — Grant Manager: I do not know if it counts against us, it is not
recommenced to have a place holder project.
Chairman Schwebach: I am confident we will get the numbers of ABO. [ am
reluctant on the helipad partly because the $500,000.00. We need more research;
Moriarty simply has an area that is used for the helicopter. Id like to see more
options. As far as ABO project if we do not get the information, we will put it on
hold.
Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve FY2022-2026 Infrastructure Capital
Improvement Plan (ICIP), Resolution No. 2020-36, with the understanding that is
all the information for the ABO project does not come in it will be removed from
the list in a holding pattern for the future.
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

E. ROAD: Motion to approve FY2020/2021 State CO-OP
Agreement/Contracts CAP Project, Resolution No. 2020- :

4



DEFERED

F. ROAD: Motion to approve FY2020/2021 State CO-OP
Agreement/Contracts SB Project, Resolution No. 2020-
DEFERED

G. ROAD: Motion to approve FY2020/2021 State CO-OP
Agreement/Contracts SP Project, Resolution No. 2020- :
DEFERED

12. APPROVALS

A. ROAD/PROCUREMENT: Motion to approve Professional Services
Contract for Architectural Service for TC Road Shop.
DEFERED

B. DWI: Motion to approve bylaws for Torrance County DWI Planning
Council.
DEFERED

C. MANAGER: Motion to approve Ratification of application and

agreement for CARES Act funding.
Janice Barela — Interim County Manager: We received notification from the
state that CARES Act funding was available for local governments to help offset
the cost of COVID. We submitted an application in the total of $266,052.75, we
were awarded was $166,000.00. Thank you, Cheryl for putting this together and
getting this submitted in time, she worked overtime to get this completed.
Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve Ratification of application and
agreement for CARES Act funding.
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

D. MANAGER: Motion to approve early hire of Grant Assistant.
Janice Barela — Interim County Manager: As part of your budget for FY21, a
Grant Assistant was approved to be hired. The stipulation was that we would hire
January 1, 2021, based on what we will have to spend on COVID, what we will get
in gross receipts and how well our budget will be. Turns out we are doing well,
Jeremy Oliver — Finance Director did an amazing job with our budget. There are a
few areas we are saving that we can cover the cost for hiring the Grant Assistant

5



early. Example: Workman’s Comp was $190,000.00 a year but that came in half
the price at $90,000.00, this was in response to COVID to help out the counties,
with additional relief.

Janice Barela — Interim County Manager: All the work that is having to be done
in response to the COVID pandemic and the amount of work that has been added
to Cheryl’s workload has increased. Cheryl is not a person to go through it quickly,
she is a very detailed person and makes her that much more valuable. This has
been requiring a lot of overtime/comp time. I am trying to prevent her from getting
burnt out. When she was initially hired her job was to find additional funding
sources, she has not has the opportunity to do that with all her current workload.
Chairman Schwebach: Motion to approve early hire of Grant Assistant.
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.

Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

13. DISCUSSION

A.  ASSESSOR: Torrance County Assessor Annual report
Jessie Lucero — County Assessor: Assessors Office Annual Cycle: 1. Determine
values for entire county 2. Notice of value sent, protest intake & sate evaluation 3.
Protest settlement, formal board hearing & state certification of value 4. Tax roll
and warrant 5. Reappraisal of county.
PowerPoint presentation; Hereto attach.

B. MANAGER: EMWT update, Bobby Ortiz, Deferred from August 26,
2020 meeting,.
Chairman Schwebach: Deferred again, Bobby Ortiz not available.

C. P &Z: Planning and Zoning Board Report, Recommendation on
Special use Request Pattern Energy.

Steve Guetschow — P&Z Director: On September 2, 2020, the Torrance County
Planning & Zoning Board conducted a Public Hearing in accordance with Section
24 of the Torrance County Zoning Ordinance. The subject of the hearing was the
application for Special Use change in zoning for Pattern Energy Group, LP. The
Board through means of roll call vote were unanimous in a “Do Pass”
recommendation.
Here to Attached.

14. EXECUTIVE SESSION:



A. MANAGER: Purchase of the County Fairgrounds, closed pursuant to
Section 10-15-1(H)(8).

B. MANAGER: Purchase of real property for Emergency Management,
Closed pursuant to NMSA 10-15-1(H)(8).

Chairman Schwebach: Motion to enter into executive session.
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

Enter into Executive Session: 10:40 AM

Chairman Schwebach: Motion to enter into regular session
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
Roll Call Vote: MOTION CARRIED

Enter into Regular session 12:50 PM

Chairman Schwebach: We are now back in regular session, we discussed 2 items;
Purchase of the County Fairgrounds, closed pursuant to Section 10-15-1(H)(8).
and Purchase of real property for Emergency Management, closed pursuant to
NMSA 10-15-1(H)(8). no action will be taken other than the county manager
moving forward with the discussions we had.

15. Announcement of the next Board of County Commissioners Meeting:
September 23, 2020 9:00 AM @ the Torrance County Admin Building.

16.  Signing of Official Documents

*Adjourn

Chairman Schwebach: Motions to adjourn Commission Meeting
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Meeting adjourned at 12:51 PM



Ryan Schwebach — Chairman Genell Morris — Admin Assistant

Date

The Video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Torrance County
NM website. Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the Torrance County
Clerk’s Office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on out local radio station
KXNM.



DRAFT COPY
Torrance County Board of Commissioners
Special CLOSED Commission Meeting
September 10, 2020
8:00 AM

Commissioners Present:
RYAN SCHWEBACH - CHAIR
KEVIN MCCALL - MEMBER
JAVIER SANCHEZ - MEMBER
Others Present:
JOHN BUTRICK - COUNTY ATTORNEY
GENELL MORRIS — ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

1. Call Meeting to order
Chairman Schwebach: Calls September 10, 2020 Special Closed Commission
Meeting to order at 8:04 AM

2. DISCUSSION - None
3. APPROVALS - None
4, EXECUTIVE SESSION:

A. MANAGER: Interviews of County Manager Candidates,
Closed pursuant to 10-15-1(H)(2).

Chairman Schwebach: Motion to go into executive session.
Commissioner McCall: Second the motion
Roll Call Vote: All in favor - MOTION CARRIED

Executive Session began at 8:05 AM

Chairman Schwebach: Motion to go into regular session.
Commissioner McCall: Second the motion
Roll Call Vote: All in favor - MOTION CARRIED

Return to Regular Session at 12:39 PM

Chairman Schwebach: This Commission conducted interviews with 5 individuals
for the Torrance County Manager position. We discussed the possible entering into

1



contract. At this time those are the only actions taken. John Butrick County
Attorney will proceed.

5.  Adjourn

Chairman Schwebach: Motions to adjourn Special Commission Meeting
Commissioner McCall: Seconds the motion.
All in favor: MOTION CARRIED

Meeting adjourned at 12:40 PM

Ryan Schwebach — Chairman Genell Morris — Admin Assistant

Date

The Video of this meeting can be viewed in its entirety on the Torrance County
NM website. Audio discs of this meeting can be purchased in the Torrance County
Clerk’s Office and the audio of this meeting will be aired on out local radio station
KXNM.,



Agenda Item
No. 9-A



OTTITPSS "I Aowig

TSMOHHD ESHEHL $SED0¥d OL INEWLIYIAC ZONYNIZ UL ZZINOHIOY A9¥sSH STOU ANY FLVA SIHL NO
QHNSST Hd OL SMOHHD HTEVAVE SINNODOV ISHHIL FO0J ISIXH SANAI INTIDIZINS LVHL AATIEED AHHEHH $I00 JHIENSVIAYL ALNNOD JINDISIIANN HHL

OTTITWeIRr BPUTT YORGOMYDS URAY Zayoues Istae[p TIeDOW UTADM

A€ LSHLLY JENDIS

TALINOOD HONWYIOL A€ GIVd NEHEE SYH I¥¥d ON IVHI ONY JEANOY SY ONY ‘IIGVNOSYHEE ’ISAC FUV QIEHIVID SINQOWY

dHL I¥HL 'CENIWNYXE NIZd SYH YEHONOA SIHL IVHL ‘gAIO¥E ANY AYYSSEDEAN UV AHHL IVHL 'NIFIIH SINOODDY HHI NI AHIIVIS SY TERIOAI AL

NZZd HAVH SEDIAYES HHL IVHL °NIFIZH JIIVIS NOLIVSNIAWOD HHL HATHEDEY OL ODIXIW MAN 40 SHIOLVLS HHL A0 NOILALILSNOD HHI ¥EANA JETIIING

ATIVOET HIV SNOSMAJ CEWYN NIHLIM JHIL IVHI XJTIIED =M - 020Z/LT/60 ONIGNE QOT¥Hd HHL ¥O4 FAOSY NMOHS SY SEIIAYES FHIL JO04 dI¥aND

-NI SNOIIV¥DITHO A0 INAODDY NO 6L TEL‘89Z°'T 40 HAS HHL J04 ALNNOD FONVINOI 40 SANAJ HHIL ISNIVOY SINVIIVM THL HZIVOHINY Od ® QIMOTIY
QIAOIAIY FYIM FAOEY JIIVIIWONT SWIVID HHI IVHI XJIINED Od SYANOISSINWOD 40 QEVOd XINNOD FDNVNEOL HHL 40 SUTGWEN AANDISYAGNN FHL

98 QHLINI¥EG SHUOHEHD TVIOL

NOTLYDIAJZIIYHAD
(T9DEHD) LS:92:L 0Z/91/6 :33wA



00" S0"€EE’9 THNA FEIDIHAA - SEITAANS c02Z-0G9-TO0¥%
0o0- ¥L°LZ8'9 JITIIHS XLNNOD LIHd %+
00" 86 6LT dIN0H/XId/Nana 8TZC-6%-T0V
00 86°6LT NOIZLVILSINIWAY INVID LA * »
00" TT LS ANYJ0¥d /SYD TRHAIYN - SEILITILA 602C-LE-TOF
00" TT7LS INIVA ¥EINID JFOINHS ALIVITOW ircEciag E
00~ 80 LTIT dILYM - SHILITILA 0T2Z-9¢-T0%
00" v 7S ANVIO¥d /SYD TYANLYN - SHEILITIIN €60CZ-9€E-TO0¥%
00" CTETILT LINIVH dALNAD JOINAS VIDNYLSH LAHd* +
00" £6°€9 ONISILIIACY/DNIHSITING /ONIINT I TTTZ-0€~-TO¥
G0~ L6°91T TA0A WATIOTHAHA - SHITIANS 202Z-0€-10%
00" 06°08T FIANSTIELL ALNOOD LIHT %+
00" 09°06 YIALYM ~ SHILITIIO 0ICTZ-LT-TO0%
00° z8°G§¢ ENVAO¥d /SYD TYEALYN - SHILITILO 6022-LC-TOV
00- Z¥ 91T INIVH FALNHD JOINHS WIVNIVINOOW LAEd % »
00" LZ 86 FELYM - SHILITIIAN 0TZZ-%Z-T0%
00" 99°¢g INYIONd/SYD TVANIYN - SHILITILA 6022-%2-10%
00° £€6°0ST IONYNAINIVA D478 IdE2d HITIVIH LA * »
00" S0°¥0T d0I4d0 IVdEIANAD ~ SHITIddns 6TZC-T1Z-T0¥
00~ S0°%0T SNOILOHATH LAHdx*
00-° £€5°992C ¥advd - SHITAANS 62ZC-91-T0%
00~ SS°LYT dAIYM - SHILITILO 0TTZ-9T-T0%
00 YT EL HNVAONd /SYD TVANIVN - SHEILITIILO 602C-9T-T0%
00° 06°62C INIVH INZWAINOE - S$SIOYALNOD £02Z-9T-TO0¥
00" v Sis8 HONVNHLNIVH XHETIAWOD TY¥IDIAN, LAHT *
00~ 91 %S¢C YEdVd - SdIT4dANs 6T2C-ST-10%
[ S90° 662 NALS/ATING-SUIVATE ¥ EONYNILNIVRH STZC-ST-T0%
00° 0L°90¢ YHILYM - SEILITILO 0TZZ-ST-TO0%
00" Z9°08 ENYIOId/S¥D TVENIYN - SHILITIIA 6022-SI-T0%
00" 82704 INIVH LNENGINOH - SIOVALNOD £€0TT-ST-T0%
00~ 787088 NYNIINIVW SEDIAJL0 HATLLVILSINIWAY prcicie P
00~ 0T 8ST SEOIA¥ES VIHILO - ILIVALNOD TLTT-0T-10%
00" 99°0ST HDIAJA0 TVIENED -~ SHITIANS 6T22-0T-T0%
00" 0973902 IOVLSOd 902Z~0T1-T0¥%
00° V6 L68 INIVW LNIWNIINDE - SLOYVALNOD €02CZ-0T-TO0%
00-° S7 71T THNg HIOTIHHEA - SHEITAANS Z022~-0T-10%
00" SL°LZ8'T YHDENTYN ALNOOCD LG »
00" 00" %92 SHIXOTANE - THAVEL S02Z-80-T0%
00~ 98°498¢ SEIDIHAA - SIIVITA ¥ FDNUNFINIVIN 102Z-80-T0%
00" 987629 DNINOZ »® ODNINNVIA IIHAx »
00" 00°0LE STIOIHAA - SYIVATY ¥ HONYNILNIVI T0Z22-S0-T0¥
00° 00°0LE NOISSTWWODS ALNOROD LAHTx +
00~ 687650762 aNNg TYIENAD TYLOL * x
00" 6L°T€EL'89C’ T

SLITEED

SLIgHEd
020Z2/9T/60 NO CQHLNI¥J

ONILSIT MOFHD NOILZNEgIJILSIACa LSG:9C L 0Z/8T1/6

ro3ea



00~ 00" 9L SHDTAYAS TYNOISSHIOEd - IOVILNOD ZLTZT-0S-T0%
G0~ 69°61% SWIEOJINA - SHEITAANS 9€2T-05-10%



00"
00°
00°
00"

9L ZI¥ 1304 ATOIHEA - SHITAANS 20Cc-16-80%
YT SLT'T INIWLOTTIV HIIA ALYLS LAdHA*
PITSLT'T dIn € LOTILSIA TYLOL* +
80°2v TENA HTDIHHEA - SHITAANS 202T-16-L0%
80°C% INAWLOTIY J3Id HIVLS IITd* *
80°C% ddn T LOTELSIA IYLOL» »
68°9¢ ANVIO¥d/S¥D TYIALYN - SHILITILO 60CC-T6~90%
€261 SNOILYOINNWRODITHL L0TZ-16-90%
0€°L0C THNA HTDIHAA - SHEITIANS Z022-16-90%
¥ ese INHWLOTIY HIIA HIYLS LIHA» #
Ty ESE CdA T IDOTIALSIA TYLOL# x
£€8°26¢€ UALVM - SHEITITILN 0TZZ-16-50%
<6 €9 INVIOUd/SYD TYENILYN - SHILITILA 60CC-T6-S0V
€Z2°61T SNOILVOINNWWODETAL LOZTZT-T6-S0¥
0% "9¢€9 TENA HTIDIHAA - SHITdANS 20CC-16-S0%
L670€9 SHIOTHHA - SYIVAEE ® HONUNITINIVH T0ZZ-T6-S07%
SETEFLT INANLOTIY AdId HIVLS IdHT* *
SETEPL'T adna s ILOIVLSIA IVLOL* +
SLTITE LT (S8T) 8T-5-dS 80%2-%9-20%
SLTTZE'LT LDErodd 45 LIHT » »
02 981 YLI¥YM - SHILITIILN 0IZc-19-20%
88°9S ANVYJO¥d /SYD IVIQLVYN - SATLITIIA 602Z-T19-207%
80°2%¢ dOHS a¥0d ALNNOD LIdHEd* %
Z8°30¢ ALFAYS - SHITIANS 8%22-09-20%
8T ST6'T AYANTHOVH-SATVATE 3 HONYNILNIYH v¥cZ-09-20%
0Z %1 HDIAA0 TVIIANAD - SHITIANS 61I22-09-20%
gg-ggz’e INHRLIVIAA 70d¥ XINNOD LAEd* +
€T°008°61T aANNg aEod TYLOL +
LT PSE SEDIAYES TUNOISSHEAOYd - ILIVALNOD €LTC-T8-T0Y
S6°6L ALEAVS - SHITIANS 8%CC-28-T0%
S¥ vee SHMOJAINN - SHAITIINS 9€2Z-28-T0%
LEPSE HOIAA0 IVEEANID - SHITdANS 6TCC-2T8-TO0¥%
9T°8tT YLIYM - SHILITIILN 0TZC-28~10%
00" %2 ANYE0dd/SYD IVENLYN - SEILITILA 6022-28-T0%
00°S% SNOTLVD INNWHODATEL L0TZ-28-T0%
96°LTE TE0d FIDIHAA - SHITIANS c0ce-28-T0¥%
90°8S5°T SEDIANAS TUWINY LAHd ¥ +
8T°TET SWEOJAINN - SEITJJNS 9ECC-99-T0%
TE 068°€T SEDIAYES LI - LOVIINCD €TZT-S99-10%
SL708T Ta0d dTIOIHEA - SHITAANS c0TT-599-10%
vZ 202'%T HDONVNHEINIYA 2 SNOILVIHJO IO
6T E€S0"T YHILYM - SEHILITIIN 0TcZ-£5~10%
00" %C ENVIO¥d /SYD TYEOLYN - SHILITILIA 602C-€9-TO0¥
6T LLO'T YI¥d ALNNOD IAHA
SLITEID SILI9d3d
0Z0Z/9T/60 NO QAINIAA DNILSIT MDIEHD NOIILINndgIdLsSIAa L9292 L 0z/91/6 :®¥3ed



00~ ST°0S ENVAONd /SVD TVEALYN - SIILITIIN 60CC-16-807%
00 ST 95T SNOTLLYOINAWWODHTEL L0ZZ-TA-80%



00° 90°TT1E’C TENd ITIOIHEA - SHITAANS 2022-vL-02%
00" 90°TTIE’T SYINOSTEd 40 NOIILYIIOISNVHEL LA %+
00" 29765 THNS FIOIHAA - SHITIANS 20cZ~-€L-02%
00- 99°6S ONIFOLINOW X.LINQWNOD IAHAx »
00" 9L %6 IVOTIAEN HALVRNI £€LTZ-0L-02%
00- 96" 6LL"SS SELVWNI 40 ¥VD CTLTT-0L-02%
00- ZL79L8°SS HIVD HLVWNI IINdy LATA* +
00" vV LPT 85 aNNg TIVD TELOL # *
00~ 297598 %1 SHII DNIEAIL ¥MSAZ 26C2-S0-617
00~ £9°998°%T NOISSIWHOD ZAILNNOD LAHT ¥+
00" 297998 %1 IDOYAELNOD VMSAH IVLOL* +
00° 88°1¢ ANYIOAE/SVD IYINLYN ~ SHILITILO 6022-16-8TV
00 697 L9 TE0T FTOIHIA -~ SHITIINS 2022-16-8T%
00" L5766 INIWLOTTY HITA FIVLS LAHT* *
00" LS 66 QdA 9 IDI¥ELSIA TYLOLx
(o 76 TTIE SHOTAYES ¥IHLO - LOVHELNOD TLZC-T6-€1I¥
00" 00°0zc DNISILIZACY/ONIHSITENd /DONTINI YA 1222-16-€17
00 €6°22T FILYM - STILIIILO 0TZZ-T6-€1%
00° 432 ENVAONd/SYD 'TYHIALYN - SHIIITILN 602Z-16-€T%
00" ST 5¢ SNOIIVDINNWNODITIAL L0ZC-T6-€T%
00" 827218 TEQA FTDIHEA - SdIAIANS 20CZ-16-€1¥
00° €9°I80°T SHTIDIHAA - SYIVIIE B HDNUYNHINIYNW 10Z2-TI6-€1¥
00~ 8876192 INFNLOTIV H¥Id HIV.LS IIHAT ¥
00" 88 6T9°C NINAY INIWIMVAEA AT TYLOL* =
00° vz 8eL’'T SEOIA¥ES JHEHIO - LOVILNOD TLTT-€5-2T¥
00- 0C°0IT DNISILIIATY/ONIHSIIGNd /ONTINIIS 1222-€9-21¥%
00- §9°G661 ONINVITO - SHITIANS 0Z22-€5-2T%
00- 68°€¥0’'T _IV¥I ALNAOD IdHT* »
00° 68°€v0’e AIYL AINNOD IVILOL+ »
00° 05789 SHDOIAYAS VFHILO - ILOWAINOD TLZZ-T6-T1T¥
00" 00 66%°C dTN0E /XT4/Ndna 8122-26-11¥%
00° 09°L9s’'2 XYL HSIDXH FIIA 3%/T LAHA > »
00~ 09°L95’2 aNOd NOILDHELOWd HITA XINAOD IVLOLx »
00" 0% LSS aTdId - §¥1714408 ZTCZ-0S-01¥
00° 0% " LSS JATHAHS ZLNAOD LI »
00~ 0% LSS aNOQJd NOILDILO¥d "H° T TELOL * +
00" €Z°61IT SNOILVOINQWWODHITAL LOCZ-T6-607%
00° €Z°6TIT INFHLOTTY HIIJ ILY.LS LdEAx >
00~ €T 61T aiIA ¥ LOI¥LSIA TELOL * +
00 LT ZTIT TEOIAEN - SHITIANS 0€CTZ-16-80¥%
00" 16 €%% UHILYM - SHILITILO 0ITC-16-80%
SIIATAD SIIg3d
0202/91/60 NO QHIINI¥A DNILSIT MOHEHD NOTITLnRNEgIYLS IA LS:9Z: L 0z/91/6 :23eq



SAFETY PROGRAM

2,853.67

**TOTAL



00" 07 €€0’T SADIAYES TUNOISSHAONd - ILOVIALINOD ZLZT-TL-0S9
00" 0% €€0'T AQIvod JFLYM IAHEA*»
00" 0% "€£0°T AdNLS YHLYM NISYE YIDNVISH TYLOL+ +
00" 6o s88°2 SHDINNAS TYNOCISSHIOEd - LOVILNOD TLTZ-L9-SE9
00° 00°s88’c 6TXd LNVID HDILSAL HIINIANL TAXD Ladddx+
00" 6% v€T SHDIAYES TUNOISSHAOY - IDVALNOD TLEZE~60-S€9
00" 6% PET IIId aNIM Ldddx»
00" 6% 6TT ¢ INVED EDILSNC TIINAAOND TYLOL « +
00" 00°000°S SINAWFAOYANT ¥ SONITIIING - OD T192-96-129
0o 00°000°S X1 SLIIADEY SSO¥D AYILOO TYLIAWD IdAA« *
00" 00°000°S XL SIAIHOEY SSO¥D AVILOO TYLIAYD TYLOL* *
00" LL7OTT'Z JINDE/XTA/NANT 8TZ2-¥6-029
00" LLTOTT'Z XL SIAdIEDEY SSO0¥D TANLONWLSVIINI IAAT* +
00" LL OTT 2 LD FINIDAILSYIAINI ZLNOOD TYLOL + +
00" 00°20S'%T SEDIAYUAS TYNOISSEICHd - LIOVELNOD ZLZZ-LT-9T9
00" 00°20S°'%T 6TAd INVYD VYDHAY LdTA* *
00" 00°205"%T INVED YOHIHE TYLOL + +
00" 00" %2 ADTIOLS ENTIHDOVH SNILOA 80€Z-02-219
00" 9% €9 INIVH INFWIINDE - SIOWALNOD €022-02-CTT9
00" 9% L8 AIATD ALNNOD IdETx+
00" 9% L8 aNNg ININGINOHE S AUATID TELOL * »
00- T0°2¢ TaNA FTOIHIEA - SHITAANS 20ZZ-0%-0T9
00" T0-2Z€ FOSSHSSY ALNOOD LdAC*+
00- T0 2ZE aNQd NOILYATYA ALYAJONd TYIOL % +
00" 0S"LEL ALAAVS - SHITAANS 8%ZZ-0€~609
6o 0S"LEL ATHNSYHAL AINOOD LIdHAA s+
00" 05 LEL 24 S, IEENSYHAL TELOL + #
00" ¥S°92T IDTAA0 TVIEINAD - STITAJNS 61TZ-2Z-S09
00" ¥5°92T 6TAA INVID TIVDOT IMQ LdHETx »
00" ¥5°92T aNNd WYEH0Id IMA TELOL * +
00" 80" GLE LE0D SNOILYDINAWHOD I¥ZZ-€8-%09
00" 8L STE TE0A JIDIHEA - SIITIANS 20ZZ-€8-%09
00" 987069 XYL SWH/SNOILYDINNWHOD LA« ¥
00" 98°069 ONNd ESNIIFA TIATID TELOL * *
00" L9°€s8’z ALIAVS - SHAIIZANS 8¥ZZ-90-009
00" L9°€58°2 INTNTOUNYH MSTA LAHTx *
SLIATUD SLIgEHEA

0Z0Z/9T/60 NO CQEINI¥A ONILSIT ¥D3HD NOILNEIVYLSIA LS9z L 0zZ/91/6 :°3ea



.00

RURAL ADDRESSING 2,458.02

**TOTAL

**DEPT

.00

2,458.02

RURAL ADDRESSING



00- 6L°T€EL 89T T *x STIYLOL JNVE «»

00" 6L°TEL 892 T JINVE S0 TOXANYE
00" 06°£06 ONINIVAL FIZOTINT 992Z~-98-T16
0o~ 06°€06 LINVED DNINIVIL ¥4d LA > »
00- 78°0ST NALS/QIING-SUIVATI ¥ TONYNILNIYH STZZ-08-TT6
60" I3 2724 ENVA0¥d /SO TYIALYN - STILITILA 602C-08-1T6
00- 65°€LT INIVH INIWNGINOE - SIOYILNOD €0TC-08-116
00- 81T°4¢ TENA FTOIHIA - SHITAANS 202Z-08-116
(¢Jo)e O 7Ly EINAD HOLYASIA-TIT6 prSicle s
00° Z6ETLLE'T aNOQE TT6-ADNIDIHN TELOL + %
00- TS 9L TS0'T SHIYWNI 40 YD TLTIZ-0L-STZ8
co- 1S vTL IS0 HEVD HLVWNI II00Y LIHT *
[eJo i T§°%ZL'TS0’¢E NEWEDIOANH SWOLSND ® NOILLVIDIWAT IVLOL * »
00 00°€85'6% SHTOIHAA DS SL0CC-6TY 0€92-65-€08
00" 00°€85'6% SLOEL0¥Ed AATLYISIOAT LIIA % #
00 00°€8576% SNOILVI¥OIddVY FATLVISIDIT TELOL* +
00-° S8 TI% ‘< INIVA ININGINDE - SIDTILNOD €0ZT-L0-SL9
00~ L1°9% TENA ATOTHEA - SHITIANS 20ZZ~L0-9LS

SLIAFTID SLIgHEd
0Z0Z/9T/60 NO QHINING ONILSTIT MDIEHD NOILNEgIYTYLSIA LG292: L 0Z/91/6 :®83eQ



HAIND ¥OLYIITIDVA

"ONI DNITIASNAOD TYNOIIDTIIOD

AR TAY
STTETT ¥ 10

0202TL0 HOI-OSDOLHHDIOANT
0202 ENOL JO4 SHLVWNI HDIT
40 DNISNOH d04 INIWASTNTWITHT

TS vZLTSO

"ONI DIAIDHYOD

HIYD HLVWNI LI0NdY

020Z/80/60
TS $ZLIS0T
YZIETT O 10

ZLETIOHADIOANT

TO000-9T-000-0L# VAMSHN
70000-9T-000-0L# YAMSHN

LATT FIVHD THHHM

HLIM NVA JYHONISSYd ST 0202

XV €¥0 MIAD NOL

Z/T 8A TO'S HIM 0ST-d QU0 0Z0T

“ONT

00" €8967%

‘qI0d SYHWIYHD

SIDAL0Yd FATLYISIDIT

0z0z/80/60
00°€8%6%
€CZIETT O 10

8V EZTHADIOANT

SIHDITHSYIA YEANOASHY LSHUII

WY'ID - ¥ALSTOH GNY Qd0D 9sn

8%CC-90-009 AYALLYE dSN 0S8T €S0 X-T1Z DVIOEA

96°8ZF%T

TONI Q04 SYAWTIVHD

LNINADUNYN MSIY

0Z0Z/80/60
S6°8Z¥%T
CTZIETIT ¥ 1O

€€TI8S ZTO# HDIOANT

XEATIWCD T¥IDIAND

INIOd SIHL ONOAFL TANNOSHHEA
JHZTIOHLAY ON VHIY JHIDINLSHN
HLIHM NO d3g/ADVIg
TEALS ¥D ¥Z AITANIA 2T

T16°8€T

"OLd SaTUVMY

INAWIDYNYN ASTH

020Z/80/60
I6°8€T
TZIETT A T0

COTOUOL#LODY ZTTELGHEDIOANT
ONITANYH NV ONIJATHS

QEY ANY MOvId

SYOTOD MNI € NOILVIWIOANT
NOIIDETH TYIEANID 0202
SHIOTEIANT AVINDIL 0T ON 009

G0°%0T

SHEHDOIANAS NOIIDHETHE JILYWOLOY

SNOILDATIHE

0z0z/80/60
SO0"¥0T
0ZTETIT ¥ 10

€798 #IDIOANT

YITTOTINOD AANSYHAAL
JOod LTIOVA NI NOILVISINOM

SHELSAS IDILI0 INOIANDACTY

LLTO0TTZ ¥ SS0¥D

FIANIONILSTIANT

020Z/80/60
LL OTTZ
6TTETIT A TO

LTLIG6ZZHIIOY 06685Z%01I6
HEIDIOANT HOUVHD IVWZYH SYDIIY
IVTId ADIVHOINS TaNd

34 LVId AYHEATTAC

0L8 ¥DD CHW VYA 4SSN NEDAXO

00°S 0£9se / / 6122-22~509
00°00T 0€9s5¢ 0Z0Z/£0/60 0ZE6ST 6122-22-509
TS %2TLISO0T 0Z0Z/€0/60 0TE60T ZLTZ-0L-52Z8

LO6%E

LO6WE
00 €8S6% LO6TE /7 0€9Z-65-€08

LO6WE

LO6YE

LO6FE

LO6FE 0zZ861Z

[A411

zZ95¢€
96 8Z¥%T Z229S€E 020Z/€0/60 0ZE68T

8995¢

895s¢

8996¢

899S¢
T6°8€T 899S¢€ 0Z0ZT/€0/60 0ZEG0T 8%2Z-90-009
00°ST LLSSE /7 6TCZ-TZ-10%

LL9SE

LLISE

LLI9SE
S0°68 LLOSE 020Z/€0/60 0ZE69T 6T2Z~TZ~T0¥
00°S% 9£95¢€ /7 812Z-%6-029

9€9GE
LL™ 8902 9£95¢€ 0Z0Z/€0/60 0ZEGHT 8TTZ-%6-029
00°12 / 7 0€2Z~T16-80%
0§° g /7 0€2Z-16-80%
SLT IV / 7 0€2Z-16-80%
z6° €V 020Z/€0/60 0ZEBZT 0€£Z2-16-80%

Junowy # 0d dI¥ad  # S0ToAUT wslI SUTT

T :abeg

uoT3dTInsaa

DNILSIT ADEHD

LT CTT

OT1 ¥SN SVONIY

(09DFHD)

SweN

0g€:9zZ:L

.HZMEBOQQ@ HII4 HIVLS

0z02/80/60
LT ZTT
8TTEIT O TI0

ALYAd #4D

0zZ/91/6 :33ea



6€°S 0eg9s¢e

61CZ~2Z-509 LEDNN
ST 9T 0€95¢

6TZZ-2Z-S09 ONITONVH ONV ONIJAIHS

~ O~
NN

aznz/|n/s0



00°S5¢ §895¢€ /7 T¥2Z-€8-709 TTYLSNI 0202/80/606
006 S899¢ / /7 TP2Z-€8-%09 HIVMAIYH ONILNOOW 807 §LE
00" Te §895¢€ 0Z0Z/€0/60 0ZE6ET T¥ZZ-€8-%09 (008 aN¥ 4HA) LIX YNNIINY SNOILLVDINNWWOD ALIVIDAIS E€ETETT A T0
29799 INIVW XITIWCD TYIDIANg 65759 NYNILNIVIH ® SNOILYAAJO PI g€ SHEDIAAC FATIILVALSINIWAY
C00L~-SS0S¥ /€007 -SS0SPHADIOANT
Z9°55 / 7/ £022-9T-T10% TYIDIANL. ¥04 SdOW ONV SIVH
ADIN 020z/80/60
65759 / / 9€TT-$9-T0%  VSSITYW/ATINY/NOSIILS SWIOIINA SE€°9ST
¥1°6¢ 0Z0Z/€0/60 0Z<66 €02C-ST-T0% NIRNGY ALNNOD SdOW ON¥ SIVR ATddNS TIYIdA0 TYIININII ZETETT O TO
06°8¢€8 INTID ONINIVIL YId
LT68I#IDIOANT
06" 0% S¥SSE / 9927-98-116 XYL SETIYS 6z0Z/80/60
jpAci=t YIAANS "L » dgam "M 06°8¢8
00" 86L SPSSE 0Z20Z/€0/60 0Z£69 99ZZ-98-116 HSANOD NOIILVOIAILIED WA ONI HNOHd JIMOd TETETT O 10
097909 YAOYNYIW XINNOD
826585100 0z02/80/60
#IDDY 898£06TTEEHIDIOANT 097909
097909 0Z0Z/€0/60 0ZEGE 902Z-0T~10% 020¢ IddS SEDUVYHD OHNISYIT "ONI SHMOY AINLIL OETETIT O 10
60-52 INYAD DNINIVIEL Vad
9002 TOLOSHIHTDIOANT 020Z/80/60
99€s¢ NOLONINNEI 00° sz
00°52 99¢€s¢E 0Z0Z/€0/60 0ZE6L 992Z-58-T16 *7 - ESNEDIT TYILINI dWI OYTENG SWA WN 6ZIEIT ¥ T0
¥ST9€Z  SEDILA0 AATIVILSINIWGY
6veESE EEHIDOY L08Z6CTHEDIOANT
67€SE (TZ0ZA4 ¥VEA TYOSIH LNIIEND) 0Z02/80/60
6%ESE SELIS SOHNIdTIING ALNAQOD ¥5°9¢g
S 9ge 6%€5€E 0Z0Z/€0/60 02E6TT STZZ-ST-10% TIY ¥0d LSINDTY 0 NEIO AVMTIVH AHINOMISOAL S.LI¥YH 8ZIETT ¥ 10
S 2S SHDIAIO0 HATIVIISINIWNIY
SZT#IDDV
VL8THZI 8S8TFZHADIOANI SUIHSYM
MOV Z/TIXO0T MNVISXAEN TYA A 0z0Z/80/60
SETI0E M09 T LSYITVYE DIUIDETA T ¥S ¢S
¥5°¢ZS 6L9S8¢ 0Z0Z/€0/60 0ZE6ELT STZZ-9T-T0% ‘ONIEWOTE ‘TYDINIDITH TOSIN TONI JYYMOYYH NILSOD LZTETT ¥ 10
00°0LE NOISSIWWOD ZALNAOD
S8ZTSEHADIOANT
00-0L€E L00SE / / T02Z-S0-T0% dd¥OSHE qi04 0Z0cT
Loose LISNYYL @I0d 6T0T
LOOSE 0STd Qu0d 6T0Z 0Z0Z/80/60
L0OOSE SHTOIHAA NIZILID WOINIS 00°0LE
L00SE ocgez YO DNIYHILLET/STUOAC ETIDIHAA SYALNTIE NIHTIDS MIIS NDOISHA 9CTETT O TO
7S 92T 6TAd INVID "TVYDOT IMA
08T ZHIDIOANT
Junowy # 0d HI¥A  # 90ToAuUX ws1I suIT uot3drInsag sweN FIYQ #3D
4 :abeg DNIISIT MDIHD (09DFHD) o€z 0z/9t/6 *@3ead



TLEQECTHADIOANT
80°0¢ S$8385¢€ /7 1%22-£8-%09 JOEYT NO XYL



9606000EHLODY 9SELELTOFSHADIOANT

0ZLSE SHHZILINVS
ozLSE ONVH X WJID SYINID A9 SINYS
0ZLSE DNICIING FALLVISINIWAY LINQOD 020z/0L/60
0ZLSE 0T€S SADATULLAYD By TET
¥ TEC 0ZLSE 0202/60/60 02669 8%22-90-009 TZES YASNIASIA Z "ON NOIIV¥0dJ0D SV.INID IPIETIT O IO
Z8°90€  INIWINVAEd QYO ALNOOD
DY LA#IDIOANT
6L5G¢€ DNIHSYM MOGQNIM d04 STIMOL JOHS
6LG5€ SHSSYID ALIAVS 020ZT/0T/60
6LSGSE TX % T W ‘S Z8°90¢
z8°90¢€ 6LSSE 0Z02/60/60 026691 8%22-09-20% SANOTD SSENISNE NOZYWYT OFIEIT O TO
8T ¥L INHERLOTIVY H¥IA FLVLIS
70DL
#IODY TOECEPNIHHDIOANTI XVI dOINHA 0z0z/0T/60
EDVIEAO 0Z0Z/TE/80 OL 020Z2/1I0/80 8T WL
8T %L 0Z02/60/60 0Z662E TLZZ-T6-E€1¥% JOd FOUVHD HOVIIAO LOVAINOD SIDNAO¥d HOVWI INTUINONGTY 6ETETT O IO
9% €9 MEETD ALNAOD
80DL# 0Z02/01/60
LODY €0EEPNIHEDIOANI 0Z/TE/80 OL 9% €9
9% €9 0202/60/60 0Z666T €022-02~Z19 02/T0/80 HOIVHD HOVIHAO ILOVALNOD SIONAoHd EOVWI IndIIndneiy 8€TETIT O IO
0L 9LL  INIWNIMYAAA VO AINOAOD
0z0z/80/60
TEOBBHIODVY 908VHIDIOANT 0L 9LL
oL SLL 8LESE 0Z0Z/E0/60 0TZL66T YPTT-09-T0% SIWVA ANV ‘SHDAE ONILIAD ‘ATVAHY ‘0D INIWAINOH AXNOYM LETETT ¥ TO
00°0% INVID DNINIVIL vad
S8HEIDITOANT 0202/80/60
L8%SE JATANS 00 0%
00°0% L8YGE 0Z0Z/€0/60 0zZE68 992Z-58-TT6 L OONV ggEM "M - ESUN0D ¥IDINTWINVAEA THIA AINAOCD EONVHNOL 9€TETIT O 1O
69°61T% J4TIITHS ALNROD
LS88TZ/LTHBTHADIOANT
TSPSE "SATEAN WHOIINN
ISPS€E TOSIM ANY 'SI009 ‘LNIEWRAINDT
I8%5¢€ 1739 AING ‘SAEATOH EOHAVL 0Z02/80/60
TS%SE ‘SINYd ‘SINIHS ‘SISHEA JIEINO 69°6T%
69°61% TSPSE 0Z0ZT/E0/60 0ZE6¥ 9€ZZ-0S-T0% STTIN WHOAINO 020z ATIAL SWIOAINA DTL SETETT O 10
00°5¢L JATIAHS AINOOD
9TLSEOdH#TIIOANT 0202/80/60
9TLSE 0SDL 401§ DIIIVIL 00°GL
00°SL 9TLSE 020Z/€0/60 0ZE6S ZLTT-0S-10% IM ¥0d MYIA QooTd ATYNOY ‘OIHDUNLS PELETT O 10O
80 SLE XYL SWH/SNOIIVDINAWAOD
Junouy # od dI¥Q  # SdTOoAUT wolI BUTT uot3drIossg [ureN 2IWA #3D
€ :abeag ONILSIT ¥DHHD (09DFHD) 0€:92:L 0Z/91/6 33eQ



P¥TTEC INHNIDYNYAN MSTH



Igegse NOILWYSNAIWOD 0C 19

00°T19 I8€SE 0Z02/60/60 02662% S02Z-80-10% ONILIIH qQUV0Od 234 WIL '1S0ud 6PTETT O TO
297 998%T NOISSIWWOD XZINOOD
0Z02/01/60
L¥S0000L60CLH#IODY 9S8THADIOANT Z9°598%T
ZT9°598%T 0Z02/0T/60 02662S T62Z-S0-61% SHII DNIAAIL AINAOD HONTIIOL ¥MSAT 8%PTEIT O TO
00°19 ONINOZ %R ONINNYIA
0202‘z Idds
08ESE HWAYHONG 1MV 020ZT/0T/60
08€S¢E NOILYSNAIHWOD 00°19
00° 19 08€5¢ 0T02/60/60 0Z66TY S022-80-T0% ONILEHAW TIY0LE Z%d 0202 WNHIIY ‘' HEWIYHOND LYIEIT O TO
09°89 XYL HSIOXH HdId %%/T
9S¥ZTZE690#I00Y 0202/0T/60
BTESTECTLLEHTDIOANT 0202 09°89
09°89 0T0Z/0T/60 0Z669S TLZ22-26-T1T% ISODNVY MOVd IDETHS SSENISNG TOTI ALDIEIA 9%TETIT O IO
$6°L68 YIDYNYH ALNOCD
8999TT0S-00SH#IODY ¥PSOTE6o# 0202/0T/60
TOIOANI 680688PH#HLIS 0202 LSNONY ¥6°L68
v6°L68 0Z0Z/60/60 026605 €022-0T-10% /RIN0 YATIOD WHOVNYM IOVEINCEDIANES TUTONYNTS NEANYT EOYVT Ha SPTETIT O TO
ZL"9L8SS TIVD ALVWANI IINAY
FONYEIOL/DIATD
FIODHLIOY 020280 JAADIH#TDTOANT
9g-ze / 7 €LTZ~0L~0ZF TYOIAIN HIVWNT
07" %9 / /7 ELIT-0L-02% IW ZIT HOVETIN LIOASNVIL TYOIAHEH 020Z/01/60
$6°122 / 7/ ZTLIZ-0L-0Z% SYNOH qavnd 2L 9L8SS
Z0°8SSSS 0202/60/60 0zZ66€Z ZLTIZ-0L-0Z% ONISNOH ALVHNI TONI DIAIDHUOD PPIETIT O 10
TE 068ET NYNIINIVA ® SNOILVIZAO
ALNOODEDNYINOL
H#IDDV T9990T-PZHADTOANT
PI9ESE TIV-Z0TD~9€0-LT
voese IDVIINOD SHD
1077101 v9ESE /7 €122-595-T0% SHXYL
VIESE [Tzoz/Te/8-0202/1/6 -aag]
¥9€5¢E dANI-0009d-dS NOIINILIY TNOTD
$9ESE ZLINTANI HLIM HDIANES ATAAODEY
$9€5€ YALSYSIA ANV dNYOVE FILATIHOD 020Z2/01/60
¥9€S¢E [NOIINZLEY QNOTD HLINTANT] TE 068ET
0€°9L82T Y9ESE 0202/60/60 02Z660% €122-59-10% (8L9) 00094 ¥SI¥IS WAS OIY ZSEDIANIS TUNOTIVOAGT HAILVEAIOOD €FTETIT O T0
0% LSS AITHIHS AINAOD
9606000¢€
#IDDV 0SZPLLTOVSHEDITOANT
087581 $59S¢ /7 222Z-05-01% SHAOTD TX 40 SHSYD 020z/0T/60
08°68T $595¢ /7 2222-0S-0T% SHAOTD HOWYT AC SHSYD 0%° LSS
087581 $595¢€ 020Z/60/60 026622 Z22Z-05-0T% SAAOTD WOICHAN SESYD Z "ON NOILVIOJHOD SYINID ZFIETT O 10
Junouy # 0d LY # SoTOAUT Wa1T SUTT uotadranseg sueN 2LYAd #10

4 s9beq ONILSIT JDIHD (09DEHD) 0g£:9Z:L 0zZ/91/6 :33eQ



T8ESE

020Z/20/60
LS0¥d WIL

0Z0Z/0T/60



0Z0Z/0T/60 0Z66SS

£022-08-1T6

090TPPIHIODY 6TCTECSTH
HDIOANI 0Z0Z/%T/80 HIVA JDIOANT

JANVE SSENISNG NI

020Z/01/60
6S°€LT
LSTETT

TIVH O 10

00719 ONINOZ = DNINNYTI
0202/20/60
€8ESE HONAT INTATHIVD 0Z02/0T/60
£8€S€E NOILYSNAIWOD 00°T9
00°19 £8ESE 0202/60/60 0Z66EW 502Z-80-10% ONILIAN GYY0S Z% ANTITHIVD ‘HONXT 9STETT © IO
00°S¥% SEDIANHES TYWINY
0Z0Z/01/60
0202 LSODAY HDIANIS LANIIINI 00°5%
00 5% 020Z/0T/60 0Z66%S L02T-28-T10¥% SHEDIAWHS TYWINY AINNOD IFONVIEOL ALl SADIAYES LANIIZINI 0H0T SSTEIT O 10
00°09S INFWLOTIV FUTJ ALYIS
M
8ET/9ZE0THIDOY 0T-9Z60 INHEDIOANT
91" 9¢ / 7 LOTT-T6~-ETY 0202 LSNONV NIWAY HNTd
€2 61T /7 L02Z-16-90% ain z ISIa
€Z°6TT /7 L0ZZ-T16-50% adA § ISIa
€Z°6TT / 7/ L0ZZ-T6-60% Qdn v ISIa 0202/0T/60
ada € IsIa 00°05S
ST 9ST 020Z/0T/60 0ZE6ES L0ZZ-16-80% LANYHINY F¥I4 AINOOD HONYIIOL QLT SHOIAYHES LINJHIINI OZ0T $STETT O IO
00°T9 ONINOZ % ONINNYId
0z0z/z0/60
78ESGE NOSMYT NYTIVH 02z0Z/0T/60
¥BESE NOILYSNAIWOD 00°19
00719 ¥8ESE 0202/60/60 0T66%% $02Z-80-T0% ONIIFEWN QUv0od Z%d NYTIYH ‘NOSMY'T £STETT O T0
00°52 IDILSAL ATINIANL TIAD
0202/01/60
POLSGE ONTLEEW (¥V0g DAXAE NI 00-52
00°s2 ¥0LSE 0Z02/60/60 0Z66TE ZLTT-19-S£9 NOIIVAIDIINV WO ANIAILS HINOX Yay¥Z ‘IIIVSYI ZSTEIT O 10
0% €€0T Qyvod WHIVM
0Z202/0T/60
Z0-80~0C#ADTOANT 0% €£0T
0% €€0T 0%SSE 0Z02Z/60/60 0Z668T ZTLZTZ-TL-0G9 TZAA Y04 ONIISEL TIATT TEALYM DTT SNOILNTOSHY O¥dAH TSTEIT O 10
86°6 SEDILI0 FAATIIVILSINIHAY
szt
#LOOY 8TLEVZHADIOANI NIJ HOLIH
INAE €°8/S HSN¥E ONIHSYMHSICQ
TZT FONYNIINIYW ONIQIIOE d04 020Z/0T/60
STTIHIDOY 8TEETZHADTOANT 86°6
86°6 6L95€E 0Z02/60/60 0T6E60T S122-ST-10% ‘ONIEWNTIE ' TIYOIEIDATE “OSIKW TONI ZIVMGEYH NILSND 0STETT © 10
00°T9 DNINOZ ® ODNINNYIL
Junouy # 0d 3I¥Q  # sotoaug welr SUIT uotadrinsaq swen FLYA #3D
s :2beg ONTILISIT MDTHD (09DHHD) 0€:92:L  02/91/6 :@3eqg



65 ¢LT YELNED HOIVASIG-TI6



TYL0P9SZHIDOY 8LTIBTZOT

¥870ST

¥8°0ST 0Z0Z/0T/60 0Z668S STZZ-08-116 #IOIOANI 0Z0Z IJES HDIAWHS Dd TONI NINHO 99TETT O 10
99°8TT INIVW XITAWOD TYIDIANr
0Z0Z/0T/60
Z880SSTEHIODY 8S0282Z0C 997811
99°8T1T 0Z0Z/0T/60 0T66LS €02Z-9T-10% #EIDIOANT 0202 IddS FADTIANIES Od TONI NIN¥O S9TETT O 10
00-00€ YIVE ALNAOD
00THHEDIOANT
9Z¢SSE ANITINO ¥IA - HADOVITIWN ON 020Z/0T/60
9ZSSE A¥1100d/S1Igav 00°00¢€
00°00¢€ 9ZSS¢E 020Z/60/60 026687 TLTE-€5-CT¥ FDANL ADOLSHATT NATIINYWR ‘LYAON ¥9TEIT O 10
00° 0§ SHDIANIS TYWINY
0Z0Z/0T/60
SEE6DHLODY L96ZZOTHASYOHADIOANT 00708
000§ 6%55¢ 02Z0Z/60/60 0Z668 CLTT-T8-T0% ONILSHL SHIEVY ¥04 SNOIILVIIAVOIA AC SINIDZE ‘OSHN €9TETIT O TO
00-S€€E dI¥A ALNNOD
69 T8LHADIOANT 0zZ0Z/0T/60
68s5¢ YIVA ALNOOD HONVYIOL 0Z0Z 00°5€€
00°sg¢g 685S€E 02Z0T/60/60 02Z66T 0IZZ-€£5-1I0% JOod JANIVINOD OX 0f AJ0 IT0N DNI HDIANIS HISYM HN Z9TETIT O IO
Z¥T9TT NID JOINHS ¥IVYNIVINQOW
STLT#IDOY 0Z0Z/0T/60
Z8° sz /7 6022-LZ-T0% 0Z0Z LISNONV SYD Ty 91T
09706 02Z0ZT/60/60 0ZT66TS 01Z2-LZ~T0% YILVM SEDOYVHD XTHINOW A0 NMOL ‘¥IVNIVINOOW I9IEIT O 10
8% 0198 IDALOYd 4§
LZTOOTHIDOOY
£€995¢€ €970S-9CP0SHADIOANT NI VSE¥EL 45
€995¢ 696ST-LT-S08-0L YVAMSHN 0Z0Z/0T/60
89 %19 £995¢ /7 80%Z-%9-20% X¥1 HIVLS 8% 0T98
08°566L €995¢ 0Z02/60/60 0Z66LT 80%C-%9-20% SdTHD HONI Z/T A0 SNOL SIDNA0¥Ed TALHIDONOD ALIVIFOW 08TETT O TO
LZ TILE LDEL0¥d ds
L2200T
z99S5¢ #IDDVY STHOSHIDIOANI NI YNVQ 4S
2995¢ 696ST-LT-508-0L VIMSHN 0202/01/60
L8°TZ9 z995¢ /7 80¥%Z-%9-20% XYL FLYLS LZ TTLS
0%" 6808 z99s5¢ 020Z/60/60 0Z66SZ 80%Z-%9-20% SATHO HONI Z/T SNOL SIDNA0IE HLFIDONOD ALIVI™LOW 6STEIT O 10
¥V LS8 JYI¥A ALNAOD
00 THEDIOANT
LTSSE 020z ‘zT 1sn9nv
¥¥ LSS LZSSE / TLET-€S-TI¥ HEOVATIN dId1anod 0Z0z/0T/60
LTSSE SEWYT ANY SIV0D VLS8
60-00€ L2SS¢ 0Z0Z/60/60 0Z669% ILZE-€S~2T¥ EDANL ADOLSHATT SETIVHD ‘TIIODH 8STETT O IO
Junowy # 0d HITQ # soTOAUT Wwa3I SUIT uotidransag aweN FIYA -]
9 :obed DNILSIT ADTAHD (09D8HD) 0€:9Z:L 0Z/91/6 :33eQ



78051 TIINED HOLYASIA-TT6

0zoz/01/60



0L9LSSO0ST/TLOLSSOSTHIDIOANT

Z9°§8S /7 €02Z-91-10% TYIDIANS ¥04 SdOW ANV SLYR
ADIN 020Z/0T/60
657599 / /7 9€£TZ-99-T0% VSSIUYW/ATHYY/NOSIIALS SWIOAINN SE°9ST
FT°S€E 020Z/60/60 0Z66TT €02Z-ST-T0% NIWOY ALNOOD SdOW ANY SIVHW ATddNS TIVIHAO TYILNIANID ELTIETT O IO
£€5°¥%9¢ INIVH XIT4WOD TYIDIANS
0878ZS9#IIDY ZLOLSSOSTHAIDIOANT 0Z0Z/0T/60
STLSE (:008) STAMOL TICY TIVH £¥66 £59°¥9¢C
£€5°%9¢ SCTLSE 020Z/60/60 0Z66L 62CC-9T-10% IYIDIAND 04 SIDNAodd ¥HAVA XIddns TIVIIAO TIVIINIINId CLTETIT O 10
0% %1€ SHADIATAS TYNINY
TSSP9T JHAWNN
VITIOHIDOY 9LZTLEVTHIDTIOANT
S6°0T L6SS¢E /7 8%2Z-¢8-T107% ONIdATHS
L699¢E SIOHS
00°69 LE6SSE 0zZ02/60/60 0Z66LE 8%22-28-T0% MIOM INVLSISHY JdITS ® JALVM AIVI
059721 JIIWAN
FIACIOHLIOV ZTIELEFTHHEDIOANT
S6°8T T855¢E /o 9eTT-Z8~10% ONIddIHS
00°6L z884G¢€ /7 9€CZ-28-T0¥ TX SdOL 90308 0Z02/01/60
05" S% Z8SS¢E /7 9€ZZ-T8-T0% IXZ Sd0L INIdd WAIWZA 0% vIt
00°T6 T8SS€E 020z/60/60 0T669¢ 9ECC-T8-T0% fIXZ 5d04 dNdds ANVAROD TIIVEAY TYNOISSHIOUd TLTETIT O TO
00°20SPT 6TAd INVID YOHJIH
0Z-TINLHIDIOANT HANSVHW
00°000L /7 TLZT-LT-9T9 SHLEEGYIA ¥O04 TZO0ZAA VOHIY DHAW 0z0Z/01/60
SNOILYJIEd0 RIIVA 00°2Z0S%T
00-zosL 020Z/60/60 0TE6E6E TLZT-LT-9TS O0ZOT'ATIAL WO TZOZAS ¥OHAY DHAW SIDIAYES TIYOIAEW NYIIELAGSHIS OLTETT O T0
08°08S dI¥4d AILNQGCD
OO THADTOANT
STSSE 0Z0Z ‘€I LSNONY 0Z0Z/0T/60
08°082 SZSS¢E /7 TLTZ-€5-217% HOVATIN dIILANNOY 08°089
00°00€E SZSSE 0202/60/60 0Z66LY TLZ2-£5-21y dTLLYD - dDd0r MDOLSHATT NOIVY “JOLvA¥d 69TCTT O IO
9€ %501 LNENIOYNYR ST
30
-0SPLTE00#ILODY 86968S90H#IDIOANT
98796 £295¢€ /7 8%22-90-069 DONITIONVH aNV¥ DNIAJIHS
€295¢ YEASNYIL L¥IH - QOHLIIEW INIIIWI
£€29S5¢€ NEEHD LHOIY - NOILVOOT INIJI4dWI
£295¢ HLTHM - ¥OTOD INIYdWI 0Z0Z/0T/60
00°s¢ €Z98¢ /7 8¥CC-30-009 JADVTIE - AOTOD I2NA0¥d HEDUVHD 9€°¥S0T
057226 €29S¢ 020Z/60/60 0Z66TT 8%2Z-90-009 dN-13S ATd-¢ MSYW HOVI :0THEM SNOILOWOYd HAILISOd 89TETIT O TO
9678 YADUNVIN ALNOCD
0z0zZ/0T/60
6PLTIVTEHIOOY LSOZTBTTOZHIDIOANT 96°%8
96°¥8 0Z02/0T/60 026665 TLZZ-0T-T0¥ 0202 Id3S HADIAYHES Dd TONI NINYO L9TETT O TO
Junowy # 04 q€Iv¥a # SDTOAUT WS3I SUTT EOﬂUQHHumwQ [weN arva #MD
L :abeg DNILSIT ¥DIHD (09DHHD) 0€:9¢: L oz/91/6 By =la)



T9° 59 INIVA XETIWOD T¥IDIANPD 65799 NYNHINIVHA ¥ SNOILVIEZAO 1" S¢E SHDIIA0 AATLILVILSINIWAY



6899¢
6895¢
689S¢
689G¢
6895¢€

020Z/60/60

8zgae

0Z0Z/60/60

88PELLESYIZATOOOD S ¥ANOLSND
ID0S59d9 :"ITHAOW 88%ELE WALI

T69S¢
1695¢

/o
0202/60/60

[I§

02z0Z/60/60

80¥S¢

0Z0Z/60/60

6E9S¢T
6€£99¢E
6€9G¢E
6€£95¢
6€£99¢
6€95¢E

020Z/60/60 02667

6¥%4¢
T675¢
1678¢
T6¥S€E
T6vS¢€

NN N
NN N

m

969G¢€
96399¢
9695¢€
9695¢€
969S¢€

# 0d

0Z0Z/60/60 0266Z1

HIYA # 90ToAUT

HSYD TTHO00T INVS WYOd INYISNI

SLATLNO-8 0Z0Z/0T/60
‘gsn /M ¥OILDALO™E ITDANS ¥ 86 6LT
8TZZT-6%-T0¥% dN-MDVd AWALLVE 0SS SdN-MOVH DAV HOYINYAQY SSENISNG SHIIYLS T8TETT O IO
£€6°€9 FIINSYILL ALNOOD
8ZODH#LODOY
€0LYPYHIDIOANI 0Z0Z/80/60 0Z0Z/0T/60
OL 0Z0Z/60/80 d04 SHADVHEIAAD £€6°€9
TZZZ-0€-T0¥% d04 LED ¥ SHEOVIIAO JEISOD SHILSAS Ad0D LSHAMHINOS 08TETIT O 10
00-02e INAWIOTTY HIId HLIVLS
€6 TOHHADIOANT 02Z0Z/0T/60
TCTT-16-€1¥ ZIHDONVS ¥04 SO¥V¥D SSANISNE 005 00-¢czce
TCTC-16-E1¥ AYVYD ¥04 STI¥D SSANISNd 00§ LSHM HYOANYNIHS 6LTETT O 10
LT 9% ODNISSHEAAY TYInd
0Z0Z/0T/60
£€826-I54D LT 9%
c0eTZT-L0-SLS #IOIOANTI DNISSTUACAY "TVINY/THNI O ‘WNATIONIAS XADVYINIS S8LTETT O TI0
9L LET ININLOTTIY H3IJd JLYLS
0Z/T€/80 OL 0202/T0/80 S6LT0000H 0z0Z/0T/60
#IDDVY 0S89ZF00ANT#EDIOANT SLTLET
TLZZ-T6-€TY MOHEHD GNNO¥DNOVE ¥ ONINCLINOW Td ‘ONI ‘SONIQIOH VEWYS LLTETIT O TO
00°66%2 XYL ESIDXHE H¥IL 3%/1
07SOCHLOOY I8998#HDIOANT
SWYEE~D «¥ OL JINILSYS DNINOOTS
JOOMATd «%/€ ‘MDOT JFANITAD
HANDEAS ‘YOOd dN-T70d TAXLS 19X, 9
‘IHOTHH . GX.L ‘ILEHEI FEVNOS 0Z0Z/0T/60
00T ’‘NOLILDO¥IS.INOD IHALS TIY 00°66%C
8ICZ-26-T1¥ ONIQTINE FOVIOLS S TIX,:8 TONI ADYANT YYAONEY 9LTIETIT O IO
$9°G6T dIY¥4 ALNOOD
89€%SSOSVHEDIOANT
0ZeT-€95-21i% HDIVHD AdAAITHEA
0Z22-€S-21% a8% X «E€F SWANIT HSVIL
0222-¢S-21% THO00T WYOS TYINEIOVILINY 0Z0zZ/0T/60
YHZILINVS WYOd INVISNI ¥ASNHEISIA S9°S6T
A7dd08 TIVIIAO TVILNIQQAd SLTEIT O 10

08%8ZHIHIDOY 7O0LSSOSTHEDIOANT
NOILVALSININGY ALNNOD

NHFIDS TUNI¥N SZ66

STHEMOL TI0Y JI¥H €%¥%6

ANSSTIIE TIOY OgWQLr T066

6TTZ-ST-T0% NIWAY ALNNOD dOL SIDNA0Ud YAAVI

wojT U] uotadriossg

ONILSIT MDEHD

S1°¥s¢ SEDIAL0 FATLVILSINTWAY

0Z0Z/0T/60
91°%s2
ATddNS TIVIEAO TVILNZANId PLIETT O TO
suweN JLYa #ID

(09DEHD) 0€:92:L  02Z/91/6 :o3ed



86 6LT NOIILVALSININAY INVID

6P8Y6CHIDODVY TT90SE6TSTEHIDIOANT



00ss¢ SAINTd 440 d0L NOILVLOA 0Z0T/0T/60
CET¥EY 00SS5¢ / 1022-T6-€1% HNIL ‘Wd ‘SHIVIE ‘4N ANAL TETTEY
0058¢€ 0Z66S¢E Ry ers ONI DWD LATOIATHD ZJITIIL 68TETT O TO
L670€9 INIWLOTIV HIATA HIV.LS
ZT/SYEZ909-T/SPETI0IHIDIOANT
§965¢ T¥ogYl ANV JEIILA ¥IV ‘SHITAANS
§999¢ dOHS ‘SEYIL HILVIOY ANV FDONVIVE 0Z02/0T/60
L6°0€9 S98S¢€ / T022Z-T6-50% ‘TIO ‘¥HINI4 TdNd TAATONI OL W L6°0€9
S95S¢ 0Z660¢€ Z-S HSNdd ONI DD LATOIAFHD AJITIIL 88IELTIT O 10
SL”9S INIWLOTIV J¥YI4 HIVLS
T/Z66T909#IDTIOANT
v8vse NOILVIOY HJIL ‘SaINTd 440
¥875¢€ dOL ONV JALTIA TIO “IALITI JI¥ 0z0zZ/0T/60
9L S8 ¥8%9¢€ /7 TOCZ-16-€1% ‘0T I¥YN0 ¢ ‘¥FELIIA TIO HEnNT SL*SS
¥8%SE 02666C La4d ONI OHWD LFTIOYATHD A¥ITIIL L8TETT O 10
G5 169 ININLOTTY JdId HLVLS
T8SSE Z/%2E€T909-T/YZETI09HADIOANI D/¥
T859¢ NO JIVdE/DILSONOVIA ANT 0Z0Z/0T/60
1859¢ HONVYNALNIVA FAILVINZATEI S5°T69
55°16S T8SSE 0202/60/60 0ZT668T T0CZ-T6-€TY cad ONI DHD2 LITOIATHD AJHETIIL 98IELTIT O 10
S8°TTI%C DNISSHACAY TvINd
100686 7AOLHLODY 0Z0Z/0T/60
PTTTOCCONNHIDIOANT HLINS S8 TIvC
S8 ITve 0Z0Z/60/60 0Z66ET £€022-L0-SLS YIATIING TADAVYL HONUYNILNIVI ANVANOD TTAMIIS HHL S8TEIT O 10
997081 EHDYNVN ALNNOD
6786 EHIDDY OTLZELESHE
CITPLIESVE/SOETSEESHEHADTIOANT
0% L 1655¢€ /7 6TCZ-0T-T0% SdITD YIANIE IDUYT 0202/01/60
87 0L T6SS€E /7 61CZ-0T-10% LIY JALSYD 997041
8L°2L T6SSE 0202/60/60 0Z660Y 61Z2-0T-T0¥ YOLYNIWYT TVWIHHL EDVINVAQY SSENISNE SATJVLS ¥8IETT O 1I0
LET¥SE SHDIANAS TYWINY
$8560710L
TYAH#IIOY ¥8E60TPSYEHTDOIOANT
8% 6T £5999¢ /7 6TZZ-T8-10% HONNG ITOH €
86°90¢C £595¢ /7 6122-28-T0% LAYO dHMTEA L
€e 8T €5995¢ /7 6122-28-T0% X3ao10d
08" % £€8995¢ /7 6T2Z-28~-10% SQUYD XIAOTOE SEDAOVA 020Z/0T/60
¥8°IT £995¢€ /7 6TTT-T8-T0% QI¥D XHUOTOW INEIVINVAL STOWVIOVA LE ¥SE
¥6° 56 £€595¢ 020Z/60/60 0Z668¢E 6122-28-10% LISANVH INOHI HOHIA FOVINVAQY SSANISNE SHIIVLS £€8TETT O T0
0C 9T INHNILIVIEA qYOd ALNOOD
EVOSTZYSYEHTDIOANT 0zZ0Z/0T/60
0Tsse TSHEIJAEVHS 0T %1
0z %L 0Z3s¢ 0Z0Z/60/60 0T66ST 6T22-039-207% THEANVETD MOANIM ‘SOVE HSVHL ADVINVAQY SSANISNE STIAYILIS Z8ILTT O 10
Junouy # 04 ALYd # 9oTOAUL Wa3I SUTI uotadriossag SweN HIYAd #3ID
6 :obeg DNILSIT ¥DIHD (09DFHD) o0g:g9c:L 0zZ/91/6 :33®%a



CETTEY INIWLOTIY J¥Td HIVLS

Z/620Z909-T/6Z02909#IDTOANT



H#ADIOANT DIHE/SNOILYDIQAN/SLISIA LT ¥0¢E
LT°%0¢€ 0Z0Z/60/60 0Z666 TLZZ-T8-T07 HWDIAAO T SNOILVZITIVWALS TIVWS € "ONI AYYNIYALEA STIVIL NAILSTM S6TETT O TO

S1°8¢€T SADTAYIES TVWINY YL 9€8 INFWLOTIY JIId HIVILIS

0Z0Z/92/80 HLVA HDIOANI ALIYIIYOW

Q¥ NONNYD TdY¥D ¥¥ SHOIA¥ES

£€8°2Z6¢ / 0TZZ-16-5S0% JJdA S ISIC YOI SHEHIVHD IYALSIWNG
0202/92/80 Ei¥d HDIOANT

TEL NOISSIW II¥YS TSL SHEDIA¥ES

ST°8¢€T /7 0TZe-28-T10% IVWRINY Y04 SHADIAVHD YALSIWNA
0202/92/80 ALVA HDITOANT 0Z0Z/01/60
TIL NOISSIW I7I¥S €SL SHOIAJHES 06°7L6
T6 €97 0Z0Z/0T/60 026609 0TZZ-T6-80F ddA € LSIA Y04 SHDUVHD ¥ALSIWNC "ONI WN 40 INIWZOUNVHN ZISVYM Y6TETT O TO
85 8ETT INHWINYIAA a¥Od ALNQOD
v€088 020Z/0T/60
H#IDDV TLPI-€LTS-TLI9HADIOANT 85 8ETT
85°8E€TT BLESE 0Z0Z/60/60 0ZTE6LT PPZ2-09-20% SLYVA ANV 'SIEDHCAE HDNILLOD ‘IIVvadEy TO0D INFHIINOHE AANOYM €6TETT O T0
6% YET IIId ONIM 06°038¢ HOLLSNL HIINIAND TIZD

SHIDTOANI XYL

6% vET / ZL2Z-60~S€9 SI4AIEDEY SSO¥D 0z0Z ‘TE€-T LISNONY 0Z0Z/0T/60
YOLYNIQIO0D 6v"¥60¢€
00°098¢C 0Z02/60/60 0Z66%E CLTT-L9-SE£9 WAONTLNOD HDILSAL HATIINEAND OTI INZWJIOTHIATT ® SHEWOH YIA C6TEIT ¥ 10
8L STg XYL SWH/SNOILYDINQAWWOD 96 LzE SHOIAYHAS TTVHWINY 8T ST FELNIAD HOLVASIA-TIT6
SL°081 NVNALNIVAH ® SNOILW¥HJAO 98°§8¢ DNINOZ ® SDNINNVIA T0 2¢ ¥0SSESSY ALNNOD
ST PI YHDYNVYH ALNNOD L6°STT YHINSYALL ALNAOD 29769 DNI¥OLINOW ALINOWRWOD
TS 8L0C INFWLOTIY JIId HIV.LS 90°TTIEC SI¥d A0 NOIIVIIOdSNYAIL S0°€€€9 AATIAHS ALNDOD

TE8LESSSSTES69GSHIDOY

8L STE /7 2022-£8-%09 YIADEYNYN ADNIDITWNH

967 LZE / 7/ 202Z-28-T0% SHDIAYES TVYHINY

8T ST /7 €022-08-116 HOLY4SIa

SLT08T /7 20Z2-59-T0% 840

987982 / 7/ T022-80-T0% zd

T0°Z¢ / 7/ c0ZZ-07-0T9 SYOSSHSSY

SY YT /7 20ZT-0T-10% HIDTNVI 04 TINIA ATANSYIIL

L6°9TT / Z2022-0€-T0¥ THINSVHAL

99769 / 7/ Z0cT-€L-0T% ONIYOLINOW DINOIEILDITH

82218 / c0TZ-16-C1% NINQY HIIdA

69° LS /7 Z202Z-16-81% dan 9 ISIda

0¥ -9¢s / 2022-16-907% agn § LSId

SLTZTY / 7/ Z022-16~80% gan € ISIa

0E"L0TC /7 c0ZZ-16-90% ain 2 I5Ia

80°2v% / Z202Z2-16-L0% aqIa I LSIa/TIEng 02Z0Z/01/60

90" TTIET / 7/ Z02Z-%L-02% LIOaSNTIL ¥z 180CT

S0-€cg9 020Z/01/60 026619 2022-0S-10% AATIFAES/THNI 0202 LSNONY/AINNALSAS INIHIYI HIVIOIEOD MNVL SN T6TETT O TI0

TT €L YHOVYNYN ALNOOD
0Z0Z/0T/60
STPETI080020ZH#IDIOANT 71 €L

TL €L T0PS¢E 020Z/60/60 026692 TLZZ-0T-TO0% MDHEHD ANNOUDMDVE INIWAOTIWZ-FId ONINIHIDS ANNOYDNOVE TYSUYHAING 06TETT O 1O

Junowy # 0d AI¥A  # 90TOAUT WS3T SUTT uotadraoseq smey HIVA $310

0t cobed DNILSIT MDHEHD (09DHEHD) 0€:92:L 0zZ/9T/6 :e3eQ



LI %0€ SADIAYAS TYWINY

SEZHIDDVY T¥6SST 0Z0Z/0T/60



L8°9¢ / /7 602Z-T9-20% 000-069S5-0THOVOI/ONITIIE S¥D S6°SLT
76" %€ 0Z02Z/ST/60 0ZST6S 6022-T6-€1% ATHINOW T00-0%IS-0T#/NINAY HJTA NOIIVIDOSSY S¥D MWH 2¢ZeTT O 10
00" %2 SHOIAYHS TYNINY TI1°69 INSWLOTIV 914 HIWLS 29708 SHDIAAO HAILVILSINIRAY
S1-92 / / 602Z-16-80% 000-06€ES-09#/QdA € ISIA
00°%2 /7 60ZZ-Z8-10% 0T0-08S0-09#SADIANIAS TYHINY
96" 2¢ /7 60ZZ-T6-50¥ 000-0TS¥-TL#/QIA S ISIA 0Z0Z/ST/60
020T HSNOHILINOD ELTEET
29 08 0202/S1/60 02ST16% 6022-ST-T0% 000-0S8I-OT#/ONITIIE SYD ISNOHAY NOIIVIDOSSY S¥D MWH SEZETT O TOo
00°%Z INAWLOTIY H¥Id FLVLIS
A ARTA INIVIW XIIdWOD IY¥IDIANL 00° %2 AJETIO ALNNOD T0 6T dOHS davod ALNNOD
00° %2 /7 602Z-16-80% 000~0S26-09#/QdA € ISIQ
T EL / 7/ 6022-9T-T0% 000-000S-0T#/I¥IDIAND
co"%Z /7 80¢€C-02-219 000-08E9-0T#/ONILOA/JIIFTD 0202/ST/60
0Z0Z 000- S¥T0ST
T0°62 020Z/ST/60 0ZSI6E 602Z-19-20% 098T-0T#/QY0¥ ONITIIE S¥D ISNOAY NOIIVIDOSSY SYD MWA PEZETT O TO
99-zZs INIVH DATE 1dId HITVIH
¥Z %S GHALNED JOINHS YIDNYISH TT LS AINHD JOINIS XIAYIVOW C0"%C JIVE ALNOCD
g89-zs /7 6022-9Z-T0% 0T0-066T-0T#/IdHC HLIVIH
Y2 %S / 6022-39¢-T0% 0T0-0L8S-0TH#/SHd VIDNVISE
0TO- 020Z/ST/60
TT LS / 7/ 60ZZ-LE-T0% 0E€EZT-0C#/DS ALIYIIOW/ONITIIE SYD T0 86T
Q0 %<T 020Z/S1/60 02SI6T 60C2-€5-T0% XATHINOW 000-060%-0T#/Qdv0d ¥IVA NOILVIDOSSY SVD MWE €€ZETT O IO
00°0TT FIVS ALNNOCD
SNOISHIDOV 8¥8#HIDIOANT
9T95€ NOIS ISYIJON0D J0J SHAYLIS JHLS
919S¢ ONIHHELLAT TANIA HATIIDITITT
919S¢E HLIM NDIS ISVIZO¥E0D u8IXu¥®Z
919s¢ DONIFHLLEAT TANIA
9TSS¢E HLIM NDIS LSYId0E0D w8IXu¥Z
9T9G¢€ SLAWAOED ANV ONINILLET
00709 9T9Ss¢E / 7 TZTZ-C€S-2T% 'IANIA HLIM YENNVE HITHM w09XuSE
919%8¢ SLAWNOYD ANV OHNITILLET
00°0S ST9SE /7 12Z2-€9-2T% ‘TANIA HLIM YINNVE HLIHEM #09XaS¢ 0202/%T/60
ST39s¢C SLIANHKO™ED O00°0TT
9195¢ 0261879 HLIM ¥INNVE JEINI¥d s09Xu0€ 0T NDISHANSNDIS 86TETT O T0
0070005 ¥ SSO¥D AVILNO IVLIAYD
TSLSEHEDTOANT
SE0L8 ALMYINOW 99 Id SO L08Z 0Z0Z/%1/60
I¥ LOT ONY ONIQIINSE TYT¥LSONANT 00°000S
0070005 020Z/%1/60 02Z%I6T TIT92-96-129 40 HESYHDUAd ¥0J AINOW ILSENIVI ANVAWOD HILIL 2I7dNddd 10 L6ETCTT O TO
057 LEL FHINSTHAL ZLNOOD
TLLESHIDIOANI
0§°2Ss z89sE 7/ 8%2Z-0€-609 HAHATS DNOT I¥IHS OTIOd S NIW 020Z/0T/60
00°¢€%C Z8399¢ / 7/ 8%ZZ-0€-609 SIMIHS OTI0d S:NIW 0GTLEL
00~ CP%Y T89S¢ 0202/60/60 0T66S5% 8%CCT-0€-609 SI¥IHS 0104 SHIAYT "ONI SOIHAVID YIZ S96TETT O TO
junouwy # 0d HI¥d  # SOToAUT wa3I JUTT uotidransag sweN qI¥A #3D
1 1obea DNIISIT ¥DFHD (09D03HD) 0€:9Z:L  02/951/6 :9%eq



96°0€
A 44

6022-16-S0% 000-0€ETS-TL#/AIA § ISIA
6022-08-1T16 000-0€S6-09#/HDIVASIA/0Z0Z 0zZoT/ST/60

~
NN



TYLOL /7 6L°TELBIZZ 98

0L790¢ S§H3I440 HAIIVILSININAY

027981 dOHS a¥0od AILNOOD LT 86 LINIVH D18 IdHC3 HITVAH 62°8TL AI¥L ALNOOD

80 LTT YALNED ¥OINIS VYIDNYISH S5 LYT INIVH XIEIdWOD “IYIDIANC £€6°221T ANFWLOTIV HIIA HLVLS
oL"90T /7 0TCZ-9T-T0% CITT#H/NIWIY
027981 /7 01ZZ-19-207% 80TT#/IdHd QYOA
Tc TLe / 0T2C2-£5-10% 0SL#/Quvod JIvd
LT 86 /7 0TZZ-92-107 €LE#/IAEA HITYHH
80°9% /7 0TZZ-€5-T0% Tez#/Quvod dIVE
80°LIT /7 0TCZ-9€-T0¥ 6vZH# /08 VIDNYISH
S5°LYT /7 0TCZ-91-10% 0%#/TYIDIAND

NIRAY JEId 0Z0Z/ST/60
08ETHLOOY 020Z/2T/80-0202/S9T/LO 207 L69T

€6°22T 020Z/ST/60 0ZSTI6T 0TZZ-16-€1I¥ EDIAYES 40 dHLYA TII9 ATHLNOW J0 NMOL ‘VIDNYLSH LEZETT O TO

a2 YILNED HOLVASIA-TI6 L8792 dOHS d¥0d ALNQCD L9 P2T INENLOTIV J¥I4 HILVLS
68792 /7 602C-16-90¥ 000-089€~0L#/TIN T ISIA
88°1¢ /7 602Z-1T6-81% 000-0050-0€#/0AdA 9 LSIC

junowy # 0d qIV@  # sdTOAUT walI QUTT uot3drInssq SWeN HIVA #10

zT :abeg ONILSIT ADIHD (09DHHD) og:ge:L 0z/91/6 :®ed



Agenda Item
No. 9-B



Torrance County

Planning & Zoning
PO Box 48
205 9" Street
Estancia, NM 87016
(505) 544-4390 Muain Line (505) 384-5294 Fax
WWW. forrancecountynm.org

Report
P&Z Board Recommendation September 2, 2020 Public Hearing
Regarding Pattern Energy Group, LP Special Use Application
Gen-Tie Project

Dear Commissioners,

On September 2, 2020 the Torrance County Planning & Zoning Board conducted a Public Hearing in
accordance with Section 24 of the Torrance County Zoning Ordinance (the Ordinance). The subject of
the hearing was the application for a Special Use change in zoning for Pattern Energy Group, LP, and
it’s subsidiary companies for the development of an electrical transmission line and facilities known as
the “Gen-Tie” project to interconnect facilities of the Corona Wind and Clines-Corners Wind projects to
the Western Spirit and Sun Zia Transmission Projects. County Attorney John Butrick swore in all
persons who testified during the public hearing. Remote participation was available via Zoom and audio
teleconferencing as advertised in the public notice letters and the meeting agenda. There were no remote
participants in this meeting,

The subject propetties are described as the N2 Section 15, T.5N., R.12E. NMPM, Lands of Delma E,
Prather Rev. Trust, Sections or portions of Sections 22, 23, 26, 27, 33, 34,35 TAN,, R.12E., NMPM,
and Gov’t. Lots 1-4, the S2 N2 Section 3, T.3N., R.12E. NMPM, Lands of Dwight E. Luna, the NE4,
N2 SE4 of Section 24, T.3N., R.12E., the W2 SE4 Section 18, the W2, the W2 NE4 of Section 19,
T.3N.,, R.I3E. NMPM less & except parcel 1073015060216000000 in T.3N., R.13E. NMPM, lands of
Monte & Kelly Pounds.

The Board through means of a roll call vote were unanimous in a “Do Pass” recommendation as
follows:

Harlan Lawson; Do Pass.
Jim Frost; Do Pass,
Cathy Lynch; Do Pass.
Art DuCharme; Do Pass.

The fourteen (14) day limitation for appeal of the P&Z Board’s decision is September 16, 2020 in
accordance with Section 25(B) of the Ordinance. After the Appeal period is concluded, provided no
Appeal application is received, the item will appear on the County Commission consent agenda for the



September 23 regular meeting of the Board of County Commissioners at which time the BOCC shall act
to uphold, overturn, or remand the decision to the Zonin g Board in accordance with Section 24(F) of the

Ordinance.

Respectfully,

SEN,
Steven J. Guetschow, CFM
Planning & Zoning Director




TORRANCE COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING BOARD
MINUTES
Commission Chambers ~ Administrative Offices 205 S 9th Street Estancia New Mexico 87016

REGULAR MEETING
September 2, 2020

ATTENDANCE
Attendees had the option of attending in person, via teleconference call, or via Zoom video conferencing,

In attendance were:: Chairman Harlan Lawson, Vice Chairwoman Catherine Lynch Board Members Jim Frost and Art
DuCharme. County Attorney John Butrick, Planning & Zoning Director Steye
Administrative Assistant Don Goen. Board Member Gail Langell was no

CALL TO ORDER
Chairman Lawson called the meeting to order at 9:36 a.m.
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Chairman Lawson asked if anyone had signed up for publi
signed up. Chairman Lawson explained that if the1r comme
came up would be the appropriate time to state th

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Chairman Lawson presented the meeting agenda
approve. Vice Chairwoman Lynch.sec

Chairman Lawson began th
Frost: Aye, Chairman Harl

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairwoman Catherine Lynch: Aye, Art Ducharme: Aye, Jim
favor. Motion carried.

Action Items:

1. Claim of Exemption # 13: La ision

Applicant:  Wimmer & Noles

Agent: Lorenzo Dominguez, East Mountain Surveying

Site: The Northerly 80 acres of the tract comprised of the SE 4, S2NE4 of Section 30 and the N2
Section 31, T.7N., R.8E., NMPM.

Zone: AP-5, Agricultural Preservation, 5 acre minimum

Chairman Lawson introduced the item. Mr. Lorenzo Dominguez came forward and was sworn, He explained
the purpose of the application and access to the proposed parcels. Chairman Lawson asked for comments in favor of or
opposition to the item. Hearing none he asked Staff for comment. Mr. Guetschow explained the proposed land division
and referred to the corrected plat provided to the Board this morning. The plat appeared to meet the County and State
standards for Title 12.



They were asking for the hard surface areas for inventory and they had stopped bringing in additional inventory.
They hadn’t moved anything waiting to find out what areas they would be able to use.

County Attorney John Butrick explained that what he thought she was referring to was that Code Enforcement
Officer Dan DeCosta had been in contact with the Van Leeuwen’s attorney in regards to speedy trial deadlines.

Vice Chairwoman Lynch stated that she didn’t see how the Board could approve something under public notice
meetings that was not noticed to the public. County Attorney John Butrick asked what size the additional area
was. Mr. Guetschow explained that according to the notations the Van Leeuwen’s had made the tennis court was
347 acres and the L8 area was 1.85 acres. He explained that he agreed with Chairman Lawson. The trees along the
south side provided a good screening. In previous actions for salvage yards, if a natural barrier was present that
concealed the materials, had been accepted by previous Boards. Chairman Lawson asked the Board, if in the
future, the Van Leeuwen’s were to come before the Board to add the additional areas would there be objection. He
made it clear that a decision could not be made and that he was trying to get a sense of the Board’s opinion. There
were no objections at present. In his opinion today’s decision should be in regards to the 9.91 acres applied for.
Chairman Lawson asked for a motion. Discussion took place in regards to conditions being placed, the court case,
time line, the special use application, another survey, and disposition of the materials on the tennis court. Vice
Chairwoman Lynch made a motion to approve Action Item 5 with contingency of some form of privacy screen.
Mr. DuCharme seconded. .

Chairman Lawson began the roll call vote with Vice Chairwoman Catherine Lynch: Aye, Art Ducharme:
Aye, Jim Frost: Aye, Chairman Harlan Lawson: Aye. All in favor. Motion carried.

Recess of the Planning & Zoning regular business meeting at 11:20am.
Public Hearing in session at 11:45am. =

6. Public Hearing: Special Use change in zoning :

Applicant: Ancho Wind, LLC, Cowboy Mesa, LLC, Duran Mesa, LLC, Pattern SC Holdings, LLC, Red
Cloud Wind, LLC, Tecolote Wind, LLC, Viento Loco, LLC, & Clines Corners Wind Farm, LLC
being subsidiaries of Pattern Energy Group, LP.

Agent: Adam Cernea Clark, Pattern Energy Group, LP.

Site: N2 Section 15, T.5N., R.12E. NMPM, Lands of Delma E.Prather Rev. Trust, Sections or
portions of Sections 22, 23, 26,27,33,34,35T.4N., R.12E., NMPM, and GoV't. Lots 1-4,
the S2 N2 Section 3, T.3N., R.12E. NMPM, Lands of Dwight E. Luna, the NE4, N2 SE4 of
Section 24, T.3N., R.12E., the W2 SE4 Section 18, the W2, the W2 NE4 of Section 19,
T.3N,, R.13E. NMPM less & except parcel 1073015060216000000 in T.3N., R. 13E.
NMPM '

Zone: A, Agricultural

Chairman Lawson introduced the item. He asked County Attorney John Butrick for administrative comments on

how the public hearing would be conducted. County Attorney John Butrick explained that this was a Public Hearing
for Action Item 6. The applicant would have the opportunity to provide an opening statement, and then provide testimony.
All of this would be under oath. Once testimony was provided, anyone, whether that was members of the public, members
of the Board, or anyone else via Zoom or teleconference, were able to ask questions, cross examine based on that
testimony. Then one would have the opportunity to provide testimony in response to the cross examination. At that point
anyone in opposition would have the opportunity to provide an opening statement, provide their testimony, and then be
open to cross examination. Board members can ask any questions as well. After all testimony was provided, each side, if
there were two sides, were able to give a closing statement. Mr. Adam Cernea-Clark was sworn in. He explained that
they were on the cusp of starting construction. They had been working with the County for several years including
Zoning, road use agreements, and IRB’s. Construction would begin within a few months.



During the process of optimizing the projects Pattern had acquired the Clines Corners Wind farm. Some adjustments had
to be made to the transmission line lay out. That had entailed the three properties that were under review today for zoning
changes, the Pounds, Prather, and Luna properties. This would allow them to consolidate infrastructure better and get all
of these projects connected to the Western Spirit Transmission project. Mr. Jeremy Turner was sworn in. He explained
that he was the Director of New Mexico Project Development with Pattern Energy. He referred to slide two of the hand
out. They wanted to give a more holistic view of what they were doing. On slide two there were four separate L1.C’s,
Clines Corners, Duran Mesa, Tecolote, and Red Cloud. These are each of the four wind farms that were now referred to as
Western Spirit Wind. Those were what made up this first phase, How those got out, he referred to the map on the right,
was really the Western Spirit Transmission line. This project had been underway for about ten years. It was owned by the
New Mexico Transmission Authority. Pattern was the co-developer on that project. This was how all that power was
getting out and what would ultimately interconnect these wind farms. He referred to page three. This showed greater
detail and the location of each of these wind farms. Those lines coming out of'each of these wind farms were the Gen-Tie
lines that would be getting in to the Western Spirit transmission project. Hé ined that they were looking at
approximately 1050 megawatts in the first phase. About 890 of that wo located in Torrance County. That was really
the premise of what they had going on. From a timing perspective, tki oking at getting into full mobilization this
fall. These would all be constructed by the end of next year. By )
would be fully built and operational. Mr. Cernea-Clark wanté
projects, which included the Duran Mesa, Red Cloud and
projects, were approved in November 2018. The Clines C

tching station that was associated with the
iously been approved. Eyverything was
“had Clines Corners listed. One of the

either within the special use district or these three p
properties was associated with the G

icilities. His understanding was that
se these were part of wind projects that
portions of that transmission that were
al and largely adjacent to other Special Use districts.

about six miles altogether. The lan
He thought they all wer ,
more efficient desi ere the els that were the subject of the approval. They had

done many of tf ‘thatth A i yeen briefed on. Cultural surveys and a lot on the voluntary
side that was nof typi

“and US Fish & Wildlife. They were following the process that
<ing additional steps. For example assessing potential collision risk with birds

there were no high risk areas. There.we as that had been identified as medium or medium low risk that they were
unilaterally installing bird diverterso ferred to slide seven, on the southern parcel was where the majority of the
bird diverters would be used. This was 6 serve company best practice. Mr. Turner referred to slide eleven. This was to
highlight what had happened since the beginning of the year. Pattern had selected Blatner Energy as the prime contractor
for the construction of the wind farm. They were chosen based on past history, on other projects with Pattern, FAA
permits had been obtained. The Industrial Revenue Bonds with the County had been finalized in June. A road use
agreement had been finalized. Some State land leases and right of ways still had to be finalized. He anticipated these
would be finalized in September. The goal was full mobilization in the fourth quarter of this year, Turbines would begin
to be delivered to the County in November. He repeated that the intent was to be fully operational by the fourth quarter of
next year. Mr. Cernea-Clark explained that they went through the PRC process, which they had now done twice for
these projects. Over the course of that they had worked with the Claunch Pinto Soil Water Conservation District, New
Mexico Forestry and State Lands office and developed, he thought, really robust and very specific best [inaudible]
practices on the environmental side. Particularly erosion controls, restoration, minimizing impacts on water resources
whether protected or not. These have been fed in to their construction contracts as things they had to do.



With projects this complex there were overlapping obligations from different sources, so they have more exacting and
specific standards that he thought were innovative. They would have construction compliance monitoring on all of those
things to make sure the contractors were doing what they could over the course of construction. Mr. Turner explained
that Pattern was not just the developer, they were also owner-operators. They were here for the long term. He referred to
slide twelve, repeated agreements, and developments. Emergency response and fire safety planning were of critical
importance. Delivery of final project details site facility plans, as built surveys, boundaries on GIS, and other details in the
IRB’s that Pattern had to provide certifications for name plate capacity. County Attorney John Butrick opened the
session to the general public, also attendees via teleconference or Zoom, for questions addressed to Mr. Turner or Mr.
Cernea-Clark. There were none and he asked the Board for questions or comments. Mr. Ducharme explained that today a
Special Use change in zoning was being considered. He asked if Variances for Tower Height and other considerations
needed to be addressed first. Mr. Guetschow was sworn, He explained that with wind projects variances for height on
the turbines were part the approval of the SU. Additional permits for the Operations and maintenance buildings would be
required, land development permits from the County as well as the buildin its from the State. It had been occurring
with the Western Spirit line, where they were preparing lay down yar lacing construction trailers, they were
having hard utility drops rather than operating from portable generat of Union requirements. Planning &
Zoning was requiring them to obtain mobile home permits for se they were going to be at those
locations for over a year during the course of the project. M he owners of the current
transmission line were. Mr. Cernea-Clark said he believs r. DuCharme asked for
clarification that additional lines would be constructed to t a-Clark explained that was
correct. Existing power lines were not interacting with the win where the load was, and
were independent of the existing lines. Mr. Tu ot impacted by the project
and they were not interconnecting with them né
on the Western Spirit transmission line, a separate 5 eRenewable Transmission Authority, Mr. Cernea-
Clark explained that each turbine had a buried low: : i

substation. The low voltage lines were tied in to the fe
the overhead 345 Gen-Tie line systeri
of that and were small pieces of |
above ground. Mr. Ducharme
to the grid, was there a local bene
but was bringing in ou

as Tri-State or Cent

tch yard. These three parcels were part
. The lines would be about ninety feet

or. He also asked when the power went in
‘urner explained Blatner was looking to hire some local

purchase power that was ined, but at present all contracts were with out of state entities.
Mr. Ducharme asked if they - were i ith Central New Mexico Electric Co-op. Mr. Turner explained they were
5 nsmission lines but thought that was the extent of it. There had not been

) ‘Mr. Cernea-Clark explained that he expected they would be buying what
was called back feed power from th p for running “O&M” and so forth, rather than selling to them. Mr. Guetschow
explained to the Board that the handouts he had given them earlier were excerpts from the application package. In the
second section was an excerpt from the environmental report showing the overall transmission line and the relationship to
the salt lakes. The additional pages had the details of the towers, actually poles, which would be utilized for the
transmission lines. Vice Chairwoman Lynch explained that especially the community north of Corona had concerns
about the turbines and the lighting, and the stopping of blades with radar. People had stated that they had not been able to
get information on the project. The website was two years out of date. What specifically, was happening with those two
[inaudible]. Mr. Cernea-Clark explained the technology was ADLS, Aircraft Detection Line System. This allowed them
to keep the FAA lighting off unless there was something in the air space, he thought within twenty miles or so. Vice
Chairwoman Lynch stated so you are going ahead with that. Mr. Cernea-Clark explained in yes in principal. Pattern
had made the financial commitment, and were planning and budgeting for it actively trying to get the land. It was
complicated when topography was considered. 100% coverage was needed, not 99.98%. Logistics were being addressed.
Ultimately it was contingent on approval from the FAA.



Mr. Turner explained that there were several web sites that were being consolidated. The new web site was
patternenergynewmexico.com. It was a holistic look at everything Pattern had going on in the State, with more
information available on the stage of each specific project, There was a link under regulatory that would take you to the
PRC application and submitted documentation. Vice Chair Lynch explained she had seen the documentation and it was
two years out of date. Mr. Turner explained that the time line on the web site gave better information as to when they
were mobilizing. If they had contact information Pattern had sent out information to Landowner groups in that area and
had recently sent an update letter. He was going to provide his business card and requested that he be contacted so that
information could be shared. An effort was being made to have more effective communication with the public so that they
were aware and had a better sense of when materials were coming in, when they could expect to see construction crews in
the area. Vice Chairwoman Lynch mentioned that the blasting disrupted her computer systems. She explained that 100
permanent jobs had been mentioned. Was that in both Lincoln and Torrance. Mr. Turner explained that was correct. He
referenced slide three. Those jobs would be to operate the wind farms in all thtee counties. The map showed the majority
of the megawatts were in Torrance. Mr. Cernea-Clark explained that th ” building in Clines Corners and the
three southern projects were in Torrance County. The “O&M” emplo to be within a certain distance. Scaling the
amount of megawatts for Torrance should provide an estimate of the of operational jobs in the county. Vice
Chairwoman Lynch explained in the appendices [inaudible] S
had been referenced in one of the appendices, she couldn’t rend
they disappeared. They were a really important migratory pa
Cernea-Clark explained that typically where cranes were
not a lot of water resources in this area. They were absolutely
bird diverters. Mr. DuCharme stated that periodi

from MET towers. He asked if this would be d¢
Mexico was starting to train more wind technicia
to hire locally. At the same time those folks woul
they would become part of the local
Community College, which has a wi

alysis as to placement of
vlace, and data collection
ark explained that New
ore technical than linemen, that were easier
h they were not from the local community,

d been working with Mesa Lands

¢ graduating class a couple of years ago
to Moriarty. Mr. DuCharme asked if they
ers at several locations inside, and outside
her 3000 megawatts of power. County Attorney John

work with Mesa Lands while still in high school. Many of
hat age. They wanted people they were working with to be older and in

wson that he had noticed earlier that when Mr. DuCharme spoke
not facing him, and it appeared Chairman Lawson wanted to make a
Attorney John Butrick, that as a point of order, Board members be
. This would prevent members speaking over each other or cutting each other
off. County Attorney John Butrick d. Chairman Lawson asked Mr. Turner to recount what the Energy Company
was providing to the Torrance County as payback, long term. Mr. Turner believed Chairman Lawson was referring to the
Industrial Revenue Bonds. What they had agreed to with the county was $2800.00 per megawatt of name plate installed
capacity. For 890 megawatts would be nearly 2.5 million. Chairman Lawson asked if that information was included on
the website. Mr. Turner didn’t think it was. He would double check. There was a statement about the amount going to
local communities and school districts, but that was an aggregate amount that included Guadalupe and Lincoln Counties.
For a point of reference based on Torrance County and the negotiation, Pattern had agreed with the other counties as well,
that if Torrance County received a higher payment, the other counties would receive that higher amount as well. So across
the board all three counties would receive $2800.00 per megawatt for the first phase. Mr. DuCharme asked if that was a
one time or annual disbursement. Mr. Turner explained that was an annual payment during the life of the Industrial
Revenue Bonds. Chairman Lawson asked if that was a 30 year bond. Mr. Turner asked County Attorney John
Butrick if it was 25 or 30 year. They both thought 30 year. Chairman Lawson asked if there were any further questions
from the Board.

recognized by the Chair prior to®



County Attorney John Butrick opened the hearing for testimony from anyone in the public, attending via
teleconference, or via Zoom. He began by referring to the Hearing Sign in list. Michael Goff was called. He stated from
the bench that he was an associate of Mr. Clark and Mr. Turner and had nothing to add. County Attorney John Butrick
ask him to clarify that he did not wish to testify. Mr. Goff stated he did not want to testify. Dwight Luna was called.
There was no response. Pat Luna was called. There was no response. Jim Berlier was called. Mr. Berlier came forward
and was sworn. Mr. Berlier stated that he encouraged the Board’s support for this zoning change. Transmission had been
holding these projects up. This would bring more economic development to the County. It would allow ag lands to remain
ag. This would prevent lands being sold a part at time and being bought by huge corporate ranchers or becoming
subdivisions. Schools would benefit along with local job creation, and economic development in general. He knew two of
the “O&M” people real well on the wind farm south of Willard. One lived in McIntosh and the other in Moriarty. These
were local jobs that would remain local jobs. County Attorney John Butrick provided Mr. Cernea-Clark and Mr. Turner
the opportunity to comment on Mr. Berlier’s comments, Mr. Cernea-Clark thanked Mr. Berlier for his support. County
Attorney John Butrick asked if there was anyone in the audience that wi 0 comment on Mr. Berlier’s testimony.
Mr. Guetschow asked if it would be appropriate because as staff he tried ceep a neutral position, but as a citizen of the
county from the City of Moriarty. County Attorney John Butrick s bsolutely, Mr. Guetschow explained that
he agreed with Mr. Berlier’s testimony. In the travels on his jo
ranchers, the land owners, were actually able to operate cattle.
from the wind companies. Ranching was the basis of the ¢
appreciated by the land owners. County Attorney John B

the antelope. Mr. Berlier commented that you
hear a lot of people bad mouthing the wind farm =wildlife off. He had been working cattle at the
wind farm by Laguna. He had pictures of bull elk st

The may move off for a short time d

-a*‘do pass” or did the Board formally
1 the new process. The County

ng period for the appeal process. The Commission

d a reason that they didn’t agree with the Board’s
Butrick explained there was one more name on the list

ement if they chose. Mr. Cernea-Clark thanked the Board for their
t'thé next stage and looked forward to working with the Commission and

pictures of the elk by the towe iis would help to eliminate some of the opposition because people were just
not aware of what was really goi y should show some of the road development they had done. Finally
something about the revenue bond on there as well. Mr. Turner commented point well taken. He would review the
information on the website. Mr. DuCharme made a motion to approve Action Item 6, Special Use district. Mr. Frost
seconded.

Chairman Lawson began the roll call vote with Vice Chairwoman Catherine Lynch: Aye, Art Ducharme:
Aye, Jim Frost: Aye, Chairman Harlan Lawson: Aye. All in favor. Motion carried.

Public Hearing adjourned 12:32pm
Planning & Zoning regular meeting resumed

County Attorney John Butrick asked for confirmation that that there were no discussion items or Executive
session. Mr. Guetschow confirmed that was correct, no discussion items or Executive session.



It was determined that a motion for Action Item 6 was required while in regular session. Mr. Guetschow explained
that Item 6 was the Special Use District for Pattern Wind.

Mr. DuCharme made a motion to approve Action Item 6, Special Use District. Vice Chairwoman Lynch seconded.

Chairman Lawson began the roll call vote with Vice Chairwoman Catherine Lynch: Aye, Art Ducharme:
Aye, Jim Frost: Aye, Chairman Harlan Lawson: Aye. All in favor. Motion carried.

Discussion Items:

Pursuant to New Mexico State Statute Section 10-15-1 through 10-15- SA 1978), these issues can be addressed in

general. No decision can be rendered at this meeting.

Pursuant to New Mexico State Statute Section 10-15-1 through 10-15-4 ¢
No decision can be rendered at this meeting.

8), these issues can be addressed in general.

Executive Session:

As per Motion and Roll Call Vote, pursuant to New Mexico State St

the following matters will
be discussed in Closed Session: None .

ADJOURN

Having no more business, Cha ‘ice Chairwoman Lynch made a

motion to adjourn. Mr. DuCliarme secondee

Steve Guetschow, Planning & Zoning Director



€L NV 1NV
i B e % s€ Ve e ze 1e oY
g2l ez o€ 5z 9z e 9z 62 b Gi
M
wn
H poeem
m
<
= -
Z ac Le 0z 6l e
N N
ad ININI MNJ\-ZM , m.“r_n 2_“
9l L gL o
& L4 S 0 b
e ce A e s 9¢




oF o [ aF OF a av W | & o
AASAAS 3535 35S MSTS MSMS EREN TS AMSIE Al BT
oF o 55 i o 2 Kia 4 555 i
SN ECET] SN | MSEN TASAAN EEEL HEFH TREIN B HEAN
o ZEEE v 2 oF
TMNEE | ET ELER] NS MNTS
I
_OF §EE OF i v
oF o7 oF o5 &/ L G o oF oF
e 3535 3SARS S35
i
[ o5 OF
B EisE ES MRS3AN
Se-d¢ L
% [ %
g INTS ENES WMN=S
F o &F i
BITE o7 aF oF
o ELRES IEAE MSIS
EE 66 v ar or

&
9
&
)
:

-
)
-
!
i




16

21

20

ZW*N//r

12

13

|

30

THLVHOAN

PINOSWELLSRD ¢t} __ e

R R e e e e

36

i

11

14

3N 12E

23

26

35

10

15

22

27

34



~__¥2 | e ze 1.2 0z 61_1 7 €T
ﬁ. ]

m el 7l GL 91 Ll 8l llm_r .
= k
;| I\ [o S

I NE FLL-NE

0l 6 ) A A LL

4 G 9 L Z

be ze Le 9¢ ge

lze—L 8T 62 0g G2 9¢
2 Lz 0c 61 ve o7

el NY JLL N¥
Sl gl Ll gl 2L a
0l 6 g / Zl L
S 9 g 14 G 9 L z




~ BURNS \MEDONNELL. ‘

Application for Zoning Ordinance
Amendment for Special Use District and

Height Variance

Torrance Wind Projects

Cowboy Mesa LLC, Duran Mesa LLC, Red Cloud Wind LLC, Tecolote
Wind LLC, Viento Loco LLC
Project No. 101335

Final
8/8/2018

I\ -




Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Introduction

1.0 INTRODUCTION

Cowboy Mesa LLC, Duran Mesa LLC, Red Cloud Wind LLC, Tecolote Wind LLC, and Viento Loco
LLC are seeking a Zoning Ordinance Amendment for a Special Use District (SUD) and Height Variance
for development of the proposed portion of the Torrance Wind Projects (Projects) located in Torrance
County, approximately 0.08 miles east of the community of Duran, New Mexico. The Projects areas also

cover portions of neighboring Lincoln County and Guadalupe County. See Exhibit A, Projects Overview.

As planned, the Projects would include up to 600 wind turbines (within Torrance County) that are
generally aligned in north- to south-oriented rows spanning approximately 131,000 acres (within
Torrance County) of privately owned land north and south of State Highway (SH) 54 (see Exhibit A,
Projects Overview). Final locations of the proposed wind turbines would be dependent on the successful
collection and analysis of meteorological (MET) data from the area and the completion of appropriate
environmental, engineering, and design analyses. Additional infrastructure associated with the Projects
would include an electrical collection system connecting the turbines, up to five step-up/collection
substations, approximately 35 miles of 345-kilovolt (kV) transmission line (within Torrance County),
opetations and maintenance (O&M) buildings, and service roads. In its current design, the Projects would
have multiple access points on the north and south sides of State Highway 54, as shown in Exhibit A,
Projects Overview. The Projects would use County roads in some cases. However, the majority of access
roads are expected to be newly constructed on private land due to the remote; rural location of the
Projects. Approximately two percent of the Projects areas are anticipated to be used for infrastructure,
The remaining land (approximately 98 percent) would continue to be used for traditional land uses,

primarily ranching,

The Torrance Wind Projects’ construction schedule forecasts activity commencing in 2019 and
concluding by the end of 2020. The Torrance Wind Projects are anticipated to commence operations by
the end of 2020. The Projects are designed to provide clean renewable electricity for the regional electric
grid for the life of the Projects. For financial evaluation and contractual purposes, the facilities are
assumed to have a useful life of 30 years. The trend in the wind enetgy industry, however, has been to
“repowet” older wind energy projects by upgrading existing towers and other infrastructure with more
efficient turbines and related equipment. Based on today’s market for renewable power, it is likely that
the facilities will be upgraded with more efficient equipment and, therefore, could have a useful life for
much longer than 30 years. At such time, any additional permits would be obtained from Torrance

County, as required.

Pattern Energy LP 1-1 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Flnal Projects Sites, Legal Description

3.0 PROJECTS SITES, LEGAL DESCRIPTION

The Projects would be located on both state and private lands. The Applicants currently holds lease option
agreements with all of the private landowners within the Projects areas and have applied for leases with
the New Mexico State Lands Office. The Projects do not intend to install wind turbines or any other
related wind farm infrastructure on surface estates owned by the U.S. Government. See Exhibit A,
Projects Overview, and Exhibit B, Recorded Memos of Lease Agreements documenting the private lands

in the Projects to date.

Approximately 72 percent of the Projects areas are designated as Western Great Plains Shortgrass Prairie.
The remaining 28 percent of land cover in the Projects areas includes Southern Rocky Mountain Juniper
Woodland and Savanna (22.7 percent), Southern Rocky Mountain Pinyon-Juniper Woodland (2.7
percent), and Colorado Platean Mixed Low Sagebrush Shrubland (1.3 percent), Another 24 landcover
classes are present in the remaining Projects area, totaling 1.4 percent. See Exhibit C, Land Cover of the
Projects areas. The land within the Projects areas have historically been used as rangeland for ranching
activities, Ranch homes and residential areas are scattered sparsely throughout the Projects areas, The
community of Duran is the closest populated area, overlapping a portion of the northern boundary of the
Projects. Several other small towns are scattered throughout the county. Major state and federal properties
in the county include Manzano Mountains State Park and Cibola National Forest, and scattered U.S.
Bureau of Land Management lands. Assessor’s parcel map numbers of the Projects sites are indicated on
Exhibit D,

Pattern Energy LP 3-1 Burhs & McDonnell



Application for Zonling Ordinance Amendment Final Land Entitiement

4.0 LAND ENTITLEMENT

The Applicants have obtained lease agreements for all private landowners within the Projects areas, See
Exhibit B, Recorded Memos of Lease Agreements, and Exhibit E, Legal Land Descriptions. The
Applicants have rights to develop, construct, own, and operate wind energy facilities on the land included
in the leases and land descriptions, In certain few instances, the foregoing rights are currently under
negotiation and these lands included in the SUD in this application are characterized in Exhibit E, Legal
Land Desctiptions for Lands Under Negotiation. The Applicants request in this Application the inclusion
of these propetties in the SUD with the understanding that no activities by the Applicants can occur on
properties for which the Applicants have not secured rights to develop, construct, own, and operate wind
energy facilities on these lands. As described earlier, the Applicants have applied for state land leases

with the New Mexico State Lands Office,

Pattern Energy LP 4-1 Burns & McDonnsll



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Request for Zoning Amendmeant

5.0 REQUEST FOR ZONING AMENDMENT

The Applicants are seeking a Zoning Ordinance Amendment for a Special Use District and a Height

Variance for development of the Projects.

5.1  S8pecial Use District

A Special Use District is requested to develop the Projects within the Projects areas, See Exhibit B,
Recorded Memos of Lease Agreements, and Exhibit A, Projects Overview, for the private lands
(including the approximately 35 miles of transmission line within Torrance County) proposed for the

Special Use District,

5.2 Height Variance

The Applicants request a height variance for the installation of wind energy generation turbines up to

590 feet in height and up to 7 permanent MET assessment towers within Torrance County. The height of
the turbine towers, or “hub height” (height from the base of the tower to the center of the rotor hub on top
of tower), would be approximately 260 to 360 feet, The total turbine height (i.e., height at the highest
blade tip position) would be approximately 440 to 590 feet, The MET towers would be approximately
200 fect in height (See Exhibit G, Meteorological Tower Information).

Pattern Energy LP 5-1 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordlnance Amendment Final Projact Description

6.0 PROJECT DESCRIPTION

6.1  Wind Energy Facilities Description

The Projects will consist of up to 1,800 MW of wind power facilities and will be located within
approximately 131,000 acres of private and state land within Torrance County in New Mexico. As
previously described, the Applicants have applied for state land leases with the New Mexico State Lands
Office, To produce the desired energy, up to 600 wind turbines (within Torrance County) are anticipated,
with a nameplate capacity ranging from 2.3 to 3.0 MW. Each of the turbines will be connected by 34.5-
kV collection lines to new substations to be located within each of the Projects areas. The collection lines
will be buried underground unless local conditions make burial impracticable. A final determination of
the number of turbines to be used and the siting of the turbines, collection lines and generation Projects
substations will be made over time, and such information will be made available to the county. For a
preliminary layout of the i’rojects, refer to Exhibit A, Projects Overview and Exhibit F, Boundaries &
Facilities Map.

6.2 Site Suitability

A strong wind resource is an essential element in selecting the location of a wind project, as is the specific
turbine placement within a defined project boundary, Pattern’s senior management team has extensive
experience developing wind projects throughout the U.S., Burope, and Central America. Based on this
experience and by following guidelines established by the National Wind Coordinating Committee, the
American Wind Energy Association, and the European Wind Energy Association, Pattern has developed

a comprehensive and practical methodology for selecting wind project sites.

In addition to the strong essential wind resources that were identified in the Totrance County area, these
Projects were sited within this particular region for a number of additional reasons. Pattern Development
has identified numerous advantages with siting the Torrance Wind Projects within this County, These

advantages include the following:

*  Assist in meeting local policy objectives within the Torrance County Zoning Ordinance and
Comprehensive Land Use Plan to increase contributions through renewable energy resources

* No adverse impacts on air quality of the region from operation of the Projects —to the extent that
power generated by the facilities displaces fossil-fuel based energy generation sources, it would
contribute to the improvement of the region’s air quality

¢ Provide economic opportunities associated with clean, renewable electric generation to a region,

which does not currently participate significantly in this economic sector. Private landowners

Pattern Energy LP 6-1 Burns & McDonnel!



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Flnal Project Description

would receive economic benefit from wind lease agreement payments while retaining compatible
land uses (ranching), The County and local schools will also receive economic benefits through
internal revenue bonds / PILT structure, The land lease and easement agreements with the private
landowners on which the wind generation facilities would be sited would provide direct new

revenues to landowners within the footprint of development,

In applying this methodology to the Projects, Pattern has established the site suitability criteria and

placement and configuration criteria discussed in the following subsections.

6.21  Adequate Wind Resources

Determining the adequacy of wind is a detailed, iterative process that includes evaluation of wind maps
(See Exhibit H, New Mexico Wind Resource Map), detailed modeling, and onsite data generated by MET
towers., Adequacy of wind is not merely a function of wind speeds, but also of wind speed stability and
consistency, wind direction and directional variability, seasonal and daily variability, wind shear, and
turbulence potentially imparted by topographical features, Locations that produce adequate wind speeds

(quantity) may prove to be inadequate due to the quality of the wind resoutce.

The process of evaluating a potential site and determining the expected production of a wind project can
often take several years to complete. The MET data collection process can also take several years and

would occur throughout the life of a wind project.

Preliminary MET towers are strategically located in representative locations within a project area fo
determine the scope and range of the wind resource. Following the collection of at least 1 year of MET
data, a turbine layout is designed by the lead meteorologist for the project. The turbine layout is optimized
for energy efficiency according to available land, wind direction, and wind speed. Stringent setbacks are
applied between turbines to prevent detrimental wake effects on nearby turbines, The layout is then
optimized using state-of-the-art wind modeling computer software to obtain the highest possible energy

yield while maintaining appropriate setbacks.

The Projects areas are suitable for a utility-scale wind project, as determined by MET data collected since
2007 from the existing MET towers. There are currently 16 MET towers and 3 remote sensing devices
located in the Torrance County Projects area, and these continue to collect data. All of the MET towers
within the entire Projects areas are currently temporary, During construction, the temporary towers will be
removed and up to 7 permanent MET towers will be installed to measure the wind when the Projects are
operating. Preliminary estimates from the collected data over the 11-year period suggest that the Projects

areas have an excellent wind resource to support utility-scale wind energy facilities.

Pattern Energy LP 6-2 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Project Description

6.2.2 Transmission Access

Existing and proposed transmission lines (100-kV or above) in the vicinity of the Projects include the
existing Willard to Duran 115-kV line, situated along the northwest portion of the Projects areas; and the
proposed Pinal Central to SunZia Transmission LLC's East terminus 500-kV line, planned to be situated
along the southwest portion of the Projects in Lincoln County. Power generated from the Projects is
planned to be delivered to the Southwest region of the United States via SunZia Transmission LLC's 500-
kV transmission line. Additional transmission infrastructure associated with Pattetn Development’s wind
development projects (e.g., the Mesa Canyons Wind Project adjacent to the Projects in Lincoln County) in
Guadalupe, Lincoln, and Torrance Counties are likely to pass through the Corona SUD. The foregoing
existing and proposed transmission facilities (including the East Terminus of SunZia and a 1-mile

corridor where the additional transmission infrastructure may be located) are displayed in Exhibit I,

As part of the site selection process, the Applicants performed background transmission and load-impact
modeling to determine the feasibility of a grid interconnection, The Applicants used various models and

analytical methods to assess impacts to utility transmission and distribution systems.

6.2.3  Accessibility

The Projects sites are accessible to construction equipment and heavy machinety, including cranes and
special-purpose trailers, which transport tower sections, nacelles, and other components. The Projects
would be accessed from SH 60 and/or SH 247, off of which new private access roads would be
constructed, thereby minimizing traffic impacts on local roads, Al necessaty access, crossing, and

driveway permits will be obtained from the applicable jurisdictions as needed.

6.24 Competitive Economics

Competitive project economics are achieved at sites that have the best combination of key attributes,
including, but not limited to, a strong wind resource. Economic feasibility also depends on the presence of
interested landowners who are willing to provide rights to both the site and the interconnection right-of-
way at reasonable costs, Other considerations include suitable soil conditions. There are a number of
fixed costs for a wind energy facility. Such costs include a maj ority of the baseline environmental
surveys, interconnection filing fees and studies, foundation design, and project engineering. Accordingly,
projects must be sized appropriately to distribute the fixed costs over a large enough number of wind

turbines, to make the project economically viable,

Pattern Energy LP 6-3 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zonlng Ordinance Amendment Final Project Description

6.2.5 Rural Location

Turbine locations would maintain a minimum setback between the tower and the nearest non-
participating residence, compliant with Torrance County setback requirements, which state .. .each wind
turbine shall be set back from the nearest property line a distance no less than 1,1 times is total height,
unless appropriate easements are secured from adjacent property owners,” This setback minimizes
potential visual and sound effects of the turbines on neighboring landowners adjacent to or in close
proximity to the Projects. The turbine locations would also maintain a minimum setback from public

roads. Refer to Exhibit J, Projects Visibility Map.

6.2.6 Communication Interference

Turbines would be sited outside of known microwave pathways and Fresnel zones (areas surrounding a
line-of-site used to determine obstruction loss to communication signals) to minimize the effect they may
have on local communications, Additionally, the Applicants are currently performing a communications
study through the National Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTTA). Based on the
results of that study, the location of Projects components will be modified accordingly to avoid

interference with commercial communications.

6.2.7  Cultural Resources

Based on a preliminary review, it is anticipated that all Projects components would be sited and
constructed to avoid adverse physical effects on prehistoric ot historic archeological resources, as
recommended by the Projects’ cultural resources specialists. See Exhibit K, Cultural Resources Survey

reports.

6.2.8 Environmental
Initial studies in the Projects areas have been completed to determine potential impacts to area resources.

The results of these studies are summarized below in Table 6-1.

Table 6-1: Summary of Environmental Review

Resource Category Comments

Wildlife and Plants Seven animal and three plant species that are
either federally listed or considered an
experimental, non-essential population under
the Endangered Species Act (ESA) may
potentially occur in the Projects areas. Eight
state-listed endangered or threatened bird
species may potentially occur in the Projects
areas. Eighteen bat species in New Mexico have
ranges overlapping the Projects areas. None of

Pattern Energy L.P 6-4 Burns & McDonnell




Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Flnal Project Description

possible. Reclamation procedures following completion of repair wotk would be similar to those

prescribed for normal construction,

6.9 Lighting and Airspace

The Projects would comiply with all applicable FAA requirements. As mitigation for any risk the Projects
may pose to aviation, and in accordance with federal regulations, the Projects would illuminate some of
the turbines to meet the FAA requirements for obstruction lighting or marking of structures over 200 feet
above ground surface (U.S. DOT FAA Advisory Circular 70/7460-1 K dated 2/ 1/2007).

The FAA’s wind turbine lighting guidance (DOT/FAA/AR-TN05/50 dated 11/05) requires lighting the
Projects as one large obstruction with lights spaced approximately 3,000 feet apart. The FAA has
determined that the standard turbine color is sufficient daylight marking and white strobe lights would not
be used, As a result, wind farms ate it with synchronized red flashing lights at night and only a subset of
the turbines are lit. To minimize potential visual effects, the Applicants would use lights that pulse 20
times per minute and have a beam spread of three degrees, which is the lowest allowable amount required
by the FAA. This approach maximizes “dark space” between flashes and per minute, and minimizes
ground scatter or “light noise” because less light from the beam reaches the ground. The up to 7 proposed

permanent MET towers in Torrance County would also be lit in accordance with FAA guidance,

Pattern Development, on behalf of the Corona Wind Companies, began consulting with the DoD and
potentially affected local Air Force bases (AFB) and other local military facilities including Cannon AFB,
Kirtland AFB, Holloman AFB, Ft, Bliss Army Base, and White Sands Missile Range in 2017. This
consultation has been aimed at pursuing the development of the Corona Wind Projects so as to take into
account and address military use of airspace over Guadalupe, Lincoln, and Torrance Counties. Early in
2018, Pattern Development initiated informal consultation and review of the Corona Wind Projects with
the DoD’s Military Aviation and Installation Assurance Clearinghouse (Clearinghouse) pursuant to Title
32 C.F.R. Part 211 §7. This review process typically precedes any specific filing of turbines locations
with the DoD Clearinghouse sa as to provide opportunity for dialogue between a project developer, the

DoD and the FAA that may result in adjustments to a project’s ultimate turbine configuration,

6.10 Sound

Wind turbine sound emissions are typically either mechanical or aetodynamic in origin, Mechanical
sources of sound include the generator, gear box, cooling fans, and the yaw system (the component used
to rotate the turbine into the wind). Most of these mechanical systems ate located inside the nacelle

enclosure and incorporate a number of noise-attenuating features. Because mechanical components are

Pattern Energy L.P 6-20 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Project Description

enclosed and acoustically mitigated, the aerodynamic noise of the blades rotating through the air is
typically the dominate source of audible sound. The sound emissions from both the mechanical and
actodynamic components are determined in accordance with IBC61400-11, Wind Turbine Generator
Systems - Part 11; Acoustic Noise Measurement Techniques (IEC, 2006). The resulting Projects sound
level would depend on a number of factors including the selected turbine model, the number of turbines

and their proximity to the measurement point.

The sound level emitted by wind turbines increases with increasing wind speed and typically reaches a
maximum level when winds are between 18 to 22 mph, For the most part, the sounds emitted by wind
turbines are broadband in nature and related to the aerodynamic noise of the blades. When the wind
speeds are high at both the turbine elevation and ground level, the sound of the turbines may be fully or
partially masked by wind-induced background noise. When winds are calm or slight at ground level and
sutficient at turbine height for operations an audible “swooshing” sound may be obsetved as the blades
rotate through the air. The observed sound level would depend on a number of factors the most significant
of which is the distance from the turbines. No existing federal, state, or local regulations limit noise levels
at wind energy facilities: Potential sound emissions from the Projects may be analyzed and assessed, if
necessary, for the selected turbine type, and the associated electrical substations during the final micro-
siting and Projects refinement process. Aerodynamic turbine blade tips and mechanical turbine
component designs minimize noise emissions. Due to the remote location of the Projects and flexibility in

siting, sound impacts are not anticipated.

Pattern Energy LP 6-21 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Conformance With Zoning Ordinance Goals

8.0 CONFORMANCE WITH ZONING ORDINANCE GOALS

8.1  Conformance With Ordinance
Pursuant to REV: Ord. No, 2008-003, 4/23/08, Wind Energy Facilities are an allowable use for a Special
Use District.

8.2 Conformance With Zoning Ordinance Goals
The Projects are in conformance with, and enhance fulfillment of the following Zoning Ordinance Goals

(Section 2. Purpose):
“Promote Health and the general welfare of the County”

*  As described throughout this application, wind energy facilities are safe when sited and operated
in accordance with all applicable county, state, and federal standards and requirements, The
infrastructure proposed for the Projects is proven reliable, is held to the highest international
standards of quality, and would be operated and maintained by a highly trained, locally based
operations team. The Applicants hold themselves to a high standard with regards to health and
safety, and all construction general contractors are required to meet strict safety qualifications.
Wind cteates clean energy from a non-depleting, local energy source that does not consume or

discharge water, has no air emissions, and emits no odors.
“Protect local water resources”

o The Projects would have a low impact on local water resoutces during operation, Water would be
required during construction for dust abatement and to mix concrete for turbine foundations, and
would likely be obtained from an existing well within the Project areas. During operation, turbine
blades may be washed to prevent dust build-up, Potable water would be used to service the O0&M

building.
“Facilitate adequate provisions for transportation”

*  The Projects would not impose burdens on county roads beyond temporary use during
construction. New access and service roads on private land would be constructed for the Projects,

These roads would remain private and would not require maintenance by Torrance County,

“Facilitate adequate provisions for schools, parks, and other community requirements”

Pattern Energy LP 8-1 Bums & McDonnell



Applicatlon for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Gonformance With Zoning Ordinance Goals

¢ The Projects would create new net property and gross receipts taxes, ot, new revenue streams
from payments in lieu of taxes, providing new county revenues to suppott local schools and
county services. The Projects would employ up to 100 permanent staff that would live locally,
thereby further stimulating the local economy. Local schools have adequate facilities to
accommodate these new students, Other community services would easily accommodate the

limited needs of any new residents brought to the area to support operations of the Projects,
“Conserve the value of property”

o Multiple studies and independent analyses have been conducted to analyze the impact of wind
farms on neighboring property values in various regions of the U.S. These studies have shown
that the presence of a wind farm has no overall adverse effect on residential property values,

Additionally, some studies of property sale values have demonstrated an increase in value,
“Compatible development of land and other natural resources”

*  Wind energy is a compatible land use with rangeland activities, and other agriculture, Typically,
less than 2 percent of the land within the Project areas would be used by turbines, service roads,
and other infrastructure following construction. Cattle would still be able to graze at the base of
the turbines and wildlife would be able to use the area around the turbines. Wind energy
development provides economic diversification for ranchers; in many cases helping to provide an

alternative to selling their land or subdividing it, thus protecting a rural way of life.
8.3  Appropriate Use for Zoning District

8.3.1  Special Use District

Pursuant to REV: Ord. No, 2008-003, 4/23/08, Wind Energy Facilities, are an allowable use for a Special
Use District. The Projects are located in an Agricultural District (A), a rural land use designation for
unincorporated areas of Torrance County that are not specifically designated in any other zone
classification (see Exhibit Q, Torrance County Zoning Map). The land use within the Project areas has
historically been rangeland/dry agriculture; this land use would continue into the future as wind energy

and ranching activities are compatible land uses.
This Application Natrative provides assurance of the following:

¢ The Torrance Wind Projects is a compatible property use

Pattern Energy LP 8-2 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final Conformance With Zoning Ordinance Goals

¢ The Projects would preserve the integrity and character of the area, and the utility and value of
the property
» The Special Use District would not become detrimental to the public health, safety, or general

welfare of Totrance County

See Exhibit A, Projects Overview, for lands proposed for the Special Use District, Images of computer-
enhanced photos to simulate the appearance of the as-built site facilities as they would appear from
specific locations identified by Torrance County are show in Exhibit R, Visual Simulations of the

Projects.

8.3.2 Height Variance

The wind turbines selected for the Projects would be state-of-the-art equipment with a maximum vertical
dimension of approximately 260 to 360 feet; they are designed to generate optimal energy for a wind
enetgy facility in this wind regime. The up to 7 approximate 200-foot-tall MET towers are necessary fo
monitor wind turbine performance and plant maintenance activities to reliably operate the facilities, This

Height Variance, therefore, conforms to allowable uses for this zoning district.

Pattern Energy LP 8-3 Burns & McDonnalt



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Final | Applicants Contact Information

13.0 APPLICANTS CONTACT INFORMATION

Adam Cernea Clark
Manager, Environmental and Natural Resources, Pattern Development
(713) 308-4296

Adam,CerneaClark@patternenergy.com

Pattern Energy LP 13-1 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Executive Summary

Torrance Wind Projects and Clines Corners Wind Farm
Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment for Special Use District

Torrance County, New Mexico

Executive Summary

This is a request by Ancho Wind LLC, Cowboy Mesa LLC, Duran Mesa LLC, Pattern SC Holdings LLC,
Red Cloud Wind LLC, Tecolote Wind LLC, Viento Loco LLC, and Clines Corners Wind Farm LLC
(Applicants), limited liability companies and subsidiaries of Pattern Energy Group LP (Paitern Energy),
for a Zoning Ordinance Amendment to extend the Special Use District (SUD) for the Cowboy Mesa,
Duran Mesa, Red Cloud Wind, Tecolote Wind, and Viento Wind (collectively, the “Torrance County
Wind Projects”) as well as the Clines Corners Wind Farm (together with the Torrance County Wind
Projects, the “Projects”), The extended SUD will include additional transmission facilities for the Projects
on land within Torrance County not previously approved by the Torrance County Commission, The
Torrance County Wind Projects and the Clines Corners Wind Project were previously approved by the
Torrance County Commission on November 14, 2018 and June 12, 2019, respectively. This Application
is limited to those additional portions of the Projects’ area that would be utilized to site, construct, and
operate approximately 6 miles of transmission line infrastructure (or approximately 7,672 actes which is
the total acreage of all land parcels in the proposed SUD) for the Projects (Additional Facilities) on
private land within Torrance County, New Mexico, most of which is situated north of State Highway
(SH) 54 (the SUD). However, this application discusses the Projects in reference to the entire SUD.
Because this application is limited to additional transmission facilities of the Projects, discussion of the

previously approved wind generation areas of the Projects is limited.

The development of the Projects as well as the Additional Facilities herein submitted for approval
conforms to applicable goals and objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and Comprehensive Land Use Plan
of Torrance County (Tables ES-1 and ES-2). Development of these Projects and Additional Facilities
would contribute towards the goals of the State of New Mexico, the New Mexico Public Regulation
Commission, public utilities, and the Western Governors’ Association to diversify the state’s power
infrastructure, generate clean energy from local renewable sources, and provide long-term rural economic

development to the region and Totrance County,

Torrance Wind Projects & Clines Corners Wind Farm  ES-1 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment

Executive Summary

Table ES~1:

Conformance with Torrance County Zoning Ordinance

Zoning Ordinance
Goals

Additional Facilities’ Goal Conformance Description?

Promote health and
the general welfare
of the County

As described throughout this application, transmission facilities are safe when
sited and operated in accordance with all applicable county, state, and federal
standards and requirements, The infrastructure proposed for the Additional
Facilities is proven reliable, is held to the highest international standards of
quality, and would be operated and maintained by a highly trained, locally based
operations team. As the owner of the Additional Facilities, Pattern Energy holds
itself to a high standard with regard to health and safety, and contractors for
Pattern Energy are also required to meet strict safety qualifications, Wind
energy, which includes the Additional Facilities, creates clean energy from a
non-depleting, local energy source that consumes little water, does not discharge
water, has no air emissions, and emits no odors,

Secure safety from
fire, flood, and
other dangers

The Additional Facilities would comply with all rules and regulations
administered by the federal, state, and local land management agencies
concerning the use, prevention, and suppression of fires, including any fire
prevention orders that may be in effect at the time of the construction, operation,
or maintenance activity. The Additional Facilities would wotk with the
departments to ensure the safety of the firefighters, landowners, neighbors,
livestock, and other users of the land. The Additional Facilities would be set
back from channel banks to avoid impacts (such as channel alteration and flow
modification) and, therefore, impacts to floodplains would be low.

Protect local water
resources

The Additional Facilities would have a very low impact on local water
resources. Water would be required during construction for dust abatement and
to mix concrete for structure foundations, Water for the Additional Facilities use
would likely be obtained from one or more existing wells within the Special Use
District (SUD) or the broader Projeci(s) areas.

Facilitate adequate
provisions for
transportation

The Additional Facilities would not impose burdens on County Roads beyond
temporary use during construction. New access and service roads on private
land would be constructed for the Additional Facilities. These roads would
remain private and would not require maintenance by Torrance County. Prior to
the installation of the Additional Facilities, a Road Use Agreement with
Torrance County will be executed to address any use of County roads during
construction and operation of the Additional Facilities,

Solid waste
management

All construction waste including trash and litter, garbage, other solid waste,
petroleum products, and other potentially hazardous materials would be
removed to a disposal facility authorized to accept such materials weekly,

Facilitate adequate
provisions for
schools, parks, and
other community
requiremerits

The Projects, which includes the Additional Facilities, intend to enter into an
Industrial Revenue Bond (IRB) and associated Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT)
agreements with Torrance County and its associated school districts, providing
new county and school revenues to support local schools and County services.
The Projects and Additional Facilities would employ up to 100 permanent staff
that would live locally, thereby further stimulating the local economy. Local
schools have adequate facilities to accommodate the potential increase in new
students associated with these positions. Other community services would easily
accommodate the limited needs of any new residents brought to the area to
support the Projects and Additional Facilities operations.

Torrance Wind Projects & Clines Cornars Wind Farm

ES-2 Burns & McDonnelt



Application for Zonlng Ordinance Amendment Executive Summary

T

Zoning Ordinance
Goals Additlonal Facilities’ Goal Conformance Description?

Multiple studies and independent analyses have been conducted to analyze the
impact of wind farms and associated infrastructure on neighboring propetty
values in various regions of the U.S, These studies have shown that the presence
Consetve the value | of'a wind farm and associated infrastructure has no ovetall adverse effect on

of property residential property values, Additionally, some studies of property sale values
have demonstrated an increase in value, Furthermore, the Projects will bring
revenue to participating landowners with wind turbines and associated
infrastructure on their properties.

The Additional Facilities are a compatible land use with ranching and other
agricultural activities, Post-construction, typically less than 2 percent of the
Project(s) areas, including Additional Facilities, would be occupied by the
turbines, setvice roads, operations and maintenance (O&M) facilities, and

Compatible Projects substations, Cattle would still be able to graze around the base of the
development of transmission line structures, and wildlife would be able to use the area around
land and other the transmission line structures,

natural resources ) . . . i
Wind energy development and associated infrastructure provides economic

diversification for ranchers; in many cases, wind energy development helps
provide an alternative to selling their land or subdividing it, thus protecting a
rural way of life.

(a) See also Section 7.0 of this application

Table ES-2:  Conformance with Torrance County Comprehensive Land Use Plan

Additlonal Facilities’ Goal Conformance
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Goal Description®

The Additional Facilities ate a compatible land
use with ranching and other agricultural
activities, Post-construction, typically less than
2 percent of the Project(s) areas, including
Additional Facilities, would be occupied by the
turbines, service roads, operations and
maintenance (O&M) facilities, and Projects
substations, Cattle would remain able to graze
Goal A, Objective 2: Preserve and protect land for | up to the base of the transmission line

farming and ranching | structures, and wildlife would be able to use the
| area around the transmission line structures,
Throughout the U.S., wind energy development
and associated infrastructure has enabled
ranchers and farmers to diversify the economic
returns from their lands and reinvest in ranching
and farming activities, helping to preserve a
rural way of life and providing a viable
alternative to subdividing or selling their land,

Torrance Wind Projects & Clines Corners Wind Farm  ES-3 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment Executlve Summary

Additional Facilities’ Goal Conformance
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Goal Dascription?

The Additional Facilities would be designed as
a self-sufficient development, placing minimal
demand on County services. Unlike many other
types of developments, wind energy facilities
make significant direct tax payments, stimulate
the local economy, and create new jobs; all
while placing minimal demand on existing
infrastructure and services, Few Torrance
County roads would be utilized by the Projects
and Additional Facilities, and some access
roads would be newly constructed on private
land. The Applicants would work with the
Torrance County Road Department to obtain
necessary approvals for use of County roads,
As previously described, although the Projects
and Additional Facilities would place minimal
demand on County services, the Applicants
would also work Torrance County emergency
management services for this development,

Goal B: Plan and guide development in the County
in a manner which encourages optimum efficiency
and cost-effectiveness in the delivery of
infrastructure and County services

Transmission lines distribute power, use
minimal water post-consttuction, and generate
no emissions or pollutants. Transmission lines
typically use water during construction for
concrete and dust abatement, and little to no
water during O&M. The Additional Facilities
would consume far less water than standard
agricultural uses.

Goal F, Objective 1: Promote the Estancia Basin as
the prime location for new, but low water
consumptive agriculture and agri-business

Wind energy development and associated
infrastructure is highly compatible with grazing
and ranching activities, which are the current
land uses within the Project(s) areas and
Additional Facilities, Wind enérgy development
can help by using land in place of other
potential uses that could disrupt or impede
grazing and ranching activities.

Goal F, Objective 2: Preserve and protect grazing
and ranching lands from development that is
detrimental to existing land use

Torrance Wind Projects & Clings Corners Wind Farm  ES-4 Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment

Executive Summary

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Goal

Additional Facilities’ Goal Conformance
Description?

for current and future needs of the County

Goal J: Ensure an adequate supply of quality water

“would only be required during construction for

The Additional Facilities are anticipated to have
a low impact on local water resources, Water

dust abatement and to mix concrete for
transmission line structure foundations.
Construction water would likely be obtained
from one or more existing wells within the
Special Use District (SUD) or the broader
Project(s) areas. Transmission lines also use
minimal water post-construction. The Projects
and Additional Facilities would provide
Torrance County with quality economic
development with no negative impact on the
cutrent and future water needs of Torrance
County.

meet the future needs of the County

Goal M, Objective 2: Provide power services to

While energy generated by the Projects would
be delivered to the regional electtic grid,
interconnection and transmission system
upgrades for the Projects would enhance the
capacity of the overall local and regional
electrical transmission systems.

wind and solar generated power in the County

Goal M, Objective 3: Investigate the potential for

By issuing the Zoning Ordinance Amendment
SUD, Torrance County would be allowing the
Projects to advance to further development
stages, Torrance County has supported the
Applicants in their analysis of potential wind
generated power within Torrance County
through approval to establish temporary
meteorological (MET) towers within the areas
where the Projects are anticipated to be
developed.

)

jobs for County residents

Goal N: Encourage the attraction, retention, and
expansion of businesses in order to provide quality

Wind energy is one of the fastest growing
industries across the country and the globe, and
the fastest growing energy soutce in the world.
Wind energy projects provide quality jobs, a
new source of revenue for ranchers, and an
increased local tax base for rural communities.
The Projects would generate substantial full-
time equivalent jobs during construction as well
as during operations. Portions of the Projects
SUD applications are provided in Exhibit B
which provide economic impact discussion,

Torrance Wind Projects & Clines Corners Wind Farm

ES-5

Burns & McDonnell



Application for Zoning Ordinance Amendment

Exscutlve Summary -

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Goal

Additlonal Facllities’ Goal Conformance
Description?

disruption to the environment

Goal O: Promote the exploration and utilization of
natural resources within the County—with minimal

Transmission lines distribute power, use
minimal water post-construction, and generate
no emissions or pollutants, Additional site-
specific studies are ongoing and will be utilized
to further minimize potential impacts to birds,
bats, and other wildlife within the Project(s)
and Additional Facilities areas. It is anticipated
that results from these future studies would be
similar to those documented at other wind
energy and transmission line facilities located
in the western U.S., where bird and bat
mortality rates have been relatively low,

Goal Q, Objective 1: Promote the location of

term tax benefits to the County

business and industry in areas that will provide long-

Wind energy development and associated
infrastructure, such as transmission lines, on
privately owned rangelands and ranches is a
compatible and complementary land use and
would provide an additional economic return
from these lands. Wind energy development on
private ranch lands is effective in both
attracting and expanding existing economic
development. Torrance County would receive
financial benefit from the Projects through
Industrial Revenue Bond (IRB) and associated
Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) agreements,
taxes, new employment, and local spending,
Additional revenue to ranch operations within
the SUD and the broader Project(s) areas would
allow for reinvestment of additional capital into
local ranching operations, likely resulting in an
additional growth in tax base within the
County. The Projects and Additional Facilities
would generate temporary and permanent
employment (direct and indirect jobs) and local
expenditures during construction and
opetations. The Projects would also provide
additional economic stimulus from local
expenditures (state and county gross receipts
taxes), project visitation, and potential
ecotourism revenues,

(a) See also Section 8.0, “Conformance with Comprehensive Land Use Plan,” of this application

Torrance Wind Projects & Clines Corners Wind Farm  ES-6

Burns & McDonnell



Extended Corona Gen-tie System Privileged & Confidential Business Information

2,0 EXTENDED CORONA GEN-TIE SYSTEM

The Extended Corona Gen-tie System is a proposed 30.2-mi (48.6-km) single- and double-circuit
345kV transmission line, located in Torrance County that would connect the Corona Gen-tie
System to the Western Splrit Transmission Project. The 1-mi (1.6-km) Study Area buffer
surrounding the Extended Corona Gen-tie System defines the Extended Corona Gen-tle System
Corridor, which is shown in Figure 2.1. As discussed in Chapter 4.0, Methods and Metrics. This
1-mi (1.6-km) study buffer was used for the risk analysis, based on a number of studies that have
documented bird fatalities along power lines, extending from 197 ft (60 m) to 1 mi (1.6-km) from
the power line right-of-way (ROW, Brown et al. 1984, 1987: Faanes 1987 Stehn and Wassenich
2008; Murphy et al. 2009; APLIC 2012).

Representative transmission structures are shown in Figures 2.2 and 2.3. Figure 2.2 depicts a
single-circuit 345kV transmission structure with braced-post insulator array and two OPGWs for
facility communications supported on davit arms. Figure 2.3 depicts a double-circuit 345kV
transmission structure, also with braced-post insulator arrays and two OPGWs. Both horizontal
and vertical dimensions are shown for both structure types.

WEST, Inc. 10 December 2019



Extended Corona Gen-tie System

Privileged & Confidential Business Information

Extended Corona Gen-Tie System
Risk Assessment

73 1-mile Study Area Buffer

R, ‘m

‘San
Pt

A7 | Mo

1/ Nwm
\,\ e 'EI'P{'}

,r“‘i'\'f“‘“‘;“

-~ Ganal Ditch
Stream/River: Ephemeral

= Extended Corona 345kV Gen-Tie System  § Fre

¥

shwater Emergent Wetland
Freshwater Forested/Shrub Wetland
Frashwater Pond

B8 Lake

Riverine
N 0 1 3 Dala Source; USDA NAIP 2018
ml
-—J};»E km Coordinate System. NAD 1983 UTM Zone 13N m:l-
H 0 2 4 8 Dale 12/112019  Author 8 Barbied WEST

Figure 2.1, Extended Corona 345kV Gen-tie System Corridor with 1-mile {(1.6-kilometer

Area buffer.

)} Study

WEST, Inc.

11

December 2019



610c 12qiuaasg

43

ouy USIM

"SIIfA PUNCID

ieondg omj pue Aeise iolejnsyy 1sod-padeig Yum 9inionugs jusBue)] UoISSIUSURIY A\NGHE Hnoo-ajBuis aanejussaldsy 7'z ainbig

HO-LLSD-OTL-ZNS

e
v

peormm
FHUNLONYLS
ANHONYL UN0YID
FIONIS - DNIMYHT
ONINYHS SHNLONYLS

$650e 2

TSmO g SveyMg.
s g

IS BT

B DUV GHL

HOUDMUERD0 HOS 1%

AHVNIAM3Hd

usned ﬁ

££026 ¥) VIO v
FUYNOS SAUNOIKT s2er
SNOYS ADHING NHZLI VS

B —

TN v
WI3G J0LONANOD 8 WG

i, i
.

g

SiNESS
130 G40 VYIS

Cdit) UnnEY AN TS

B UM |

= )

& e R
OIRIMIN SZHINNOD
FONVEEDL, ONY NGO

swafold puims 2uoi0D

S 0258 QYO T7OILHIA SNBTROM ARV TI0RAG
L 1 NYIY
Sropiviasyidl mmw u¢i TWOLNSA 'ATENASSY HOLYIASN 1S0d aagvas)  © M giot
ATARISSY BOLINANOD!
T
_ ] MO mmm_umpowm sv| ena
A MOGO]
AN SINT 9N | NOUasssg | Ao {ewan

S

Ee i L

Iy TIN5
DYy oHvoo
NolvAT
T !
i Ti T
N ] Wi TI¢

GUIEPERTIDL

uojeulioju] Sssujsng [eUuspuLoD 9 pabaiAlld

LwoysAs an-uag eu0Ion popUsIXT



6102 J8quindeg

£L

Ul ISIM

jeondQ omy pue sAesie Joleinsul 3sod-pedelq YIM alnjonils Jusbue) UOISSIWSURY ANGYE UNDIO-

"SBHAA punolisg

a|gnop sallejussaiday "¢ g sinbig

100-21S-O-O7LZNS
- pug
v
e
SHMLONHLS
LNIONVL HNOHID
F1EN0T - ONIMYHT
ONINVHS JHNLONYLS

gy sper Doy

AND

NSIIORITNOD HO SO

AHVNINIIHd

wened %

LECZE YO YTIOr v
JHNOS JAUNDIKS ST2¢
<NOYD ASHING NUFL VY

_—
_— .

Bl yice

TISGMEI0 v 7150
£} inermen T

-mnu:iuawmo. H»wv?i_J m
DHUINLIOD BY TV v |

YT — u,:mmM zﬁﬁﬁi SET029'8 GYOT TYOLLMIA DNINUOM RITWIRVIN SGNNS| e N 810t

TFYOLNIA "ATEWISSY MOLYINSNI 1S0d 030vHe

o rOREE fRm v
£ e

OONEIN MaN SIUNDOD
TONVHEOL ORY NTOOMT

spalaid pujMm sucioD

ATANISSY BOLINGNOD

“

|

AM8d0 mwm_mT.Omm w<* erist

ATSNISSY MO0

I

. NOUAMOSAq. |- Ao Tawair

Sty res
[N )
HOUVAT1Z
ond ®
o mnuwnu
wmgER
W, i

EZETIET) fl%..\

A

WIR

uopeuLIOLU] SSeUISNg JeRUAPLILIOY 9 pabajialid

weysAS ef-usg BUOIOD PapusIxg



EXHIBITA PROJECT OVERVIEW

Pattern Energy LP 13-1 Burns & McDonnell



| Legend
¥ House - NWI Wetland

National/State Park/Forest

4 —— Railroad

=====_Highways Land Ownership

7 state Land

| == Major Roads

8 — I
'[ ‘EE:_‘EJ}I County Boundary -

A Project

Elements

Exhibit A
Project Overview
\
\\BSEDNOSNNELL" Pattern De_velopment
Torrance Wind Projects
Torrance County, New Mexico

. Preliminary Turbine Location ====== Access Road

A Met Tower ===m= Access Road/Crane Path

. A Substations =ee=—= Crane Path

£ Wind Project Area == Project Transmission Line

COPYRIGHT © 2018 BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

Saurce: Esri, NFS, Pattern Development, and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. Issued: 8/6/2018



EXHIBIT A ADDITIONAL FACILITIES OVERVIEW

Torrance Wind Projects & Clines Corners Wind Farm Burns & McDonnell



NMaxg

Proposed Additional Facilities

I\
4

H == Project Transmission Line

N E Proposed SUD Areas 0 1
k Previously Approved SUD Area

Scale in Miles

State Land

COPYRIGHT © 2020 BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

BURNS
\N\.MSDONNELL"

EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 4
Additional Facilities Overview
Ancho Wind, Clines Corner
Wind Farm, Cowboy Mesa,
Duran Mesa, Red Cloud Wind
and Tecolote Wind Projects
Jorrance County, New Mexico

Source: Esri, Pattern Development, and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.

Issued: 7/28/2020



R
—
—
9 e —

[

Torrance
County

2

=)

Jias

COPYRIGHT © 2020 BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

=== Proposed Additional Facilities
]
Project Transmission Line @Iﬂj
‘ Proposed SUD Areas
& rr 0 035 07
Previously Approved SUD Area

State Land Scale in Miles

EXHIBIT A

Page 2 of 4

Additional Facilities Overview
Y BURNS Ancho Wind, Clines Corner
N\MEDONNELL"|  wing Farm, Cowboy Mesa,

Duran Mesa, Red Cloud Wind
and Tecolote Wind Projects

Torrance Gounty, New Mexico

Source' Esri, Pattern Development, and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.

Issued: 7/28/2020



14

o]
(@)

Torrance
County

eL.Community

[ =
EXHIBIT A

@ Page 3 of 4

Additional Facilities Overview

Proposed Additional Facilities

====== Project Transmission Line

Y BURNS Ancho Wind, Clines C
Proposed SUD Areas " i orner
D pe 0 035 0.7 | \\MEDONNELL"}  wind Farm, Cowboy Mesa,
Previously Approved SUD Area Duran Mesa, Red Cloud Wind
State Land Scale in Miles and Tecolote Wind Projects

COPYRIGHT © 2020 BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

ervice | aver Credits- Source: E.

Torrance County, New Mexico
Source: Esri, Pattern Development, and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc Issued: 7/28/2020




07 08 £ {09 ! 10

Torrance
County.

COPYRIGHT © 2020 BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

ud

n .

E Proposed Additional Facilities ,\ pEXHlileA;,

i . o agedo

E Project Transmission Line W < Additional Facilities Overview
A+ BURNS Ancho Wind, Clines Corner
o E—_] Proposed SUD Areas 0 0.35 0.7 | \\\MSDONNELL"| wing Farm, Cowboy Mesa,
% Previously Approved SUD Area Duran Mesa, Red Cloud Wind
9 v . . .

9 Scale in Miles and Tecolote Wind Projects
< State Land Torrance County. New Mexico

Source® Esri, Pattern Development, and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc. Issued: 7/28/2020



Parcel No.: 1070028265398000000
Landowner: Delma E, Prather Revocable Trust
Legal Description:

The North Half (N %) of Section Fifteen (15), Township Five (5) North, Range Twelve {12) East of the New
Mexico Principal Meridian, In the County of Torrance, State of New Mexico.

Parcel No.: 1070020411136000000
Landowner: Dwight E. Luna
Legal Description:

All of Sections Twenty-Two (22), Twenty-Six (26), Twenty-Seven (27), Thirty-Three (33), Thirty-Four (34),
and Thirty-Five (35), and the South Half (S %) and the South Half (S %) of the North Half (N %) of Section
Twenty-Three (23), all in Townshlp Four (4) North, Range Twelve (12) East of the New Mexico Principal
Merlidian, in the County of Torrance, State of New Mexico.

AND

Lots One (1) through Four (4), and the South Half (S %) of the North Half {N %) of Section Three (3),
Township Three (3) North, Range Twelve (12) East of the New Mexico Principal Metidian, in the County
of Torrance, State of New Mexlco.

Parcel No.: 1073015074354000000
Landowner: Monty & Kelly Pounds
Legal Description:

The Northeast Quarter (NE %) and the North Half (N %) of the Southeast Quarter (SE %) of Section
Twenty-Four (24), Township Three (3) North, Range Twelve (12) East of the New Mexico Principal
Meridian, in the County of Torrance, State of New Mexico.

AND

The West Half (W 1) of the Southeast Quarter (SE %) of Section Eighteen (18), the West Half (W %) of
Section Nineteen (19), and the West Half (W %) of the Northeast Quarter (NE %) of Section Nineteen
(19), all in Township Three (3) North, Range Thirteen (13) East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, in
the County of Torrance, State of New Mexico.

LESS AND EXCEPT Parcel No, 1073015060216000000 in Township Three (3) North, Range Thirteen (13)
East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, In the County of Torrance, State of New Mexico.



Parcel No.: 1073014122404000000
Landowner: Monty & Kelly Pounds
Legal Description:

Lots One (1) and Two (2), and the East Half (E 74) of the Northwest Quarter (NW %) of Section Thirty (30),
all in Township Three (3) North, Range Thirteen (13) East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, in the
County of Torrance, State of New Mexico,

Parcel No.: 10730141.88134000000
Landowner: Monty & Kelly Pounds
Legal Description:

Lots Three (3) and Four (4), the East Half (E %) of the Southwest Quarter (SW %), and the West Half (W
%) of the Southeast Quarter (SE %), of Section Thirty (30), all In Township Three (3) North, Range
Thirteen (13) East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, in the County of Torrance, State of New
Mexico,

Parcel No.: 1074013135406000000
Landowner: Monty & Kelly Pounds
Legal Description:

The Northeast Quarter {NE %) of Section Thirty-One (31) and the North Half (N %) of Section Thirty-Two
(32), all in Township Three (3) North, Range Thirteen (13) East of the New Mexico Principal Meridian, in
the County of Torrance, State of New Mexico.



EXHIBITN TORRANCE GOUNTY ZONING MAP

Torrance Wind Projects & Clines Corners Wind Farm Burns & McDonnsll



| TO0AN ROAAE

1 £ i it

ional Facilities [[_[] LaJaya SUD
=== Project Transmission Line A (Agricultural, 40 ac min.)
[: Corona SUD 1] Proposed SUD Areas
[ 1EICabo SUD State Land

Scale in Miles
Source: Esri, Pattern Development, and Burns & McDonnell Engineering Company, Inc.

COPYRIGHT © 2020 BURNS & McDONNELL ENGINEERING COMPANY, INC.

EXHIBIT N
Zoning

Ancho Wind, Clines Corner

Wind Farm, Cowhoy Mesa,
Duran Mesa, Red Cloud Wind

and Tecolote Wind Projects
Torrance County, New Mexico

Issued: 7/28/2020




Agenda Item
No. 10



Agenda Item
No. 11-4



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

31

TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2020-

A Resolution Establishing A County Cooperative (COOP) Program with The New Mexico
Department of Transportation for the Project CAP, CN L500419

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico Legislature has allocated funds to Torrance

County for the purpose of construction and improvement of public highways and roads, and

WHEREAS, the project CAP is approved for funding based on a total project cost of
$253,229.00; and

WHEREAS, the Local Government Road Fund Pro gram requires a twenty-five percent
(25%) match to the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share of seventy-five percent

(75%), Torrance County’s share totals $63,307.00; and

WHEREAS, Torrance County will perform ‘PAVEMENT
REHIBILITATION/IMPROVEMENTS OF VARIOUS COUNTY ROADS, ‘the projects are as

follows:

CR Ewing Rd. 4.6 miles
CR Indian Hills Rd. 2.0 miles

WHEREAS, the above referenced project is a priority that has been adopted into

Torrance County’s long-term plan.:



10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17
18

CONTINUATION PAGE 2, RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION TITLE

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

DONE THIS DAY OF

,2019.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:

County Attorney Date

ATTEST:

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk

Date:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Member

Javier Sanchez, Member



Contract No.

VYendor No.

Control No. L500419

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is between the New Mexico Department of Transportation (Department) and
Torrance County (Public Entity). This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last party to
sign it on the signature page below.

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 67-3-28 and 67-3-28.2 and the State Transportation
Commission Policy No. 44-12, the parties agree as follows:

1. Purpose.
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Local Government Road Funds to the Public Entity

for the Pavement Rehabilitation/Improvements, Blading and Shaping of Various County
Roads, as described in Control No. 1.500419, and the Public Entity’s resolution attached as
Exhibit C (Project). The Project is a joint and coordinated effort for which the Department and
the Public Entity each have authority or jurisdiction. This Agreement specifies and delineates the

rights and duties of the parties.

2. Project Funding.
a. The estimated total cost for the Project is Two Hundred Fifty Three Thousand Two

Hundred Twenty Nine Dollars ($253,229.00) to be funded in proportional share by the

parties as follows:
1. Department’s share shall be 75% $189,922.00

Pavement Rehabilitation/Improvements, Blading and Shaping of Various
County Reads

2. The Public Entity’s required proportional matching
Share shall be 25% $63,307.00
For purpose stated above

3. Total Project Cost $253,229.00

b. The Public Entity shall pay all Project costs, which exceed the total amount of One
Hundred Eighty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty Two Dollars ($189,922.00).

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 1 of 9 FY20



c¢. Any costs incurred by the Public Entity prior to this Agreement are not eligible for

reimbursement and are not included in the amount listed in this Section 2.

3. The Department Shall:
Pay project funds as identified in Section 2, Paragraph al, to the Public Entity in a single lump

sum payment after:

a.
b.

C.

Receipt of a Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed; and,

Verification of available Local Government Road Funds and Public Entity’s local
matching funds identified in Section 2, Paragraph a2,

All required documents must include Department Project and Control Number.

4. The Public Entity Shall:

a.
b.

h.

J-

Act in the capacity of lead agency for the purpose as described in Section 1.

Submit an estimate of the Project, including work to be performed and cost to the District
Engineer within thirty (30) days of execution of this Agreement, or as otherwise agreed to
in writing by the Parties.

Be solely responsible for all local matching funds identified in Section 2. Certify that
these matching funds have been appropriated, budget and approved for expenditure prior
to execution of this Agreement.

Pay all costs, perform/supply or contract for labor and material, for the purpose as
described in Section 1 and the Project estimate approved by the District Engineer.
Procure and award any contract in accordance with applicable procurement law, rules,
regulations and ordinances

Be responsible, for performing or directing the performance, of all pre-construction
activities, including, but not limited to, the following:

Utility Certification,

Drainage and storm drain design,

Geotechnical design,

Pavement design,

Environmental and archacological clearances Certification,

Right of-way acquisition Certification,

Hazardous substance/waste site(s) contamination,

Railroad Certification,

Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Certification

Cause all designs and plans to be performed under the direct supervision of a Registered
New Mexico Professional Engineer, when applicable, as determined by the Department.
Obtain all required written agreements or permits, when applicable, from all public and
private entities.

Allow the Department to inspect the Project to determine that the Project is being
constructed in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Disclosures of any
failure to meet such requirements and standards as determined by the Department, will
result in termination, for default, including without limitation the Public Entity’s costs for
funding, labor, equipment and materials.

Complete the project within eighteen (18) months of approval of funding by the State

© PN U AW

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 2 of 9 FY20



Transportation Commission.

k. Within thirty (30) days of completion, provide written certification that all work under
this Agreement was performed in accordance with either the New Mexico Department of
Transportation’s Standard Specification, Current Edition; American Public Works
Association (APWA) Specifications; Department approved Public Entity established
Specifications; or Department Specifications established for Local Government Road
Fund projects, by submitting the Project Certification of Design, Construction, and
Cost form, which is attached as Exhibit A.

1. Within thirty (30) days of completion, furnish the Department an AS BUILT Summary
of Costs and Quantities form, which is attached as Exhibit B. The report should reflect
the total cost of project as stated in Project Certification of Design, Construction, and
Cost form.

m. Failure to provide the Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form
and an AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities report within thirty (30) days of
Project completion will be considered a material breach of this Agreement and Public
Entity shall reimburse to the Department all funds disbursed in accordance with this
agreement.

n. Upon completion, maintain all Public Entity facilities that were constructed or
reconstructed under this Agreement.

5. Both Parties Agree:

a. Upon termination of this Agreement any remaining property, materials, or equipment
belonging to the Department will be accounted for and disposed of by the Public Entity as
directed by the Department.

b. Any unexpended or unencumbered balance from the Local Government Road Fund
appropriated for this Project reverts to the Department. These balances, if any, must be
reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) days of project completion or expiration
of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.

c. This Project is not being incorporated into the State Highway System and the Department is
not assuming maintenance responsibility or liability.

d. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-28.2, Local Government Road Funds granted
under this provision can not be used by the Public Entity to meet a required match under
any other program.

e. That the provisions of the Local Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Current
Edition), are incorporated by reference and control the contractual rights and obligations
of the parties unless in conflict with the specific terms expressed in this Agreement or any

amendments.

6. Term.
This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all Parties. The effective date is the date

when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This Agreement
terminates on December 31, 2021. In the event an extension to the term is needed, the Public
Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed justification to the Department sixty (60)
days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely processing of an Amendment.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 3 of 9 FY20



7. Termination.

a. If the Public Entity fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Department
may terminate this Agreement, by providing thirty (30) days written notice.

b. The Department may terminate this Agreement if the funds identified in Section 2 have
not been contractually committed within one year from the effective date of this
agreement,

c. Ifsufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Legislature, this
Agreement may terminate immediately upon written notice of the Department to the
Public Entity.

d. Neither party has any obligation after termination, except as stated in Sections 4n and 5.

8. Third Party Beneficiary.
It is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any

member of the public a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the Agreement to
maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s), bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to person(s), damage(s) to
property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

9. New Mexico Tort Claims Act,

As between the Department and Public Entity, neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred
as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability
incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New

Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, et seq.

10. Contractors Insurance Requirements.

The Public Entity shall require contractors and subcontractors hired for the Project to have a general
liability insurance policy, with limits of liability of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence. The
Department is to be named as an additional insured on the contractors and subcontractor’s policy and
a certificate of insurance must be provided to the Department and it must state that coverage

provided under the policy is primary over any other valid insurance.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Public Entity shall require the contractor and
subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from and against any
liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court
costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings) arising out of or resulting from the negligence, act,
error, or omission of the contractor and subcontractor in the performance of the Project, or anyone
directly or indirectly employed by the contractor or anyone for whose acts they are liable in the

performance of the Project.

11. Scope of Agreement.
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties

concerning the subject matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have been
merged into this written Agreement. No prior Agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of
the parties or their agents will be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 4 of 9 FY20



12. Terms of this Agreement.
The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations must conform with

and not contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances.

13. Legal Compliance,

The Public Entity shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and Department laws,
regulations and policies in the performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to laws
governing civil right, equal opportunity compliance, environmental issue, workplace safety,
employer-employee relations and all other laws governing operations of the workplace. The
Public Entity shall include the requirements of this Section 13 in in each contract and subcontract

at all tiers.

14. Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive
orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In
accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the
State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in the United States will, on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be excluded
from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this Agreement.
If the parties are found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the term of this
Agreement, the parties agree to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies.

15. Appropriations and Authorizations.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations being
made by the governing board of the Public Entity, the Legislature of New Mexico, or the Congress of
the United States if federal funds are involved, for performance of the Agreement. If sufficient
appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Public Entity, Legislature or the Congress of
the United States if federal funds are involved, this Agreement will terminate upon written notice
being given by one party to the other. The Department and Public Entity are expressly not committed
to expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and

approved for expenditure.

16. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements.

There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursements relating to this Agreement.
The Public Entity shall maintain all records and documents relative to the Project for a minimum
of five years after completion of the Project. The Public Entity shall furnish the Department and
State Auditor, upon demand, any and all such records relevant to this Agreement. If an audit
finding determines that specific funding was inappropriate or not related to the Project, the
Public Entity shall reimburse that portion to the Department within thirty (30) days of written
notification. If documentation is insufficient to support an audit by customarily accepted
accounting practices, the expense supported by such insufficient documentation must be

reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) days.

17. Severability.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 5 of 9 FY20



In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or
otherwise unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

18. Applicable Law.

The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice
of law provisions. Venue is be proper in a New Mexico Court of competent jurisdiction in
accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 38-3-1(Q).

19. Amendment.
This Agreement may be altered, modified, or amended by an instrument in writing executed by the

patties.

The remainder of this page in intentionally left blank.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 6 of 9 FY20



In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s
signature.

NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By: Date:
Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s
Office of General Counsel

By: Date:
Assistant General Counsel

Torrance County

By: Date:

Title:

Attest:

County Clerk

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 7 of 9 FY20



EXHIBIT A
PROJECT CERTIFICATION OF
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND COST

TO: New Mexico Department of Transportation
District 5 LGRF Coordinator

Cooperative Agreement No. Control No. __1.500419
Joint Powers Agreement No. Control No.
Entity: Torrance County

Scope of Work (Including Routes and Termini):

CR Ewing Rd *from Hwy 542 start project ending at State Hwy 55*

CR Indian Hills Rd * from Lexco Rd start project for 2.0 miles going W to end of project *

I, the undersigned, in my capacity as of state
that:

1. The design is in compliance with all state laws, rules, regulations, and local ordinances and was
performed in accordance with the provisions set forth in this agreement and in the Local Government
Road Fund Project Handbook (Current Edition).

2. Construction of the project was performed in accordance with standards and specifications set forth

in: And
completed on , 20 ; and

3. That the total project cost of , with New Mexico Department of
Transportation 75% share of and the Public Entity share of

(as submitted in attached “As Built Summary of Costs and Quantities”) is
accurate, legitimate, and appropriate for the project.

Name Date

Printed Name Title



Awuno) Aq pahed|

08°€S S 1310, M
00'622'€52 S psemy 102f0ud]| _ Reiclg JeBeuepy Aunod 8ouelo |
08'z8z'csz  $ 150D 108[01d |
£8z'esTs [eJoL ﬁ
SSP'L1Z$ 9SZ'v1$ zLS'1T$
| logzgz'eszs }S0) pejewys3y [ejol
00z'8¢$ | 00°002'82 $ 00°0.¥$ 0009 suo| |eas bo4
Gee'6es | 00'6zE'62 $ 00°68% 00°Sve suol XIN PIOD
0€6'6L1$ , 00°0€6'61 | $ 00'0.9% 00641 Suo] d00l 34H
000°0¥$ 00°000'0% $ 00°02$ 7 00°0002 Suol sdiyd z/1
U, lelsieN
9SZ'v1$ 0£°9SZ'v1 $ SYelyS LS 086 s4noy JogeT
zls'1zs 0S'1.8'1e $| €¥600L0v$ 0G| sinoy juswdinbg
Jogejauswdinbg
1s0D) [Bul 1S00 UUN Anuenp feul4 nn uonduoseq way
s|elale\ Joqge [juswdinb3z A

*Aus o11gnd JO 100D B} UIYHIM

speos AjJunod snouea uo buideys % Buipelg pue

siuseAodw|/uoneljiqeyay Juswaned

MIOAA Jo 8doos

|

99

SS|IN [B10L

L Joeloid jo p

us 0} M Buiob ss|iw 'z Joy 109foud Lels py 00X Wody , pY S|IIH Uelpu|

|

S9jlW 9'¥, 108fo.d Jo pus GG AMH 0] 10ofoud LElS ZiG AMH 8ielS W04 , pY Buimz -speoy AlJuno) JuwIe |
_ |
dvD| :ON sloid
6110061 ‘NO :0d s wuedsq peoy Ajuno) aouello | :Aug

sajjijuenp pue s3so jo

Arewwng jjing sy




Agenda Item
No. 11-B



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2020-

A Resolution Establishing A County Cooperative (COOP) Program with The New Mexico
Department of Transportation for the Project SB, CN L500411

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico Legislature has allocated funds to Torrance

County for the purpose of construction and improvement of public highways and roads, and

WHEREAS, the project SB is approved for funding based on a total project cost of
$120,036.00; and

WHEREAS, the Local Government Road Fund Program requires a twenty-five percent
(25%) match to the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share of seventy-five percent
(75%), Torrance County’s share totals $30,009.00; and

WHEREAS, Torrance County will perform PAVEMENT
REHIBILITATION/IMPROVEMENTS OF VARIOUS COUNTY ROADS, the projects are as

follows:

CR Cedar Ln. 2.4 miles
CR Paradise Meadows Loop. 1.3 miles

WHEREAS, the above referenced project is a priority that has been adopted into

Torrance County’s long-term plan.:



10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17
18

CONTINUATION PAGE 2, RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION TITLE

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

DONE THIS DAY OF

» 2019,

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:

County Attorney Date

ATTEST:

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk

Date:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Member

Javier Sanchez, Member



Contract No.

Vendor No.

Control No. _1500411

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is between the New Mexico Department of Transportation (Department) and
Torrance County (Public Entity). This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last party to

sign it on the signature page below.

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 67-3-28 and 67-3-28.2 and the State Transportation
Commission Policy No. 44-12, the parties agree as follows:

1. Purpose.
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Local Government Road Funds to the Public Entity

for the Pavement Rehabilitation/Improvements, Blading and Shaping of Various County
Roads, as described in Control No. 1500411, and the Public Entity’s resolution attached as
Exhibit C (Project). The Project is a joint and coordinated effort for which the Department and
the Public Entity each have authority or jurisdiction. T his Agreement specifies and delineates the

rights and duties of the parties.

2. Project Funding.
a. The estimated total cost for the Project is One Mundred Twenty Thousand Thirty Six

Dollars ($120,036.00) to be funded in proportional share by the parties as follows:
1. Department’s share shall be 75% $90,027.00

Pavement Rehabilitation/Improvements, Blading and Shaping of Various
County Roads

2. The Public Entity’s required proportional matching
Share shall be 25% $30,009.00
For purpose stated above '

3. Total Project Cost $120,036.00
b. The Public Entity shall pay all Project costs, which exceed the total amount of Ninety
Thousand Twenty Seven Dollars (§90,027.00).

c. Any costs incurred by the Public Entity prior to this Agreement are not eligible for
reimbursement and are not included in the amount listed in this Section 2.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 1 of 9 FY20



3. The Department Shall:
Pay project funds as identified in Section 2, Paragraph al, to the Public Entity in a single lump

sum payment after:

a.
b.

Receipt of a Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed; and,

Verification of available Local Government Road Funds and Public Entity’s local
matching funds identified in Section 2, Paragraph a2.

All required documents must include Department Project and Control Number.

4. The Public Entity Shall:

a.
b.

h.

j.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019

Act in the capacity of lead agency for the purpose as described in Section 1.

Submit an estimate of the Project, including work to be performed and cost to the District
Engineer within thirty (30) days of execution of this Agreement, or as otherwise agreed to
in writing by the Parties.

Be solely responsible for all local matching funds identified in Section 2. Certify that
these matching funds have been appropriated, budget and approved for expenditure prior
to execution of this Agreement.

Pay all costs, perform/supply or contract for labor and material, for the purpose as
described in Section 1 and the Project estimate approved by the District Engineer.
Procure and award any contract in accordance with applicable procurement law, rules,
regulations and ordinances

Be responsible, for performing or directing the performance, of all pre-construction
activities, including, but not limited to, the following:

Utility Certification,

Drainage and storm drain design,

Geotechnical design,

Pavement design,

Environmental and archaeological clearances Certification,

Right of-way acquisition Certification,

Hazardous substance/waste site(s) contamination,

Railroad Certification,

Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Certification

Cause all designs and plans to be performed under the direct supervision of a Registered
New Mexico Professional Engineer, when applicable, as determined by the Department.
Obtain all required written agreements or permits, when applicable, from all public and
private entities.

Allow the Department to inspect the Project to determine that the Project is being
constructed in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Disclosures of any
failure to meet such requirements and standards as determined by the Department, will
result in termination, for default, including without limitation the Public Entity’s costs for
funding, labor, equipment and materials.

Complete the project within eighteen (1 8) months of approval of funding by the State

VO NA YR W

. Transportation Commission.
k. Within thirty (30) days of completion, provide written certification that all work under

Page 2 of 9 FY20



this Agreement was performed in accordance with either the New Mexico Department of
Transportation’s Standard Specification, Current Edition; American Public Works
Association (APWA) Specifications; Department approved Public Entity established
Specifications; or Department Specifications established for Local Government Road
Fund projects, by submitting the Project Certification of Design, Construction, and
Cost form, which is attached as Exhibit A. ,

|.  Within thirty (30) days of completion, furnish the Department an AS BUILT Summary
of Costs and Quantities form, which is attached as Exhibit B. The report should reflect
the total cost of project as stated in Project Certification of Design, Construction, and
Cost form. '

m. Failure to provide the Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form
and an AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities report within thirty (3 0) days of
Project completion will be considered a material breach of this Agreement and Public
Entity shall reimbuzse to the Department all funds disbursed in accordance with this
agreement.

n. Upon completion, maintain all Public Entity facilities that were constructed or
reconstructed under this Agreement.

5. Both Parties Agree:

a. Upon termination of this Agreement any remaining property, materials, or equipment
belonging to the Department will be accounted for and disposed of by the Public Entity as
directed by the Department.

b. Any unexpended or unencumbered balance from the Local Government Road Fund
appropriated for this Project reverts to the Department. These balances, if any, must be
reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) days of project completion or expiration
of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.

c. This Project is not being incorporated into the State Highway System and the Department is
not assuming maintenance responsibility or liability.

d. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-28.2, Local Government Road Funds granted
under this provision can not be used by the Public Entity to meet a required match under
any other program.

e. That the provisions of the Local Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Current
Edition), are incorporated by reference and control the contractual rights and obligations
of the parties unless in conflict with the specific terms expressed in this Agreement or any

amendments.

6. Term.
This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all Parties. The effective date is the date

when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This Agreement
terminates on December 31, 2021. In the event an extension to the term is needed, the Public
Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed justification to the Department sixty (60)
days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely processing of an Amendment.

7. Termination.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 3 of @ FY20



a. Ifthe Public Entity fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Department
may terminate this Agreement, by providing thirty (30) days written notice.

b. The Department may terminate this Agreement if the funds identified in Section 2 have
not been contractually committed within one year from the effective date of this
agreement.

c. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Legislature, this
Agreement may terminate immediately upon written notice of the Department to the
Public Entity.

d. Neither party has any obligation after termination, except as stated in Sections 4n and 5.

8. Third Party Beneficiary.
It is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any

member of the public a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the Agreement to
maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s), bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to person(s), damage(s) to
property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.

9. New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

As between the Department ansl Public Entity, neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred
as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability
incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New

Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, ef seq.

10. Contractors Insurance Requirements.

The Public Entity shall require contractors and subcontractors hired for the Project to have a general
liability insurance policy, with limits of liability of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence. The
Department is to be named as an additional insured on the contractors and subcontractor’s policy and
a certificate of insurance must be provided to the Department and it must state that coverage
provided under the policy is primary over any other valid insurance.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Public Entity shall require the contractor and
subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from and against any
liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court
costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings) arising out of or resulting from the negligence, act,
error, or omission of the contractor and subcontractor in the performance of the Project, or anyone
directly or indirectly employed by the contractor or anyone for whose acts they are liable in the

performance of the Project.

11. Scope of Agreement.
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties

concerning the subject matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have been
merged into this written Agreement. No prior Agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of
the parties or their agents will be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement.

12. Terms of this Agreement.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page4 of 9 FY20



The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations must conform with
and not contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances.

13. Legal Compliance.

The Public Entity shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and Department laws,
regulations and policies in the performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to laws
governing civil right, equal opportunity compliance, environmental issue, workplace safety,
employer-employee relations and all other laws governing operations of the workplace. The
Public Entity shall include the requirements of this Section 13 in in each contract and subcontract

at all tiers.

14. Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive
orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In
accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the
State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in the United States will, on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be excluded
from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this Agreement.
If the parties are found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the term of this
Agreement, the parties agree to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies.

15. Appropriations and Authorizations.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations being
made by the governing board of the Public Entity, the Legislature of New Mexico, or the Congress of -
the United States if federal funds are involved, for performance of the Agreement. If sufficient
appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Public Entity, Legislature or the Congress of
the United States if federal funds are involved, this Agreement will terminate upon written notice
being given by one party to the other. The Department and Public Entity are expressly not committed
to expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and

approved for expenditure.

16. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements.

There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursemenis relating to this Agreement.
The Public Entity shall maintain all records and documents relative to the Project for a minimum
of five years after completion of the Project. The Public Entity shall furnish the Department and
State Auditor, upon demand, any and all such records relevant to this Agreement. If an audit
finding determines that specific funding was inappropriate or not related to the Project, the
Public Entity shall reimburse that portion to the Department within thirty (30) days of written
notification. If documentation is insufficient to support an audit by customarily accepted
accounting practices, the expense supported by such insufficient documentation must be
reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) days.

17. Severability.
In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or
otherwise unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

Page 5 of 9 FY20

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019



18. Applicable Law.
The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice

of law provisions. Venue is be proper in a New Mexico Court of competent jurisdiction in
accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 38-3-1(G).

19. Amendment.
This Agreement may be altered, modified, or amended by an instrument in writing executed by the

parties.

The remainder of this page in intentionally Ieft blank.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 6 of 9 FY20



In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s
signature.

NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By: Date:
Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s
Office of General Counsel

By: Date:
Assistant General Counsel

Torrance County

By: Date:

Title:

Attest:

County Clerk

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 7 of 9 FY20



EXHIBIT A
PROJECT CERTIFICATION OF
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND COST

TO: New Mexico Department of Transportation
District 5 LGRF Coordinator

Cooperative Agreement No. Control No. __L500411
Joint Powers Agreement No. Control No.
Entity: Torrance County

Scope of Work (Including Routes and Termini):

CR Cedar Lane * from Lexco Rd start project proceed w 2.4 miles to end of project *

or ¥ mile to Paradise Meadows Loop

I, the undersigned, in my capacity as of state
that:

1. The design is in compliance with all state laws, rules, regulations, and local ordinances and was
performed in accordance with the provisions set forth in this agreement and in the Local Government

Road Fund Project Handbook (Current Edition).

2. Construction of the project was performed in accordance with standards and specifications set forth

in: And
completed on , 20 ; and

3. That the total project cost of , with New Mexico Department of
Transportation 75% share of and the Public Entity share of

(as submitted in attached “As Built Summary of Costs and Quantities”) is

accurate, legitimate, and appropriate for the project.

Name Date

Printed Name Title



Auno) Aq paied)|
S6°9T S 13N0
00°9€0°0CT S plemy 10a(oud 91eQ JeBeuep AunoD 8oueLo |
G6250'02k $ As0D jo8lold
£50°0Z1% [eJ01
G06°26$ £Z1'6$ Gzo'cls
§6'250'0Z1L% }S0J pejewysy [ejol
0S¥'91L$ 00°0S¥91 $ 00°0.v$ 00°G¢E Suo | |ees B0
GZG6'ss 00'62S's $ 00°68% 00°89 Suol XIIAl PI0D
0€6°2S$ 00°0€6°2S 3 00093 0064 Suo| d00l 34H
000°'cz$ 00°000‘cZ 3 00°02$ 00°0GtL suo| sdiyo z/1L
felsieiN
€zL'6$ 02’eCt's $ LELVEB'GLS G8G| sdnoy J0geT]
G20cl$ SLv20cl $ L/LGELT LES 0S€| sinoy juswdinb3
Jogejauswdinbg
[ 1s00 jeury 10D WU Auenp jeul4 N uonduoseqg wasy
sjelsle Joqe juswdinbg

"Ajus 21jgnd JO [013U0D BU UILIIM

speod Ajunod snouea uo buideys  Buipe|g pue

siuswiaA0LdW|/UONEl|IGBYSY JUSLISABH

MJOAA Jo 8doog

LS

SS|IN [BJ0L

"108[04d Jo pus 0} auj] AJunod 03 se|iw ¢ pesdold 108loid Lelrg

doo smopsyy esipeied 0} 9|

IW Z/] 40} pY SulANS UO S wIny 99 AMH Wold , do0T SMOPES|\ asIpeled

,108/0.d JO pus 0} $8|IW $°Z JOf A\

pee00.d 108[0.4d LEIS PY 00X87 WOy, dUET Jepa) -Speoy Auno) FETNEN
}2-0z0Z gS| :"ON 1oslod
L¥00G7 ‘NO ‘0d Juswiedsq peoy AjJunoD) aduello | :Anug

saljuenP pue s3sod jo

Arewwing jjing sy




Agenda Item
No. 11-C



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31

TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2020-

A Resolution Establishing A County Cooperative (COOP) Program with The New Mexico
Department of Transportation for the Project SP, CN L500391

WHEREAS, the State of New Mexico Legislature has allocated funds to Torrance

County for the purpose of construction and improvement of public highways and roads, and

WHEREAS, the project SP is approved for funding based on a total project cost of
$82,667.00; and

WHEREAS, the Local Government Road Fund Program requires a twenty-five percent
(25%) match to the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share of seventy-five percent

(75%), Torrance County’s share totals $20,667.00; and

WHEREAS, Torrance County will perform PAVEMENT
REHIBILITATION/IMPROVEMENTS OF VARIOUS COUNTY ROADS, the projects are as

follows:

CR Willow Lake W, 1 mile

WHEREAS, the above referenced project is a priority that has been adopted into

Totrance County’s long-term plan.:



10
11

12
13
14

15
16
17
18

CONTINUATION PAGE 2, RESOLUTION NO.

RESOLUTION TITLE

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

DONE THIS __ DAY OF

, 2019,

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:

County Attorney Date

ATTEST:

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk

Date:

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Kevin McCall, Member

Javier Sanchez, Member



Contract No.

Vendor No.

Control No. _L1.500391

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is between the New Mexico Department of Transportation (Department) and
Torrance County (Public Entity), This Agreement is effective as of the date of the last party to
sign it on the signature page below.

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Sections 67-3-28 and 67-3-28.2 and the State Transportation
Commission Policy No. 44-12, the parties agree as follows:

1. Purpose.
The purpose of this Agreement is to provide Local Government Road Funds to the Public Entity

for the Pavement Rehabilitation/Improvements, Blading and Shaping of Various County
Roads, as described in Control No. 1500391, and the Public Entity’s resolution attached as
Exhibit C (Project). The Project is a joint and coordinated effort for which the Department and
the Public Entity each have authority or jurisdiction. This Agreement specifies and delineates the
rights and duties of the parties.

2. Project Funding.
a. The estimated total cost for the Project is Eighty Two Thousand Six Hundred Sixty
Seven Dollars ($82,667.00) to be funded in proportional share by the parties as follows:
1. Department’s share shall be 75% $62,000.00

Pavement Rehabilitation/Improvements, Blading and Shaping of Various
County Roads

2. The Public Entity’s required proportional matching
Share shall be 25% $20,667.00
For purpose stated above

3. Total Project Cost $82,667.00

b. The Public Entity shall pay all Project costs, which exceed the total amount of Sixty Two
Thousand Dollars ($62,000.00).

c¢. Any costs incurred by the Public Entity prior to this Agreement are not eligible for
reimbursement and are not included in the amount listed in this Section 2.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 1 of 9 FY20



3. The Department Shall:
Pay project funds as identified in Section 2, Paragraph al, to the Public Entity in a single lump

sum payment after:

a.
b.

C.

Receipt of a Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed; and,

Verification of available Local Government Road Funds and Public Entity’s local
matching funds identified in Section 2, Paragraph a2.

All required documents must include Department Project and Control Number.

4. The Public Entity Shall:

a.

b.

j.

k.

Act in the capacity of lead agency for the purpose as described in Section 1.

Submit an estimate of the Project, including work to be performed and cost to the District
Engineer within thirty (30) days of execution of this Agreement, or as otherwise agreed to
in writing by the Parties.

Be solely responsible for all local matching funds identified in Section 2. Certify that
these matching funds have been appropriated, budget and approved for expenditure prior
to execution of this Agreement.

Pay all costs, perform/supply or contract for labor and material, for the purpose as
described in Section 1 and the Project estimate approved by the District Engineer.
Procure and award any contract in accordance with applicable procurement law, rules,
regulations and ordinances

Be responsible, for performing or directing the performance, of all pre-construction
activities, including, but not limited to, the following;:

Utility Certification,

Drainage and storm drain design,

Geotechnical design,

Pavement design,

Environmental and archaeological clearances Certification,

Right of-way acquisition Certification,

Hazardous substance/waste site(s) contamination,

Railroad Certification,

Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) Certification

Cause all designs and plans to be performed under the direct supervision of a Registered
New Mexico Professional Engineer, when applicable, as determined by the Department.
Obtain all required written agreements or permits, when applicable, from all public and
private entities.

Allow the Department to inspect the Project to determine that the Project is being
constructed in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. Disclosures of any
failure to meet such requirements and standards as determined by the Department, will
result in termination, for default, including without limitation the Public Entity’s costs for
funding, labor, equipment and materials.

Complete the project within eighteen (18) months of approval of funding by the State
Transportation Commission.

Within thirty (30) days of completion, provide written certification that all work under

Wb =

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page2 of 9 FY20



m.

this Agreement was performed in accordance with either the New Mexico Department of
Transportation’s Standard Specification, Current Edition; American Public Works
Association (APWA) Specifications; Department approved Public Entity established
Specifications; or Department Specifications established for Local Government Road
Fund projects, by submitting the Project Certification of Design, Construction, and
Cost form, which is attached as Exhibit A.

Within thirty (30) days of completion, furnish the Department an AS BUILT Summary
of Costs and Quantities form, which is attached as Exhibit B. The report should reflect
the total cost of project as stated in Project Certification of Design, Construction, and
Cost form.

Failure to provide the Project Certification of Design, Construction, and Cost form
and an AS BUILT Summary of Costs and Quantities report within thirty (30) days of
Project completion will be considered a material breach of this Agreement and Public
Entity shall reimburse to the Department all funds disbursed in accordance with this
agreement.

Upon completion, maintain all Public Entity facilities that were constructed or
reconstructed under this Agreement.

5. Both Parties Agree:

a.

Upon termination of this Agreement any remaining property, materials, or equipment
belonging to the Department will be accounted for and disposed of by the Public Entity as
directed by the Department.

Any unexpended or unencumbered balance from the Local Government Road Fund
appropriated for this Project reverts to the Department. These balances, if any, must be
reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) days of project completion or expiration
of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.

This Project is not being incorporated into the State Highway System and the Department is
not assuming maintenance responsibility or liability.

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-3-28.2, Local Government Road Funds granted
under this provision can not be used by the Public Entity to meet a required match under
any other program.

That the provisions of the Local Government Road Fund Project Handbook (Current
Edition), are incorporated by reference and control the contractual rights and obligations
of the parties unless in conflict with the specific terms expressed in this Agreement or any
amendments,

6. Term.
This Agreement becomes effective upon signature of all Parties. The effective date is the date

when the last party signed the Agreement on the signature page below. This Agreement
terminates on December 31, 2021. In the event an extension to the term is needed, the Public
Entity shall provide written notice along with detailed justification to the Department sixty (60)
days prior to the expiration date to ensure timely processing of an Amendment.

7. Termination.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 3 of 9 FY20



a. If the Public Entity fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement, the Department
may terminate this Agreement, by providing thirty (30) days written notice.

b. The Department may terminate this Agreement if the funds identified in Section 2 have
not been contractually committed within one year from the effective date of this
agreement.

c. If sufficient appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Legislature, this
Agreement may terminate immediately upon written notice of the Department to the
Public Entity.

d. Neither party has any obligation after termination, except as stated in Sections 4n and 5.

8. Third Party Beneficiary.
It isnot intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any

member of the public a third party beneficiary or to authorize anyone not a party to the Agreement to
maintain a suit(s) for wrongful death(s), bodily and/or personal injury(ies) to person(s), damage(s) to
property(ies), and/or any other claim(s) whatsoever pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement,

9. New Mexico Tort Claims Act.

As between the Department and Public Entity, neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred
as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability
incurred in connection with this Agreement is subject to the immunities and limitations of the New
Mexico Tort Claims Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 41-4-1, ef seq.

10. Contractors Insurance Requirements.

The Public Entity shall require contractors and subcontractors hired for the Project to have a general
liability insurance policy, with limits of liability of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence. The
Department is to be named as an additional insured on the contractors and subcontractor’s policy and
a certificate of insurance must be provided to the Department and it must state that coverage
provided under the policy is primary over any other valid insurance.

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Public Entity shall require the contractor and
subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Department from and against any
liability, claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorney’s fees, court
costs, and the cost of appellate proceedings) arising out of or resulting from the negligence, act,
error, or omission of the contractor and subcontractor in the performance of the Project, or anyone
directly or indirectly employed by the contractor or anyone for whose acts they are liable in the
performance of the Project.

11. Scope of Agreement.
This Agreement incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties

concerning the subject matter. All such covenants, agreements, and understandings have been
merged into this written Agreement. No prior Agreement or understandings, verbal or otherwise, of
the parties or their agents will be valid or enforceable unless embodied in this Agreement.

12. Terms of this Agreement.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 4 of 9 FY20



The terms of this Agreement are lawful; performance of all duties and obligations must conform with
and not contravene any state, local, or federal statutes, regulations, rules, or ordinances.

13. Legal Compliance.

The Public Entity shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and Department laws,
regulations and policies in the performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to laws
governing civil right, equal opportunity compliance, environmental issue, workplace safety,
employer-employee relations and all other laws governing operations of the workplace. The
Public Entity shall include the requirements of this Section 13 in in each contract and subcontract
at all tiers.

14. Equal Opportunity Compliance.

The parties agree to abide by all federal and state laws and rules and regulations, and executive
orders of the Governor of the State of New Mexico, pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In
accordance with all such laws and rules and regulations, and executive orders of the Governor of the
State of New Mexico, the parties agree to assure that no person in the United States will, on the
grounds of race, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, sexual preference, age or handicap, be excluded
from employment with, or participation in, any program or activity performed under this Agreement,
If the parties are found to not be in compliance with these requirements during the term of this
Agreement, the parties agree to take appropriate steps to correct these deficiencies.

15. Appropriations and Authorizations.

The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and authorizations being
made by the governing board of the Public Entity, the Legislature of New Mexico, or the Congress of
the United States if federal funds are involved, for performance of the Agreement. If sufficient
appropriations and authorizations are not made by the Public Entity, Legislature or the Congress of
the United States if federal funds are involved, this Agreement will terminate upon written notice
being given by one party to the other. The Department and Public Entity are expressly not committed
to expenditure of any funds until such time as they are programmed, budgeted, encumbered, and
approved for expenditure.

16. Accountability of Receipts and Disbursements.

There shall be strict accountability for all receipts and disbursements relating to this Agreement.
The Public Entity shall maintain all records and documents relative to the Project for a minimum
of five years after completion of the Project. The Public Entity shall furnish the Department and
State Auditor, upon demand, any and all such records relevant to this Agreement. If an audit
finding determines that specific funding was inappropriate or not related to the Project, the
Public Entity shall reimburse that portion to the Department within thirty (30) days of written
notification. If documentation is insufficient to support an audit by customarily accepted
accounting practices, the expense supported by such insufficient documentation must be
reimbursed to the Department within thirty (30) days.

17. Severability.
In the event that any portion of this Agreement is determined to be void, unconstitutional or

otherwise unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.
LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 5 of 9 FY20



18. Applicable Law.
The laws of the State of New Mexico shall govern this Agreement, without giving effect to its choice

of law provisions. Venue is be proper in a New Mexico Court of competent jurisdiction in
accordance with NMSA 1978, Section 38-3-1(G).

19. Amendment. _
This Agreement may be altered, modified, or amended by an instrument in writing executed by the

parties.

The remainder of this page in intentionally left blank.

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 6 of 9 Fy20



In witness whereof, each party is signing this Agreement on the date stated opposite that party’s
signature.

NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

By: . Date:
Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency by the New Mexico Department of Transportation’s
Office of General Counsel

By: Date:
Assistant General Counsel

Torrance County

By: Date:

Title:

Attest:
County Clerk

LGRF Agreement Rev 2/2019 Page 7 of 9 FY20



EXHIBIT A
PROJECT CERTIFICATION OF
DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND COST

TO: New Mexico Department of Transportation
District 5 LGRF Coordinator

Cooperative Agreement No. Control No. __ 1500391
Joint Powers Agreement No. Control No.
Entity: Torrance County

Scope of Work (Including Routes and Termini):

CR Willow Lake W. * from hwy. 41 start project going west 1 mile to end of project*

[, the undersigned, in my capacity as of state
that:

1. The design is in compliance with all state laws, rules, regulations, and tocal ordinances and was
performed in accordance with the provisions set forth in this agreement and in the Local Government
Road Fund Project Handbook (Current Edition).

2. Construction of the project was performed in accordance with standards and specifications set forth

in: And
completed on , 20 ; and

3. That the total project cost of , with New Mexico Department of
Transportation 75% share of and the Public Entity share of

(as submitted in attached “As Built Summary of Costs and Quantities”) is
accurate, legitimate, and appropriate for the project.

Name Date

Printed Name Title



(Axuno) Aq paAed) I | 7
¥O'TT $ | | |
00£99C8 $ | piomy [e10] ., | :e1eq Jebeuely AunoD souewo |
70'8/9°28% | [eJo] jo8lo.d |
8.9°28%$ |eyo] | W
¥0€'29$ 7£8'6$ 0PS‘vLS
#0°8.9°28$ | }s09 pajewnsy |ejo] |
00S°'Z1$ 00°00S2}) $ 000L$ 0S¢t Suo| 98Je00 aseg
092$ 00092 $ 0092$ 0l Auenb spueq
ZLS'v$ 00CLGY $ 09°'6ze$ q 0¢ Auenb SHBAIND
001'GLS ﬁ 00°001°Gl $ 00°02$ GG/ suo | Z/1 sdiyd
zee'ses | ¥€2ez'se $ £2°009% 44 Suo | 00} 34H
00L'v$ 00°00L'y $ 00°0.¥$ 0l Suo| |eag bo4
| [eLayey
¥£8°'G$ | 80'¥£8‘G $ 6E0SLL LIS 86% SJnoy J0QET
m ovS'viL$ 29'6E5'Y ) $ L6LLYS LTS 0S¢ sdnoy Juswdinbz
Joqeauswdinbg
[ 31s09 [eui 1800 1UN | Auenp jeuig nun uonduossqg weay|
s|elsle |y logen juswdinbgy || W ,‘
_ | "Ajus o11qnd jo 0u0d By} UM
| speos Alunod snouea uo buideys 3 Buipe|g pue sjuswanouduj/uonelljiqeysy JusWaAed | MO AA Jo 8doog
| _
| 5 S9|IN [ejo L
|
f _ _
"pus 03 sojiw | }sem Bulob | AmH wouy10sfoid Buiels 1sepn exe MOJ[IAA »~SPEOY AlUN0D JuuIS |
12-020Z dS| :ON 19foid
16€00561 ‘NO :0d Juslwiledaq peoy Ajuno) aouelio | :Amug

sanuBeNP pue s}so9 Jo

Alewwing jjing sy




Agenda Item
No. 11-D



TORRANCE COUNTY
New Mexico
Planning Grant Agreement
New Mexico Finance Authority No. PG-4958
$50,000

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss. CERTIFICATE OF GRANTEE
COUNTY OF TORRANCE)

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting
Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners and County Clerk of Torrance County (the
“Grantee”), State of New Mexico, that:

Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the same meanings as defined in
Resolution No. adopted by the Governing Body of the Grantee on September 23,
2020 (the “Resolution”) in connection with this Planning Grant, unless otherwise defined in this
Certificate or the context requires otherwise.

1. The Grantee is a legally and regularly created, established, organized and existing
County under Sections 4-30-1 and 4-30-2 NMSA 1978, as amended and supplemented, in good
standing under the laws of the State of New Mexico;

2, The resolutions, rules and regulations governing the Project and customer service
by the Grantee have been duly adopted and are now in full force and effect;

3. The Authorized Officers and Governing Body of the Grantee were duly and
validly elected or appointed and are empowered to act for the Grantee; and

4, The Grantee has all requisite corporate power:

(a) To perform or cause performance of the Project funded by the Planning
Grant and the Local Match, if applicable;

(b)  To execute and deliver Grant documents, including but not limited to
those identified above; and

(c) To perform all acts required by such Grant documents to be done by the
Grantee.

5. All proceedings of the Grantee, its elected and appointed officers, and employees,
required or necessary to be taken in connection with the authorization of the actions specified
above have been duly taken and all such authorizations are presently in full force and effect.



6. The Resolution and the Grant Agreement have been duly signed and adopted in
accordance with all applicable laws and neither has been repealed, rescinded, revoked, modified,
amended or supplemented in any manner except as set forth in the Resolution. The Resolution
constitutes valid and sufficient legal authority for the Grantee to carry out and enforce the
provisions of the Grant Agreement.

7. No event will result from the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement that
constitutes a default or an Event of Default under either the Grant Agreement or the Resolution,
and no Event of Default and no default under the Grant Agreement or the Resolution has
occurred and is continuing on the date of this Certificate.

8. The Grantee has duly authorized and approved the consummation by it of all
transactions, and has complied with all requirements and satisfied all conditions, which are
required by the Grant Agreement to have been authorized, approved, performed or consummated
by the Grantee at or prior to the date of this Certificate. The Grantee has full legal right, power
and authority to carry out and consummate the transactions contemplated by the Resolution and
the Grant Agreement.

9. All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
Jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the enforceability of
the Grant Agreement or any of the actions required to be taken by the Resolution or the Grant
Agreement to the date of this Certificate have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

10.  All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
Jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the completion of the
Project have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

11.  Neither the Grantee’s adoption of the Resolution nor any action contemplated by
or pursuant to the Resolution or the Grant Agreement conflicts or will conflict with, or constitute
a breach by the Grantee of, or default by the Grantee under any law, court decree or order,
governmental regulation, rule or order, resolution, agreement, indenture, mortgage or other
instrument to which the Grantee is subject or by which it is bound.

12. There is no actual or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation
against the Grantee, at law or in equity, by or before any court, public board or body, nor to the
Grantee's knowledge is there any basis therefore, affecting the existence of the Grantee or the
titles of its officials to their respective offices, or in any way materially adversely affecting or
questioning (a) the territorial jurisdiction of the Grantee, (b) the use of the proceeds of the Grant
Agreement for the Project, (c) the validity or enforceability of the Grant Agreement or any
proceedings of the Grantee with respect to the Grant Agreement or the Resolution, (d) the
execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement or (e) the power of the Grantee to carry out the
transactions contemplated by the Grant Agreement or the Resolution.

13. From at least April 25, 2019, to and including the date of this Certificate, the
following were and now are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers and members of the
Governing Body of the Grantee:

Certificate of Grantee
Torrance County, Planning Grant No, PG-4958



Chairman: Ryan Schwebach
Members: Javier Sanchez
Kevin McCall

County Clerk: Linda Jaramillo

14, To the best of our knowledge and belief after due investigation, none of the
Events of Default referred to in Article IX of the Grant Agreement has occurred.

15. The Grantee has complied with all the covenants and satisfied all the conditions
on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date hereof, and the representations and
warranties of the Grantee contained in the Grant Agreement and in the Resolution are true and
correct as of the date of this Certificate.

16.  To the best of our knowledge and belief after due investigation, neither the
Chairman, County Clerk, any member or director of the Governing Body of the Grantee, nor any
other officer, employee or other agent of the Grantee is interested (except in the performance of
his or her official rights, privileges, powers and duties), directly or indirectly, in the profits of
any contract, or job for work, or services to be performed and appertaining to the Project.

17.  Regular meetings of the Grantee’s Governing Body and the meeting at which the
Resolution was adopted have been held at Torrance County Administrative Building, 205 S.
Ninth Street, Estancia, New Mexico 87016, which is the principal meeting place of the Grantee.

18. The Grantee’s Governing Body has no rules of procedure which would invalidate
or make ineffective the Resolution or other action taken by the Grantee’s Governing Body in
connection with the Grant Agreement. The Open Meetings Act Resolution No. R2020-1 (the
“Open Meetings Act Resolution”) adopted and approved by the Governing Body on January 8,
2020, establishes notice standards as required by Section 10-15-1, NMSA 1978, as amended and
supplemented. The Open Meetings Act Resolution has not been amended or repealed. All
action of the Governing Body with respect to the Grant Agreement and Resolution was taken at
meetings held in compliance with the Open Meetings Act Resolution then in effect.

19.  The Chairman and County Clerk, on the date of the signing of the Grant
Agreement and on the date of this Certificate, are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers
of the Grantee authorized to execute the Grant Agreement.

20.  This Certificate is for the benefit of the Finance Authority.

21.  This Certificate may be executed in counterparts.

[Signatures on the following page.]

Certificate of Grantee
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958 -



WITNESS our signatures and the seal of the Grantee this October 2, 2020.

(SEAL)

Certificate of Grantee
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958

TORRANCE COUNTY

By

Ryan Schwebach, Chairman

By

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk



RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO THE ADOPTION OF
RESOLUTION NO.

OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
TORRANCE COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

SEPTEMBER 23, 2020
STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.
COUNTY OF TORRANCE )

The Board of County Commissioners (the "Governing Body") of Torrance County, New Mexico
(the "Grantee") met in a regular session in full conformity with the law and the rules and
regulations of the Governing Body at the Torrance County Administrative Building, 205 S. Ninth
Street, Estancia, New Mexico 87016, being the meeting place of the Governing Body for the
meeting held on September 23, 2020, at the hour of 9:00 a.m. Upon roll call, the following
members and officers were found to be present:

Present:;

Absent;

Also Present:

Thereupon, there was officially filed with the County Clerk a copy of a proposed
Resolution in final form, as follows:



TORRANCE COUNTY
RESOLUTION NO.

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOCAL
GOVERNMENT PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE "FINANCE
AUTHORITY"), AND TORRANCE COUNTY (THE "GRANTEE"), IN THE
AMOUNT OF $50,000.00 EVIDENCING AN OBLIGATION OF THE
GRANTEE TO UTILIZE THE GRANT AMOUNT AND THE LOCAL MATCH
AMOUNT, IF APPLICABLE, SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSE OF F INANCING
THE COSTS OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN/COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN WITH LEDA, AND SOLELY IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THE
GRANT AGREEMENT; CERTIFYING THAT THE GRANT AMOUNT,
TOGETHER WITH THE LOCAL MATCH, IF APPLICABLE, AND OTHER
FUNDS AVAILABLE TO THE GRANTEE, IS SUFFICIENT TO COMPLETE
THE PROJECT; APPROVING THE FORM OF AND OTHER DETAILS
CONCERNING THE GRANT AGREEMENT; RATIFYING ACTIONS
HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALL ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH
THIS RESOLUTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF OTHER
ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF
THE GRANT AGREEMENT.

Capitalized terms used in the following preambles have the same meaning as defined in
Section 1 of the Resolution unless the context requires otherwise.

WHEREAS, the Grantee is a legally and regularly created, established, organized and
existing County, in good standing under the general laws of the State of New Mexico and more
specifically Sections 4-30-1 and 4-30-2 NMSA 1978, as amended,;

WHEREAS, the Grantee is qualified to receive the Planning Grant pursuant to the Finance
Authority’s Rules Governing the Local Government Planning Fund and NMSA 1978, § 6-21-6.4,
as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby determines that the Project may be financed with
amounts granted pursuant to the Grant Agreement, that the Grant Amount, together with the Local
Match, if applicable, and other moneys available to the Grantee, is sufficient to complete the
Project, and that it is in the best interest of the Grantee and the public it serves that the Grant
Agreement be executed and delivered and that the funding of the Project take place by executing
and delivering the Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined that it may lawfully enter into the Grant
Agreement, accept the Grant Amount and be bound to the obligations and by the restrictions
thereunder; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee acknowledges and understands that the Planning Grant must be
expended and a Planning Document must be completed within one (1) year from the Closing Date,

Planning Grant Resolution 2
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



or the Grantee will forfeit the ability to draw Grant funds from the Local Government Planning
Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Grant Agreement shall not constitute a general obligation of the Grantee
or a debt of pledge of the faith and credit of the Grantee, the Finance Authority or the State; and

WHEREAS, there have been presented to the Governing Body and there presently are on
file with the County Clerk this Resolution and the form of the Grant Agreement which is
incorporated by reference and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, all required authorizations, consents and approvals in connection with (i) the
use of the Grant Amount for the purposes described and according to the restrictions set forth in
the Grant Agreement; and (ii) the authorization, execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement
which are required to have been obtained by the date of this Resolution, have been obtained or are
reasonably expected to be obtained.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF TORRANCE COUNTY, NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. Definitions. All terms used herein have the same definition as contained in
the draft Grant Agreement, dated October 2, 2020.

Section 2. Ratification. ~All action heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the
provisions of this Resolution) by the Grantee and officers of the Grantee, directed toward the
Project and the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement, shall be and the same hereby is
ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 3. Authorization of the Project and the Grant Agreement. The Project and the
method of funding the Project through execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement are hereby
authorized and ordered. The Project is for the benefit and use of the Grantee and the public it
serves.

Section 4. Findings. The Governing Body on behalf of the Grantee hereby declares
that it has considered all relevant information and data and hereby makes the following findings:

A. The Project is needed to compile a comprehensive plan that will include a
LEDA component for Southern Torrance County by developing public and private partnerships
and investment in economic development, land use, commercial and industry stock, as well as
social, recreational, arts, and cultural development. This plan will assist in updating the current
LEDA ordinance to address Southern Torrance County’s initiatives.

B. The costs of the Project are beyond the local control and resources of the
Grantee.

Planning Grant Resolution 3
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



C. The Project and the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement pursuant
to the Act to provide funds for the financing of the Project are in the interest of the public health,
safety and welfare of the public served by the Grantee.

D. The Grantee will perform (or cause to be performed) the Project with the
proceeds of the Planning Grant and will utilize the Project for the purposes set forth in the Grant
Agreement.

E. The Grantee will forfeit the Planning Grant if the Grantee fails to utilize the
Grant Amount within one (1) year of the Closing Date.

Section 5. Grant Agreement—Authorization and Detail.
A. Authorization. This Resolution has been adopted by the affirmative vote of

either a majority of a quorum of the Governing Body or of all members. For the purpose of
protecting the public health, conserving the property, and protecting the general welfare and
prosperity of the public served by the Grantee and by the other qualifying entities involved in the
Project, if any, and performing the Project, it is hereby declared necessary that the Grantee execute
and deliver the Grant Agreement evidencing the Grantee’s acceptance of the Grant Amount of
$50,000.00 and the availability of the Local Match, if applicable, or other funds to be utilized
solely for the Project and solely in the manner and according to the restrictions set forth in the
Grant Agreement, the execution and delivery of which are hereby authorized. The Grantee shall
use the proceeds of the Grant and the Local Match, if applicable, to finance the performance of the
Project. The Project will be owned by the Grantee and will be utilized by the Grantee as set forth
in the Grant Agreement.

B. Detail. The Grant Agreement shall be in substantially the form of the Grant
Agreement presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at which this Resolution was adopted.
The Grant shall be in the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00).

Section 6. Approval of Grant Agreement. The form of the Grant Agreement as
presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at which this Resolution was adopted is hereby
approved. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized to execute, acknowledge and
deliver the Grant Agreement with such changes, insertions, and deletions as may be approved by
such individual Authorized Officers, and the County Clerk is hereby authorized to affix the seal of
the Grantee on the Grant Agreement and attest the same. The execution of the Grant Agreement
shall be conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 7. Disposition of Proceeds: Completion of Acquisition of the Project.
A. Grant Account. The Grantee hereby consents to creation of the Grant

Account by the Finance Authority and approves of the deposit of the Grant Amount into the Grant
Account. Until the Completion Date, the money in the Grant Account shall be used and paid out
solely for the purpose of the Project in compliance with applicable law and the provisions of the
Grant Agreement.

Planning Grant Resolution 4
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



B. Completion of Acquisition of the Project. The Grantee shall proceed to
acquire and complete the Project with all due diligence. Upon the Completion Date, the Grantee
shall execute a certificate substantially in the form attached as Exhibit “C” to the Grant Agreement
stating that acquisition of and payment for the Project have been completed. As soon as practicable
and, in any event, not more than sixty (60) days after the Completion Date, any balance remaining
in the Grant Account shall be transferred and returned to the Local Government Planning Grant
Fund.

C. Finance Authority Not Responsible. The Finance Authority shall in no
manner be responsible for the application or disposal by the Grantee or by the officers of the
Grantee of the funds derived from the Grant Agreement or of any other funds held by or made
available to the Grantee’s in connection with use of the Project.

Section 8. Authorized Officers.  Authorized Officers are hereby individually
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers, instruments, opinions, affidavits
and other documents and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper
for carrying out this Resolution, the Grant Agreement, and all other transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized to do all acts and
things required of them by this Resolution and the Grant Agreement for the full, punctual and
complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements contained in this Resolution and
the Grant Agreement, including, but not limited to, the execution and delivery of closing
documents in connection with the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement.

Section 9. Amendment of Resolution. This Resolution after its adoption may be
amended without receipt by the Grantee of any additional consideration, but only with the prior
written consent of the Finance Authority.

Section 10.  Resolution Irrepealable. After the Grant Agreement has been executed and
delivered, this Resolution shall be and remain irrepealable until all obligations of the Grantee under
the Grant Agreement shall be fully discharged, as herein provided.

Section 11.  Severability Clause. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the
remaining provisions of this Resolution.

Section 12.  Repealer Clause. All bylaws, orders, resolutions, ordinances, or parts
thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This
repealer shall not be construed to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof,
heretofore repealed.

Section 13.  Effective Date. Upon due adoption of this Resolution, it shall be recorded
in the book of the Grantee kept for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the Chairman
and County Clerk of the Grantee, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect thereafter, in
accordance with law; provided, however, that if recording is not required for the effectiveness of

Planning Grant Resolution 5
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



this Resolution, this Resolution shall be effective upon adoption of this Resolution by the
Governing Body.

Section 14. Execution of Agreements. Torrance County through its Governing Body
agrees to authorize and execute all such agreements with the Finance Authority as are necessary
to consummate the Grant contemplated herein and consistent with the terms and conditions
attached hereto.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS SEPTEMBER 23, 2020.

TORRANCE COUNTY, New Mexico

By

Ryan Schwebach, Chairman

ATTEST:

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

Planning Grant Resolution 6
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



Governing Body Member then moved adoption

of the foregoing Resolution, duly seconded by Governing Body Member

The motion to adopt said Resolution, upon being put to a vote was passed and adopted on

the following recorded vote:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

( ) members of the Governing Body having voted in favor of said
motion, the Chairman declared said motion carried and said Resolution adopted, whereupon the
Chairman and the County Clerk signed the Resolution upon the records of the minutes of the
Governing Body.

After consideration of matters not relating to the Resolution, the meeting on motion duly
made, seconded and carried, was adjourned.

[Signature page follows.]

Planning Grant Resolution 7
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



TORRANCE COUNTY, New Mexico

By
Ryan Schwebach, Chairman
By
Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk
(SEAL)
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
Planning Grant Resolution 8

Torrance County, Planning Grant No, PG-4958



STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.
COUNTY OF TORRANCE )

I, Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk, the duly qualified and acting record-keeping officer of
Torrance County, New Mexico (the “Grantee”), do hereby certify:

I. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect, and complete copy of the record of the
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners of Torrance County, New Mexico,
constituting the Governing Body of the Grantee, had and taken at a duly called regular meeting
held at the Torrance County Administrative Building, 205 S. Ninth Street, Estancia, New Mexico
87016, on September 23, 2020, at the hour of 9:00 a.m., insofar as the same relate to the adoption
of Resolution No. and the execution and delivery of the proposed Grant Agreement, a
copy of which is set forth in the official records of the proceedings of the Governing Body kept in
the offices of the Grantee. None of the action taken in the said proceedings has been rescinded,
repealed or modified.

2. Said proceedings were duly had and taken as therein shown, the meeting therein
was duly held, and the persons therein named were present at said meeting, as therein shown.

3. Notice of said meeting was given in compliance with the permitted methods of
giving notice of regular meetings of the Governing Body as required by the State Open Meetings
Act, NMSA 1978, §10-15-1, as amended, including, Grantee’s Open Meetings Resolution
No. R2020-1, dated January 8, 2020, presently in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this October 2, 2020.

TORRANCE COUNTY, New Mexico

By

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk

(SEAL)

Planning Grant Resolution 9
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



EXHIBIT “A”

Notice of Meeting

Planning Grant Resolution 10
Torrance County, Planning Grant No. PG-4958



$50,000

PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT

dated

October 2, 2020

by and between

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
and

TORRANCE COUNTY
New Mexico



PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT

THIS PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT (the “Grant agreement”), dated October 2,
2020, is entered into by and between the NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance
Authority”) and Torrance County, New Mexico (the “Grantee”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate, separate and
apart from the State of New Mexico (the “State”), constituting a governmental instrumentality,
duly organized and created under and pursuant to the laws of the State, particularly NMSA 1978
§§ 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, as amended, (the “New Mexico Finance Authority Act”); and

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, § 6-21-6.4, as amended, creates the Local Government Planning
Fund to be administered by the Finance Authority to make Grants to qualified entities to develop
a comprehensive economic development plan with LEDA; and

WHEREAS, Grantee is a legally and regularly created, established, organized and existing
County, in good standing under the general laws of the State and more specifically Sections 4-30-1
and 4-30-2 NMSA 1978, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee is qualified to receive the Planning Grant pursuant to the Finance
Authority’s Rules and NMSA 1978, §6-21-6.4, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee has applied to the Finance Authority for Planning Grant (as
defined below) funding and has determined that it is in the best interest of the Grantee and the
public it serves that the Grantee enter into this Grant Agreement with the Finance Authority and
accept a grant in the amount of $50,000 from the Finance Authority to carry out the Project, as
more fully described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee acknowledges and understands that the Planning Grant must be
expended and the Planning Documents must be completed within one (1) year from the Closing
Date, or the Grantee will forfeit the ability to draw Grant funds from the Local Government
Planning Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee is prepared to perform all its obligations and to observe and obey
all restrictions on the use of the Grant set forth in this Grant Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
promises and covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree:

ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, including the foregoing recitals, the following terms shall, for
all purposes, have the meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise

Planning Grant Agreement 1
Totrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



(such meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and the plural forms of the terms
defined):

“Agreement Term” means the term of this Grant Agreement as provided under
Article III of this Grant Agreement.

“Authorized Officers” means in the case of the Grantee the Chairman, County
Clerk, and County Manager of the Governing Body, and in the case of the Finance Authority the
Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer, or any other officer or employee of the Finance Authority designated in writing by an
Authorized Officer.

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of this Grant
Agreement,

“Event of Default” means one or more events of default as defined in Article IX of
this Grant Agreement.

“Finance Authority” means the New Mexico Finance Authority.

“Force Majeure” means any act of God, fire, floods, storms, explosions, accidents,
epidemics, war, civil disorder, strikes, lockouts or other labor difficulties, or any law, rule,
regulation, order or other action adopted or taken by any federal, state or local government
authority, or any other cause not reasonably within such party’s control.

“Governing Body” means the Board of County Commissioners of the Grantee, or
any future governing body of the Grantee.

“Grant or Grant Amount” means the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00).
“Grant Account” means the account in the name of the Grantee established pursuant
to this Grant Agreement and held by the Finance Authority for deposit of the Grant Amount for

disbursal to the Grantee for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Grant Agreement” means this grant agreement and any amendments or
supplements hereto, including the Exhibits attached hereto.

“Grantee” means Torrance County, New Mexico.
“Herein,” “hereby,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereinabove,” “hereafter” and similar
words refer to this entire Grant Agreement and not solely to the particular section or paragraph of

this Grant Agreement in which such word is used.

“Local Government Planning Fund” means the fund of the same name created
pursuant to the Act and held and administered by the Finance Authority.

Planning Grant Agreement 2
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



“Local Match” means $0.

“NMSA 1978” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978 Compilation, as
amended and supplemented.

“Planning Document” means a written document in the form of a comprehensive
plan that will include a LEDA component for southern Torrance County, created for the purpose
of evaluating and estimating the costs of alternatives to address southern Torrance County
initiatives to meet the Grantee’s public project needs.

“Planning Grant” or “Grant” means the amount provided to the Grantee pursuant
to the Grant Agreement for the purpose of funding the Project and is equal to the Grant Amount.

“Policy” or “Policies” means the New Mexico Finance Authority Local
Government Planning Fund Project Management Policies.

“Project” means the preparation of the Planning Document as more particularly
described in Exhibit “A” hereto.

“Resolution” means the Grantee’s Resolution No. adopted  on
September 23, 2020, authorizing the Grantee’s acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Grant
Agreement.

“Rules” mean the Rules governing the Local Government Planning Fund as
adopted by the Board of Directors of the Finance Authority, as amended and supplemented from
time to time.

ARTICLE II: REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

Section 2.1. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Grantee. The Grantee
represents, warrants and covenants as follows:

(a) Binding Nature of Covenants. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements of the Grantee contained in this Grant Agreement and the Resolution shall be deemed
to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Grantee to the full extent
authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall
be binding upon the Grantee and its successors and upon any board or body to which any powers
or duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreement shall be transferred by
or in accordance with law. Except as otherwise provided in this Grant Agreement, all rights,
powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities imposed upon the Grantee by the
provisions of this Grant Agreement and the Resolution shall be exercised or performed by the
Grantee or by such residents, officers, or officials of the Grantee as may be required by law to
exercise such powers and to perform such duties.

(b)  Personal Liability. No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement
contained in this Grant Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or

Planning Grant Agreement 3
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the Grantee or member of the Governing Body in
his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Governing Body nor any officer
executing this Grant Agreement shall be liable personally on this Grant Agreement or be subject
to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery thereof,

() Authorization of Grant Agreement. The Grantee is a County duly organized
and existing under the statutes and laws of the State, specifically Sections 4-30-1 and 4-30-2
NMSA 1978. Pursuant to the laws of the State, as amended and supplemented from time to time,
the Grantee is authorized to enter into the transactions contemplated by this Grant Agreement and
to carry out its obligations hereunder. The Grantee has duly authorized and approved the execution
and delivery of this Grant Agreement and the other documents related to the transaction.

(d) Use of Grant Agreement Proceeds. The Grantee shall apply the proceeds
of the Grant solely to the acquisition and completion of the Project, shall not use the Grant proceeds
for any other purpose, and shall comply with all applicable ordinances and regulations, if any, and
any and all applicable laws relating to the Project. The Grantee shall immediately apply all Grant
proceeds disbursed to it toward the Project. The Grantee shall use the Grant proceeds and complete
the Planning Document within one (1) year of the Closing Date or shall forfeit the full amount of
the Grant.

(e) Selection of Contractors. All contractors providing services or materials in
connection with the Project shall be selected in accordance with applicable provisions of the New
Mexico Procurement Code, NMSA 1978, §§13-1-28 through 13-1-199, as amended, or, if the
Grantee is not subject to the New Mexico Procurement Code, shall be selected in accordance with
a documented procurement process duly authorized and established pursuant to laws and
regulations applicable to the Grantee.

® Completion of Project. The Project will consist of the preparation of the
Planning Document to address Economic Development Plan, Comprehensive Plan with LEDA,
and will be completed so as to comply with all applicable ordinances and regulations, if any, and
any and all applicable laws, rules, and regulations of the State relating to the acquisition and
completion of the Project and to the use of the Grant proceeds. If requested by the Finance
Authority, the Grantee will allow the New Mexico Economic Development Department or other
appropriate agency of the State, or the Finance Authority to assist with completion of the Project
and to review the Project as completed to assure compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations of the State. The completed Planning Document must be in a form acceptable to and
approved by the Finance Authority, in its sole discretion.

(8)  Necessity of Project. The completion of the Project under the terms and
conditions provided in this Grant Agreement is necessary, convenient and in furtherance of the
governmental purposes of the Grantee and is in the best interest of the Grantee and the public it
serves.

(h)  Legal, Valid and Binding Obligation. The Grantee has taken all required
action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement and this Grant
Agreement constitutes a legal agreement of the Grantee enforceable in accordance with its terms.

Planning Grant Agreement 4
Torrance County, Grant No, PG-4958



(i) Benefit to Grantee. The Project will at all times be used for the purpose of
benefiting the Grantee and the public it serves as a whole.

G9) Grant Amount Does Not Exceed Project Cost. The Grant Amount as
provided herein does not exceed the cost of the Project.

(k)  No Breach or Default Caused by Grant Agreement. Neither the execution
and delivery of this Grant Agreement, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and
conditions in this Grant Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein
conflicts with or results in a breach of any terms, conditions or provisions of, or any restrictions
contained in, any agreement or instrument to which the Grantee is a party or by which the Grantee
is bound or any laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court or other governmental
orders to which the Grantee or its properties are subject, or constitutes a default under any of the
foregoing.

)] Irrevocability of Grant Agreement. The terms of this Grant Agreement shall
be irrevocable until the Project has been fully acquired and completed, and shall not be subject to
amendment or modification in any manner which would result in any use of the proceeds of this
Grant Agreement in a manner not permitted or contemplated by the terms hereof.

(m) No Litigation. To the best knowledge of the Grantee, no litigation or
proceeding is pending or threatened against the Grantee or any other person affecting the right of
the Grantee to execute this Grant Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Grant
Agreement. Neither the execution of this Grant Agreement by the Grantee nor compliance by the
Grantee with the obligations hereunder requires the approval of any regulatory body, or any other
entity, which approval has not been obtained or which is not reasonably expected to be obtained.

(n) Occurrence of Event of Default. No event has occurred, and no condition
exists which, upon the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement, would constitute an Event
of Default on the part of the Grantee hereunder.

(0) Grantee’s BExistence. The Grantee will maintain its legal identity and
existence for the Agreement Term, unless another political subdivision by operation of law
succeeds to the liabilities, rights, and duties of the Grantee without adversely affecting to any
substantial degree the privileges and rights of the Finance Authority.

(p)  Reports to Finance Authority. The Grantee shall report at least semi-
annually to the Finance Authority on the status of the Planning Document.

(@  Records. The Grantee shall properly maintain separate project accounts in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and conduct an annual audit or review
of the Grantee’s financial records related to the Project.

Section 2.2. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Finance Authority. The
Finance Authority represents, warrants and covenants as follows:

Planning Grant Agreement 5
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



(a) The Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate, separate and
apart from the State, constituting a governmental instrumentality duly organized, existing and in
good standing under the laws of the State, has all necessary power and authority to enter into and
perform and observe the covenants and agreements on its part contained in this Grant Agreement
and, by proper action, has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement.

(b)  This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the
Finance Authority enforceable in accordance with its terms.

ARTICLE III: AGREEMENT TERM

The Agreement Term shall commence on the Closing Date and shall terminate upon the
carliest of the following events: a determination by the Finance Authority that (a) the Grantee is
unable to proceed with the Project for the foreseeable future or has failed to commence the Project
in a reasonably timely manner, (b) the Grant or any portion thereof is not necessary for the Project
(in which case the Grant Amount may be modified by the Finance Authority)or (c) the Grantee
has failed to utilize the Planning Grant to complete the Planning Document within one year of the
Closing Date.

ARTICLE 1V: GRANT; APPLICATION OF MONEYS

On the Closing Date, the Finance Authority shall transfer the amount shown on Exhibit
“A” into the Grant Account to be disbursed by the Finance Authority pursuant to Section 6.2 of
this Grant Agreement at the direction of the Grantee, as needed by the Grantee to acquire and
complete the Project.

ARTICLE V: GRANT TO THE GRANTEE

Section 5.1.  Grant to the Grantee. The Finance Authority hereby grants, and the Grantee
hereby accepts an amount equal to the Grant Amount. The Finance Authority shall establish and
maintain, on behalf of the Grantee, a Grant Account, which Grant Account shall be kept separate
and apart from all other accounts of the Finance Authority. The Grantee hereby pledges to the
Finance Authority all its rights, title and interest in the funds held in the Grant Account for the
purpose of securing the Grantee’s obligations under this Grant Agreement. Funds in the Grant
Account shall be disbursed as provided in Sections 6.2 and 6.3 hereof.

Section 5.2. No General Obligation. No provision of this Grant Agreement shall be
construed or interpreted as creating a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Grantee within
the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation.

Section 5.3. Investment of Moneys in Grant Account. Money on deposit in the Grant
Account may be invested by the Finance Authority for the credit of the Local Government
Planning Fund.

Planning Grant Agreement 6
Torrance County, Grant No, PG-4958



ARTICLE VI: THE PROJECT

Section 6.1. Agreement to Acquire and Complete the Project. The Grantee hereby
agrees that in order to effectuate the purposes of this Grant Agreement and to acquire and complete
the Project it shall take such steps as are necessary and appropriate to acquire and complete the
Project lawfully, efficiently and within one (1) year of the Closing Date.

Section 6.2. Disbursements from the Grant Account. So long as no Event of Default
shall occur, the Finance Authority shall disburse moneys from the Grant Account, either to the
Grantee or to vendors and contractors, as determined by the Finance Authority in its sole
discretion, upon receipt by the Finance Authority of a requisition substantially in the form of
Exhibit “B” attached hereto signed by an Authorized Officer of the Grantee, supported by
certification by the Grantee’s project architect, engineer, or other such authorized representative
of the Grantee acceptable to the Finance Authority that the amount of the disbursement request
represents the progress of completion, acquisition or other Project related activities accomplished
as of the date of the disbursement request. The Grantee shall provide such records or access to the
Project as the Finance Authority, in its sole discretion, may request in connection with the approval
of the Grantee’s disbursement requests made hereunder. No disbursement from the Grant Account
may be made without receipt of evidence of the Local Match, if applicable.

Section 6.3. Determination of Eligibility as condition Precedent to Disbursement. Prior
to the disbursement of the Grant Amount or any portion thereof, the Finance Authority shall have
determined that the Grantee has met the readiness to proceed requirements established for the
Grant by the Finance Authority and no Event of Default shall have occurred. No disbursement
shall be made from the Grant Account except upon a determination by the Finance Authority that
such disbursement is for payment of Project expenses, and that the disbursement does not exceed
any limitation upon the amount payable.

Section 6.4. Reimbursement for Prior Expenditures. The Finance Authority, so long as
no Event of Default shall occur and upon presentation of the Grantee’s disbursement request with
such certification and records as are required in accordance with Section 6.2 hereof, may disburse
moneys from the Grant Account for reimbursement of Project expenses incurred after the Finance
Authority Board of Directors approved the grant on April 25, 2019.

Section 6.5. Completion of Disbursement of Grant Funds. Upon completion of
disbursement of the Grant Amount, an Authorized Officer of the Grantee shall deliver a certificate
of completion, substantially in the form attached to this Grant Agreement as Exhibit “C”, to the
Finance Authority stating that, to the best of the Authorized Officer’s knowledge the Project has
been completed and the entire Grant Amount has been disbursed in accordance with the terms of
this Grant Agreement. If any portion of the Grant Amount remains upon the delivery of the
certificate of completion, the Finance Authority may, in its sole discretion, modify this Grant
Agreement and reduce the amount of the Grant.

Planning Grant Agreement 7
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



ARTICLE VII: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND RULES;
OTHER COVENANTS

Section 7.1.  Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The Finance Authority and
the Grantee agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to
be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments
as may reasonably be required for carrying out the terms and intention hereof.

Section 7.2. Finance Authority and Grantee Representatives. Whenever under the
provisions of this Grant Agreement the approval of the Finance Authority or the Grantee is
required, or the Grantee or the Finance Authority is required to take some action at the request of
the other, such approval or such request shall be given for the Finance Authority or for the Grantee
by an Authorized Officer of the Finance Authority or the Grantee, as the case may be, and any
party hereto shall be authorized to act or rely on any such approval or request.

Section 7.3. Requirements of Law. During the Agreement Term, the Grantee shall
observe and comply promptly with all applicable federal, State and local laws and regulations
affecting the Project, and all current and future orders of all courts and agencies of the State having
jurisdiction over the Project and matters related to the Project.

ARTICLE VIII: NON-LIABILITY OF FINANCE AUTHORITY FOR
ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF THE GRANTEE; INDEMNIFICATION

Section 8.1. Non-Liability of Finance Authority. The Finance Authority shall not be
liable in any manner for the Project, Grantee’s use of the Grant, the ownership, operation or
maintenance of the Project, or any failure to act properly by the owner or operator of the Project.

Section 8.2. Indemnification of Finance Authority. The Finance Authority shall not be
responsible for any act or omission of the Grantee upon which any claim, by or on behalf of any
person, firm, corporation or other legal entity may be made, whether arising from the establishment
or modification of the Project or otherwise. To the extent permitted by law, the Grantee shall and
hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Finance Authority and its designee, if any, from
all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or other legal entity arising from the
acquisition and completion of the Project. In the event of any action or proceeding brought on any
such claim, upon notice from the Finance Authority or its designee, Grantee shall defend the
Finance Authority and its designee, if any, in any such action or proceeding.

ARTICLE IX: EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 9.1. Events of Default Defined. Any one of the following shall be an Event of
Default under this Agreement:

(a) Use of the Grant Amount, or any portion thereof, by the Grantee for
purposes other than the Project;

Planning Grant Agreement 8
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



(b) Failure by the Grantee to utilize the Grant proceeds to complete the Project
within one (1) year of the Closing Date;

(c) Failure by the Grantee to observe and perform any other covenant, condition
or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Grant Agreement for a period of
thirty (30) days after written notice, specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, is
given to the Grantee by the Finance Authority, unless the Finance Authority shall agree in writing
to an extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the
notice can be wholly cured within a period of time not materially detrimental to the rights of the
Finance Authority, but cannot be cured within the applicable thirty (30)day period, the Finance
Authority will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time if corrective
action is instituted by the Grantee within the applicable period and diligently pursued until the
failure is corrected; and provided, further, that if by reason of Force Majeure the Grantee is unable
to carry out the agreements on its part herein contained, the Grantee shall not be deemed in default
under this paragraph during the continuance of such inability (but Force Majeure shall not excuse
any other Event of Default); or

(d) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the
Grantee contained in this Grant Agreement or in any instrument furnished in compliance with or
in reference to this Grant Agreement is false or misleading in any material respect.

Section 9.2. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing, and subject to Section 9.3 hereof, the Finance Authority may take whatever of the
following actions may appear necessary or desirable to enforce performance of any agreement of
the Grantee in this Grant Agreement:

(a) File a mandamus proceeding or other action or proceeding or suit at law or
in equity to compel the Grantee to perform or carry out its duties under the law and the agreements
and covenants required to be performed by it contained herein;

(b)  Terminate this Grant Agreement;

(c) Cease disbursing any further amounts from the Grant Account;

(d) Demand that the Grantee immediately repay the Grant Amount or any
portion thereof if such funds were not utilized in accordance with this Grant Agreement;

(e) File a suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate
the rights of the Finance Authority; or

€)) Take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or
desirable to enforce any other of its rights hereunder.

The Grantee shall be responsible for reimbursing the Finance Authority for any and all fees and
costs incurred in enforcing the terms of this Grant Agreement.

Planning Grant Agreement 0
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



Section 9.3  Limitations on Remedies. A judgment requiring repayment of money
entered against the Grantee may reach any available funds of the Grantee to the extent permitted
by law.

Section 9.4. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the
Finance Authority is intended to be exclusive, and every such remedy shall be cumulative and
shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or
in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall
impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and
power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to
entitle the Finance Authority to exercise any remedy reserved in this Article IX, it shall not be
necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article IX.

Section 9.5. Waivers of Events of Default. The Finance Authority may in its sole
discretion waive any Event of Default hereunder and the consequences of such an Event of Default;
provided, however, all expenses of the Finance Authority in connection with such Event of Default
shall have been paid or provided for. Such waiver shall be effective only if made by written
statement of waiver issued by the Finance Authority. In case of any such waiver or rescission, or
in case any proceeding taken by the Finance Authority on account of any Event of Default shall
have been discontinued or abandoned or determined adversely, then the Finance Authority and the
Grantee shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder, respectively, but no such
waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default, or impair any right
consequent thereon.

Section 9.6. No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event that any
agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other
party, such waiver shall be in writing and limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not
be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder.

ARTICLE X: MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1. Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall
be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered as follows:

If to the Grantee, then to:

Torrance County

Attn.: County Manager

205 S. Ninth Street

Estancia, New Mexico 87016

And if to the Finance Authority, then to:
New Mexico Finance Authority

Attn.: Chief Executive Officer
207 Shelby Street

Planning Grant Agreement 10
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

The Grantee and the Finance Authority may, by written notice given hereunder, designate any
further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications
shall be sent.

Section 10.2. Binding Effect. This Grant Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall
be binding upon the Finance Authority, the Grantee and their respective successors and assigns, if
any.

Section 10.3. Amendments. This Grant Agreement may be amended only with the
written consent of the Finance Authority and the Grantee.

Section 10.4. No Liability of Individual Officers, Directors or Trustees. No recourse
under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Grant Agreement shall be
had against any member, employee, director or officer, as such, past, present or future, of the
Finance Authority, or against any officer, employee, director or member of the Grantee, past,
present or future, as an individual so long as such individual was acting in good faith and within
the scope of his or her duties. Any and all personal liability of every nature, whether at common
law or in equity, or by statute or by constitution or otherwise, of any such officer, employee,
director or member of the Grantee or of the Finance Authority is hereby expressly waived and
released by the Grantee and by the Finance Authority as a condition of and in consideration for
the execution of this Agreement.

Section 10.5. Grantee Compliance. The Finance Authority shall not be responsible for
assuring the Grantee’s use of the Grant Amount or the Project for its intended purpose and shall
have no obligation to monitor compliance by the Grantee with the provisions of this Grant
Agreement.

Section 10.6. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Grant Agreement shall
be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 10.7. Execution in Counterparts. This Grant Agreement may be simultaneously
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute
but one and the same instrument.

Section 10.8. Applicable Law. This Grant Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 10.9. Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in
no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Grant
Agreement.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]

Planning Grant Agreement 11
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Finance Authority, on behalf of itself, and as authorized by
the Finance Authority Board of Directors on April 25, 2019, has executed this Grant Agreement
in its corporate name with its corporate seal hereunto affixed and attested by its duly Authorized
Officers; and the Grantee has caused this Grant Agreement to be executed in its corporate name
and the seal of the Grantee affixed and attested by its duly Authorized Officers. All of the above
are effective as of the date first above written.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

Approved for Execution by Officers of the
New Mexico Finance Authority:

By.

Daniel C. Opperman, Chief Legal Officer

TORRANCE COUNTY, New Mexico

By

Ryan Schwebach, Chairman
[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk

Planning Grant Agreement 12
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



Grantee:

Project Description:

Total Grant Amount;
Local Match:

Closing Date:

Planning Grant Agreement
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958

EXHIBIT “A”

TERM SHEET

Torrance County

Preparation of a comprehensive plan that will include a
LEDA component for Southern Torrance County by
developing public and private partnerships and investment
in economic development, land use, commercial and
industry stock, as well as social, recreational, arts, and
cultural development. This plan will assist in updating the
current LEDA ordinance to address Southern Torrance
County’s initiatives.

$50,000.00
$0

October 2, 2020

A-1



EXHIBIT “B”
FORM OF REQUISITION

RE:  $50,000.00 Planning Grant Agreement (the “Grant Agreement”) by and between the New
Mexico Finance Authority (“Finance Authority”) and Torrance County, New Mexico
(“Grantee”), Finance Authority Grant Number PG-4958 (the “Grant Agreement”).
Closing Date: October 2, 2020

TO: NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

You are hereby authorized to disburse funds from the Grant Account, with regard to the above-
referenced Grant Agreement, the following:

REQUISITION NUMBER: 2|
PAYMENT AMOUNT: § 500, OO
Torrancce QRouya 5‘-\(
NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYEE: 205 S. Ath st
PO Box U4E; Estanda, Nh §7016
PURPOSE OF PAYMENT: Grant Reimbveroment
WIRING INFORMATION
BANK NAME:
ACCOUNT NUMBER:
ROUTING NUMBER:

Fach obligation, item of cost or expense mentioned herein is for the Grant made by the New
Mexico Finance Authority pursuant to the Grant Agreement to the Grantee, within the State of
New Mexico, is due and payable, has not been the subject of any previous requisition and is a
proper charge against the Grant Account held on behalf of the Grantee. All representations
contained in the Grant Agreement and the related closing documents remain true and correct and
the Grantee is not in breach of any of the covenants contained therein.

Capitalized terms used herein are used as defined or as used in th%mem
DATED: C}//DI/QDOZD By: A\ %&LU}\

Authorizéli Officer of the Grantee

Print Name: WMM '339,////0
Titler [ 10A5UTer

Planning Grant Agreement B-1
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



EXHIBIT “C”

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION

RE:  $50,000.00 Planning Grant Agreement (the “Grant Agreement”) by and between the New
Mexico Finance Authority (“Finance Authority”) and Torrance County, New Mexico
(“Grantee”), Finance Authority Grant Number PG-4958 (the “Grant Agreement’).
Closing Date: October 2, 2020

TO: NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

I, the of
[Name] [Title or position]

the Grantee, hereby certify as follows:
1. The project described in the Grant Agreement (the “Project”) was completed and

placed in service by the Grantee on _ Ay f\) %) S‘(’ iZ. ,2020.

2. The total cost of the Project was $ 561 42! ‘32..
3. The Project was completed and is and shall be used consistent with and subject to
the covenants set forth in the Grant Agreement.

Torrance County, New Mexico

By:

Its:

Planning Grant Agreement C-1
Torrance County, Grant No. PG-4958



Agenda Item
No. 11-E



Agenda Item
No. 11-D



10
11
12

13
14
15

16
17

18
19
20

21
22
23

24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34

TORRANCE COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. R 2020-

DISPOSTION OF TORRANCE COUNTY PROPERTY

WHEREAS, in the course of providing services to the people of Torrance County, it is
necessary at times to dispose of property belonging to the County; and

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 13-6-1 et S¢q. enumerates specific requirements for
the disposal of County property; and

WHEREAS, the Torrance County Board of County Commissioners adopted the
Torrance County Property Disposition Policy (Resolution R 2020-07 ) (“Policy”) that provides a
process by which Torrance County may dispose of County property in accordance with NMSA
1978, Section 13-6-1 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Policy, Torrance County Department Heads or Elected
Officials provided a list of property that included two vehicles for review by the Property
Disposition Committee (“Committee™); and

WHEREAS, the Committee reviewed and approved the proposed disposition of the two
vehicles in accordance with the Policy,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the proposed property disposition is
hereby approved and included in the minutes of today’s Board of County Commissioners
meeting; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the County, upon final disposition, may remove
the above-mentioned property from any current inventory list as directed by NMSA 1978,
Section 13-6-1 et seq. and the Policy.

DONE THIS 23" DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: TORRANCE COUNTY COMMISSION
County Attorney Kevin McCall, District 1
Attest:

Ryan Schwebach, District 2

County Clerk Javier E. Sanchez, District 3



Torrance County

R
£a7 \i3
e

Date: f-—/ 2—'}0&

Requesting Department: Z/A,, b ) B 2emy
Property Subject of Request/ 4 7 8 6‘ ! Cfeinan V/Z«)é\/“u

Torrance County Resolution 2020-07

Property Disposition Committee

Disposition Type:

1. Tangible PERSONAL Property with Current Resale Value of $5 ,000 or Less:

Considerations

No

1| Request for Approval of Property Disposition form is complete and signed by
Department Head or Elected Official.

2 | Photos, hard or digital copies, are attached for review.

3 | Committee member(s) physically verified identity and condition of tangible
PERSONAL property. If yes, list person(s) who verified: =5 eremy e
Ld

4 | Committee verified current resale or market value,

5 | If tangible PERSONAL property was purchased through a grant, Committee verified
disposal of this property is allowable,

6 | If tangible PERSONAL property is a vehicle, Committee verified the County has the
title.

RN YN s

Committee Notes:

V(hﬂ‘/c &«444
644) jo“)Za jwcﬂ/f ool

Property Disposition Committee’s Recommendation:
% Dispose, as requested
o Do NOT dispose
o Dispose, as amended by Committee:




3. REAL Property with a Value Greater than $25,000 or with a Lease Period of More than Five (5) Years:

Considerations Yes No

1 | Request for Approval of Property Disposition form is complete and signed by
Department Head or Elected Official.

2 | Photos, hard or digital copies, are attached for review.

3 | If tangible PERSONAL property, Committee physically verified identity and
condition of property. If yes, list person(s) who verified:

4 | If tangible PERSONAL property, committee verified current resale or market value,

5 | If tangible PERSONAL property was purchased through a grant, Committee verified
disposal of this property is allowable,

6 | If tangible PERSONAL property is a vehicle or road equipment, Committee verified
the County has the title or proof of ownership,

7 | If REAL property, committee verified the County owns the property.

8 | If REAL property, committee verified receipt of appraisal, completed by a NM
certified appraiser.

Committee Notes:

Property Disposition Committee’s Recommendation:
o Dispose, as requested
o Do NOT dispose
o Dispose, as amended by Committee:

AR\

County Manager: Qw M M
/ i

{ \
. -
Operations Manager: M *X‘é?&/ %

Cd

Finance Director: /% M

/M



To Be Completed by Manager/Finance
Property Disposition Approval/Checklist

4. Board of County Commissioners, by Resolution No. Date:

5. Tangible PERSONAL Property with Current Resale Value of $5,000 or Less:

Action Required Date Initials
Completed

I | County Manager or designee shall send to Department of Finance and
Administration Local Government Division (LGD) notification of property
disposition, including cover letter stating all statutory requirements have been
met, along with a copy of Commission’s signed Disposition Resolution.

2 | County Manager or designee shall send to Office of State Auditor (OSA)
notification of property disposition, including cover letter stating all statutory
requirements have been met, along with a copy of Commission’s signed
Disposition Resolution.

Wait thirty (30) days after notification to LGD and OSA.

Dispose of property in manner indicated by Disposal Resolution.

Remove property from County’s capital asset list if applicable. (Triadic)
Remove property from asset tracking software if applicable. (WASP — Asset
Cloud)

7_| Attach proof that County notified LGD and OSA.

(SRR RN LUV

6. Tangible PERSONAL Property Valued over $5,000 or REAL Property Valued over $5,000 but No More than
$25,000:

Action Required Date Initials
Completed

1| County Manager or designee shall submit request to the Department of
Finance and Administration Local Government Division (LGD) for approval
of property disposition, including a cover letter containing all applicable
items found on Request for Approval of Property Disposition Checklist (see
attached), along with a copy of Commission’s signed Disposition
Resolution.

2 | For REAL property, provide appraisal and copy of quitclaim deed.
WARRANTY DEEDS are not allowed.

3 | Upon receipt of LGD’s approval, provide the LGD’s approval letter to OSA,
along with all materials the County provided LGD.

4 | If LGD exercises its authority, the REAL or tangible PERSONAL property
shall be disposed by offering for sale or donation to a state agency, local
public body, school district or state educational institution,

5 | For First Responder Vehicles, remove emergency equipment.

6 | For First Responder Vehicles disposed with emergency equipment, file
justification for leaving on emergency equipment,

7 | IfLGD approves the County’s request, dispose of property in manner
indicated by Disposal Resolution.

8 | Remove property from County’s capital asset List. (Triadic)

9 | Remove property from asset tracking software. (WASP — Asset Cloud)

10 | Attach proof of LGD approval and of approval letter sent to OSA.




7. REAL Property with a Value Greater than $25,000 or with a Lease Period of More than Five (5) Years:

Action Required Date Completed
Completed By

1 | County Manager or designee shall submit request disposition packet to the
State Board of Finance (BOF) for approval of property disposition, including
cover letter, along with signed Disposition Resolution.

2 | Provide appraisal and copy of quitclaim deed. WARRANTY DEEDS are not
allowed.

3 | Complete request disposition packet must be submitted to the BOF within the
established deadline prior to meeting, Contact the BOF at 5 05-827-4980 for
specific requirements.

4 | Upon the County receiving the BOF’s approval for disposition of property,
dispose in manner indicated by Disposal Resolution or as amended by the
BOF.,

5_| Remove property from County’s capital asset list. (Triadic)

6 | Remove property from asset tracking software. (WASP — Asset Cloud)

8. Contact Numbers:
A. Department of Finance Administration Local Government Division (LGD): 505-827-4950
B. Office of the State Auditor (OSA): 505-476-3800
C. State Board of Finance (BOF): 505-827-4980



Torrance County

Request for Approval of Property Disposition

Section 13-6, NMSA 1978
Torrance County Resolution 2020-07

ssr, 405
4’5‘1, M‘E\Cp

1. Department Head Requesting Disposition; Steven Guetschow
A. Departl‘nent: Planning &Zoning

2. Type of Disposition:
A. REAL Property appraised at less than $25,000
(If more than $25,000, requires State Board of Finance approval.)

DSale DExchange [__'Ponate

B. Tangible PERSONAL Property

SaleD Exchange l:l Donatel:l Other:

3. Reason(s) for Disposal: Age, maintenance

4. Recommended Use of Funds Generated by This Transaction:

5. Details of Disposal:
A. REAL Property:
1) Property name/identifier/address/legal description:

B. Tangible PERSONAL Property: (If multiple, please attach list with complete details for each.)
1) Property Name/Identifier: 1998 Ford Crown Victoria, unit designation PZ-2, 4.6 Itr engine

2) Location of Personal Property: Road department yard, Estancia
3) Photos Attached:[/Thard copy [ Higital emailed to:
4) Torrance County ID Tag Number:
5) Year manufactured: 499654 7 o
6) Make/Model: Ford Crown Victoria

7) VIN/Serial Number: 2FAFP71WOWX166083

8) License Number: G74567

9) Mileage; 145443

10) Current Resale or Market Value: Less than $10,000

11) Grant Purchase: [_]Yes [/]No (If yes, provide verification from granting agency, if allowable.)

6. First Responder Emergency Equipment to Be Removed: (If not removed, provide justification.)

7. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS for REAL Property Disposition:
A. Appraisal (if current value exceeds $5,000)
B. Copy of quitclaim deed (WARRANTY DEEDS are not allowed.)

Department Head’s Signature: 5:% » %é Date: &{ /OD/@,Q@

/L




6/ mvv@nn_m_o_:m%%ma-&@fQumaamo_awmeﬂomxmmmFmwwuwco_aowmm_mﬁsms_mnoewwimvFummmw__Ew__om.:m-%m:uEmE_w:_m,_nco_“__@coo%v.c%mw\mmm:m:eo_>-§>o§Ee\Eoo.ﬁx.;;3\\“8%

"70Z Idy Ul sjeag JeD 1s9g 0| MON iejndogd
<

>
a

de) INoA 9dlid SI9YlO MOH 995 =

MBINDL B B1LIAA

(sSuney £6¢) .

0202/¥1/60 U3noayl 9108 9P03 dIZ 104 piieA
N Jred ;uonipuo)

suoniulisp
m ojuf Jueroduuy 0

886%
anjeA Aued sieAlld

pcmemEmSU(

N

oog enig As|ie) | senjeA uj apes) gy UBpag BLOIDIA UMOID pIod 8661 020c/vLi6









4
7 BT, 1000
'V mgﬂ“‘o

Date: i—/o =203

Requesting Department: %m\ﬁF

Torrance County

Property Disposition Committee
Torrance County Resolution 2020-07

Property Subject of Requestjﬁz’f C%W Y j/i}ﬁ/C
Disposition Type:

1. Tangible PERSONAL Property with Current Resale Value of $5,000 or Less:

Considerations

No

1 | Request for Approval of Property Disposition form is complete and signed by
Department Head or Elected Official.

2 | Photos, hard or digital copies, are attached for review,

3 | Committee member(s) physically verified identity and condition of tangible

PERSONAL property. If yes, list person(s) who verified: (j}.,,},, ot ta——

4 | Committee verified current resale or market value,

disposal of this property is allowable.

5 | If tangible PERSONAL property was purchased through a grant, Committee verified

title.

6 | If tangible PERSONAL property is a vehicle, Committee verified the County has the

Committee Notes:

ﬂn:logsaﬂ ‘ﬂwm,l\ Shate. Capa‘/é/ ot-//o/
Plocesds 4 enerdl FMJ

VAIL-L “ppeor” Iif"”
oty [trewn 7550e /4(%0\"[’*”

Property Disposition Committee’s Recommendation:
"-g Dispose, as requested
0 Do NOT dispose
o Dispose, as amended by Committee:




2. Tangible PERSONAL Property Valued over $5,000 or REAL Property Valued over $5,000 but No More than
$25,000:

Considerations Yes No
1 | Request for Approval of Property Disposition form is complete and signed by
Department Head or Elected Official.

2 | Photos, hard or digital copies, are attached for review.

3 | If tangible PERSONAL property, Committee physically verified identity and
condition of property. If yes, list person(s) who verified:

4 | If tangible PERSONAL property, committee verified current resale or market value.
5 | If tangible PERSONAL property was purchased through a grant, Committee verified
disposal of this property is allowable.

6 | If tangible PERSONAL property is a vehicle or road equipment, Committee verified
the County has the title or proof of ownership.

7 | IfREAL property, committee verified the County owns the property.

8 | If REAL property, committee verified receipt of appraisal, completed by a NM
certified appraiser.

Committee Notes:

Property Disposition Committee’s Recommendation:
o Dispose, as requested
0 Do NOT dispose
o Dispose, as amended by Committee:




3. REAL Property with a Value Greater than $25,000 or with a Lease Period of More than Five (5) Years:

Considerations Yes No

1| Request for Approval of Property Disposition form is complete and signed by
Department Head or Elected Official.

2 | Photos, hard or digital copies, are attached for review.

3 | If tangible PERSONAL property, Committee physically verified identity and
condition of property. If yes, list person(s) who verified:

4 | If tangible PERSONAL property, committee verified current resale or market value.

5 | If tangible PERSONAL property was purchased through a grant, Committee verified
disposal of this property is allowable.

6 | If tangible PERSONAL property is a vehicle or road equipment, Committee verified
the County has the title or proof of ownership.

7 | If REAL property, committee verified the County owns the property.

8 | If REAL property, committee verified receipt of appraisal, completed by a NM
certified appraiser.

Committee Notes:

Property Disposition Committee’s Recommendation:
o Dispose, as requested
o Do NOT dispose
o Dispose, as amended by Committee:

County Manager:

Operations Manager:
4

Finance Director: /,%"‘—””/
p



To Be Completed by Manager/Finance
Property Disposition Approval/Checklist

4. Board of County Commissioners, by Resolution No., Date:

5. Tangible PERSONAL Property with Current Resale Value of $5,000 or Less:

Action Required Date Initials
Completed

1 | County Manager or designee shall send to Department of Finance and
Administration Local Government Division (LGD) notification of property
disposition, including cover letter stating all statutory requirements have been
met, along with a copy of Commission’s signed Disposition Resolution.

2 | County Manager or designee shall send to Office of State Auditor (OSA)
notification of property disposition, including cover letter stating all statutory
requirements have been met, along with a copy of Commission’s signed
Disposition Resolution.

Wait thirty (30) days after notification to LGD and OSA.

Dispose of property in manner indicated by Disposal Resolution.

Remove property from County’s capital asset list if applicable. (Triadic)
Remove property from asset tracking software if applicable. (WASP — Asset
Cloud)

7 | Attach proof that County notified LGD and OSA.

AN ||

6. Tangible PERSONAL Property Valued over $5,000 or REAL Property Valued over $5,000 but No More than
$25,000:

Action Required Date Initials
Completed

1 | County Manager or designee shall submit request to the Department of
Finance and Administration Local Government Division (LGD) for approval
of property disposition, including a cover letter containing all applicable
items found on Request for Approval of Property Disposition Checklist (see
attached), along with a copy of Commission’s signed Disposition
Resolution,

2 | For REAL property, provide appraisal and copy of quitclaim deed.
WARRANTY DEEDS are not allowed.

3 | Upon receipt of LGD’s approval, provide the LGD’s approval letter to OSA,
along with all materials the County provided LGD.

4 | IFLGD exercises its authority, the REAL or tangible PERSONAL property
shall be disposed by offering for sale or donation to a state agency, local
public body, school district or state educational institution.

5 | For First Responder Vehicles, remove emergency equipment.

6 | For First Responder Vehicles disposed with emergency equipment, file
justification for leaving on emergency equipment.

7 | IFL.GD approves the County’s request, dispose of property in manner
indicated by Disposal Resolution.

8 | Remove property from County’s capital asset list. (Triadic)

9 | Remove property from asset tracking software. (WASP — Asset Cloud)

10 | Attach proof of LGD approval and of approval letter sent to OSA.




7. REAL Property with a Value Greater than $25,000 or with a Lease Period of More than Five (5) Years:

Action Required Date Completed
Completed By

1| County Manager or designee shall submit request disposition packet to the
State Board of Finance (BOF) for approval of property disposition, including
cover letter, along with signed Disposition Resolution.

2 | Provide appraisal and copy of quitclaim deed. WARRANTY DEEDS are not
allowed,

3 | Complete request disposition packet must be submitted to the BOF within the
established deadline prior to meeting. Contact the BOF at 505-827-4980 for
specific requirements.

4 | Upon the County receiving the BOF’s approval for disposition of property,
dispose in manner indicated by Disposal Resolution or as amended by the
BOF.

5 | Remove property from County’s capital asset list. (Triadic)

6 | Remove property from asset tracking software. (WASP — Asset Cloud)

8. Contact Numbers:
A. Department of Finance Administration Local Government Division (LGD): 505-827-4950
B. Office of the State Auditor (OSA): 505-476-3800
C. State Board of Finance (BOF): 505-827-4980



Torrance County

Request for Approval of Property Disposition
Section 13-6, NMS4 1978
Torrance County Resolution 2020-07

1. Department Head Requesting Disposition: Marty Rivera
A. Departiment: Sheriff

2. Type of Disposition:
A. REAL Property appraised at less than $25,000
(If more than $25,000, requires State Board of Finance approval.)

DSale DExChange Djonate

B. Tangible PERSONAL Property
Sale[ ] Exchange l:l Donate Other; Auction, Sealed bid

3. Reason(s) for Disposal: Old. no longer needed, needs more work than worth

4. Recommended Use of Funds Generated by This Transaction:

5. Details of Disposal:
A. REAL Property:
1)} Property name/identifier/address/legal description:
2005 Chevrolet Impala

B, Tangible PERSONAL Property: (If muultiple, please attach list with complete details for each.)
1) Property Name/Identifier: 2005 Chevrolet Impala
2) Location of Personal Property: Admin bullding parking ot
3) Photos Attached:[ Jhard copy [ Migital emailed to:
4) Torrance County ID Tag Number: 180
5) Year manufactured; 2005
6) Make/Model: Chevralet
7) VIN/Serial Number: 2G1WF55K459388596
8) License Number: Removed (G64489)
9) Mileage:
10) Current Resale or Market Value: <85,000

11} Grant Purchase: [V]Yes [ No (If yes, provide verification from granting agency, if allowable.)

6. First Responder Emergency Equipment to Be Removed: (If not removed, provide justification.)

7. ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS for REAL Property Disposition:
A. Appraisal (if current value exceeds $5,000)
B. Copy of quitclaim deed (WARRANTY DEEDS are not allowed.)

Department Head’s Siglattlre& -@/‘Aﬁ/{/\j\f %\\O/ﬁ Date: q KD Lo



9/10/2020

Instant Cash Offer

https://www.kbb.com/chevroletimpala/2005/ss-sedan-4d/?condition

Trade-in

2005 Chevrolet Impala SS Sedan 4D Trade In Values | Kelley Blue Book

Private Party Donate Your Car

Private Party Value
$1,766

O Important info
& definitions

Condition: . Fair 7

Valid for ZIP Code 87016 through 09/10/2020

4.3 % (1008 Ratings)
Write a review

o
<

uﬁm._ﬂm_:ﬁo:ﬁud.mam-m:.mm__WBm_mmmmnwmoooowaoam_sgﬁﬁ_mmmovmo:mnmwm\_ 496%7Ctrue&pricetype=private-party&vehicleid=259

Advertisement

Popular Now Best SUV Deals in April 2020

2/9



Agenda Item
No. 12-4



J. Kory Baker Architect

PO Box 254 Phone: 505-384-3112
] G . Estancia, NM 87016 Email: j.k.haker@centurylink.net
August 31, 2020
Torrance County Road Department Attn:  Leonard Lujan
PO Box 48 Road Superintendent
219 South Tenth St
Estancia, NM 87016 cc: Noah Sedillo

Torrance County CPO
Proposal for Services

Construction documents for renovation of and additions to existing TCRD Building at
201 Salt Mission Trail

Architectural fee $25,500.00
Gross receipts tax 6.75% $1,721.25
Total $27,221.25

Includes all drawings required for a building permit for the following: Renovation of existing 40 x60
pre-engineered metal building. Addition of one 25 x 60 pre-engineered metal building containing
office, reception area and break room. Addition of one 60 x 80 pre-engineered metal building for
vehicle storage and maintenance. Design work is to be per on site meeting of 4-20-20.
Architectural fee is based on 6% of an estimated $425,000 construction budget. 1500 sf office
building at $105/sf =$157,500. 4800 sf maintenance building at $55/sf = $240,000. Renovation of
existing building = $27,500.

Survey showing existing conditions to be provided by owner, CAD format preferred.

Excludes surveying, geotechnical engineering, engineered grading/drainage plan and any other
specialized engineering required by governing authorities.

Reimbursable expenses (printing) will be billed at cost.

Thank you,

J g —

Kory Baker



Agenda Item
No. 12-B



Agenda Item
No. 12-C



EMPLOYMENT
AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is effective the 26th day of September, 2020, by and
between the Board of County Commissioners of Torrance County, New Mexico, (hereinafter
referred to as the "Board") and Janice Y. Barela, a professional manager (hereinafter
referred to as “Barela”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Board is responsible for governing Torrance County, New Mexico,
and desires to obtain the services of a professional manager to administer and operate the
County government under the Board's policies and direction; and

WHEREAS, Barela is duly qualified by training and experience to provide such
services,

NOW THEREFORE, for the consideration stated below, the parties agree as follows.

1. TERM OF EMPLOYMENT: Barela’s employment will be for a term
of two years, beginning September 26 , 2020, and ending September 25,
2022. This Agreement may be renewed or extended by agreement of the parties.

2. COMPENSATION: Barela shall receive a minimum annual salary of
Eighty-five Thousand Dollars ($85,000). The Board agrees to review Barela’s
compensation annually, or more often if it so determines, and may make adjustments
to that compensation in its discretion.

3. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES; Barcla shall perform the duties of the
position of County Manager, to conduct the business of the County pursuant to the direction

of the Board. Barela recognizes that the Board sets the policy and direction of the County



through ordinances, resolutions, and regulations, and the Board recognizes and agrees that Barela
has full authority over the day-to-day operations of the County. The Board appoints Barela
as its designated representative for purposes of administration and implementation thereof,

4, CLASSIFICATION OF POSITION: Barela shall be considered an exempt
employee as defined under the Torrance County Personnel Ordinance. Barela shall be entitled
to all privileges and benefits afforded exempt employees. It is further understood and agreed to
by the parties that the terms of the Torrance County Personnel Ordinance are waived and
are not applicable to the extent that they are in conflict with the provisions of this paragraph.

5. PROBATIONARY PERIOD: Barela shall serve a probationary term of
six (6) months and may be terminated at any time during the probationary period without cause
subsequent to a thirty (30) day notice.

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS/INSURANCE: As an exempt employee, Barela
shall be entitled to participate to the same extent as all other full-time exempt County employees
in all of the County's employee benefits/insurance programs.

7. P.E.R.A. BENEFITS: Barela shall be entitled to personal participation in
the Municipal Plan No. 2 of the State of New Mexico P.E.R.A. Plan in accordance with the
applicable contribution plan for all full-time exempt County employees, including all changes
to such contribution plan duly adopted and approved by the Board.

8. OTHERBENEFITS:

A. Expense Reimbursement: The County shall reimburse Barela for
reasonable expenses incurred by her in the performance of her duties under this Agreement.
Barela agrees to provide appropriate documentation for any and all expenses for which she

requests reimbursement under this provision.



B. Professional Memberships and Dues: The County shall pay for
Barela’s membership in professional societies and associations, such as ICMA, and shall also
pay fees necessary to maintain any licenses or bonds required for Barela to perform her
duties under this Agreement. All such membership dues and fees shall be submitted to and

pre-approved or ratified by the Board of County Commissioners.

C. Barela shall accrue sick leave in the same manner as full-time exempt
employees.
D. Barela shall accrue two hundred sixty (260) annual leave hours per

year. Barela shall be allowed to carry over any existing accrued annual and sick leave from her
current County employment.

E. Barela shall be compensated for all County recognized holidays
during each year of this Agreement. »

F. It is further understood and agreed to by Barela and the Board that
the Torrance County Personnel Ordinance and any employment rules and regulations are
waived and are not applicable to the extent that they are in conflict with the sick leave and

annual leave rights set out above.

9. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE: The Board may terminate this Agreement
for cause at any time. For purposes of this Agreement, "cause" shall include, but is not limited
to: failure to perform her duties to the sole satisfaction of the Board; any misconduct or
malfeasance; waste or misuse of County assets; fraud; misrepresentation; embezzlement;
commission of an act of moral turpitude; or any other good and just cause as determined by
the Board. Ifthe Board terminates this Agreement for cause, it shall provide Barela with

written notice of the basis for the termination. Ifthe Board terminates this Agreement for



cause as provided herein, it shall have no further obligation to Barela, except as provided by
law.

10. TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE BY THE BOARD: The Board may
terminate this Agreement without cause upon Ninety (90) days' written notice to Barela, If
the Board chooses to exercise its right to terminate this Agreement without cause, Barela
shall be entitled to receive payment for any accrued, unused leave.

11. SEVERANCE UPON TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE: In the event
the Board exercises its right to terminate this Agreement without cause, the Board agrees to
pay Barela a severance payment equal to three month's salary and benefits, the salary to be
calculated at her then-current rate of pay, and the benefits shall be equal to the value of benefits
she is receiving at the time of the Board's decision to terminate the Agreement without cause,
including the cost of health insurance. If the Board exercises its right to terminate this Agreement
without cause less than six months prior to the end of the term of this Agreement, the Board
agrees to pay Barela a severance package including salary and benefits at her then-current
rate of pay and the cost of health insurance for the coverage Barela has in place at the
time of termination equal to the time remaining in the term of this Agreement. For purposes
of this provision, "benefits" shall not include the value of a County vehicle, County cell phone,
or any other equipment provided to Barela for her use pursuant to this Agreement. Barela
shall cease to accrue sick leave or annual leave following the date that the Board gives notice
of its intent to terminate this Agreement without cause. The payments described herein may be
paid to Barela in a lump sum or in regular bi-monthly or monthly installments at the discretion
of the Board.

12. TERMINATION BY BARELA : Barela may terminate this Agreement at



any time upon Sixty (60) days' written notice to the Board. In the event that Barela chooses to

exercise her right to terminate this Agreement as provided herein, she agrees to
cooperate fully with the County in making the transition to her successor or interim
successor during the notice period. Upon termination by Barela, she shall be entitled
to receive payment for any accrued, unused leave according to the County's Personnel
Ordinance.

13. WAIYER OR BREACH OF AGREEMENT: If either party waives a
breach of this Agreement by the other party, that waiver shall not operate or be construed as
a waiver of later similar breaches.

14, AGREEMENT BINDING ON BOARD'S SUCCESSORS: The
County's rights and obligations under this Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding
upon its successors.

15. NON-APPROPRIATIONS: The terms of this Agreement are subject to
the approval and existence of adequate funding by the Board.

16. NOTICES: All notices under this Agreement shall be mailed and emailed to

the parties hereto at the following respective address:

County Barela

Board of County Janice Y. Barela
Commissioners of the County P.O. Box 225
of Torrance Estancia, NM
PO Box 48 87016

205 S Ninth Street
Estancia, NM 87016
Attn: Chair



Email: rschwebach@tenm.us Email: jybarela@gmail.com

17. POLITICAL CONTRIBUTION/SOLICITATION PROHIBITED: Barela
shall not, under any circumstances, knowingly or intentionally solicit vendors or any County

employee for a political contribution on behalf of any individual or any political cause.

18. SEVERABILITY: The invalidity or unenforceability of any provisions of this
Agreement shall not affect the other provisions, and this Agreement shall be construed in all
respects as if any invalid or unenforceable provisions were omitted.
19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT: This document constitutes the entire Agreement
between the parties relating to the subject matter herein. This Agreement may be amended
only in writing by a document signed by both parties. No oral agreement or promise shall
have any effect on the terms of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective

the 26th day of September, 2020, in Torrance County, New Mexico.

EMPLOYEE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
Janite Y. Bareld Ryan Schwebach, Chair

Javier E. Sanchez, Vice Chair

Kevin McCall, Member



Approved as to form:

John M. Butrick, County Attorney

Attest:

Linda Jaramillo, County Clerk



Agenda Item
No. 13-4



Agenda Item
No. 14-A4



Agenda Item
No. 14-B



Agenda Item
No. 15



Agenda Item
No. 16



Agenda Item
No. 17



